
From: Sally Gibson
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT)
Subject: SOR Program Data Collections and Performance Measurement
Date: Friday, October 19, 2018 11:52:06 AM

Summer
 
Good morning.  I wanted to send this email to give you requested feedback on Data Collections and Performance Measurement from email  dated 10-17-18. 
 
Overall comments from staff:
 
The client instrument is very long, and many elements could be pulled from the EHR or chart. It seems clunky and duplicative until you get to the questions that actually are client facing. For that section, my question would really be one of workflow. We are going to face similar challenges to what we are with ISAPs: our staff’s capacity *and* client compliance.
 
It would certainly be more cumbersome and time consuming. In order to do it, we would need more staff to handle the increased workload.
 
This is basically the same evaluation protocol for other SAMHSA grants, except we have dedicated evaluation staff for those grants, covered by those grants, to collect these data. Does this come with any financial support to cover evaluation time?  Depending on the client number/caseload, this could be at least a 0.5-1.0 FTE, especially after the case load gets established.
 
To get at some of what was asked below, for feedback, the burden of data collection is relatively significant (again, depending on the client numbers). This is in no small part due to the fact that it’s a relatively long interview (30-60 minutes), and it’s a longitudinal design, (potentially) even after discharge - and this client population isn’t known for their follow-through. Essentially, we could
(would need to?) dedicate a lot of time to tracking procedures if we wanted to ensure a higher response rate (which SAMHSA is always looking for).
 
As far as the utility of the data, I like the NOMs (overall – it’s not perfect), and I like it for monitoring outcomes, QI, etc. So, it’s pretty good data, if you can get it.
 
Ways to make this easier would include phone interviews and pulling as much info from the EHR as possible. Also, not getting the 3- and 6- month follow-ups after discharge… I think doing anything they can to reduce the data being collected would also be helpful, especially at follow-up and discharge intervals…
 
If we have to collect these, I think we’re going to need to talk about hiring additional staff, and incentives would help…
 
I think that overall, staff feel that this will add significant additional workload and will require additional staff and that some of the information is already being gathered so it is a duplication of what is already being done.  It would be nice to see if we can find a way gather the data in a more streamlined way without duplication.
 
Thanks
Sally
 
 
From: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT) <Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 4:44 PM
To: lauren.siembab@ct.gov; Michael.parks@maine.gov; Tom.Connors@maine.gov; Katherine.Coutu@maine.gov; Allison.bauer@state.ma.us; amy.sorensen-alawad@state.ma.us; Nicole.m.schmitt@state.ma.us; Jennifer.miller@state.ma.us; Hannah.Lipper@state.ma.us; Abby.Shockley@dhhs.nh.gov; Donald.Hunter@dhhs.nh.gov; Cynthia.Thomas@vermont.gov;
Megan.Mitchell@vermont.gov; Mariah.Ogden@vermont.gov; sgoldsby@daodas.sc.gov; dwalker@daodas.sc.gov; ckraeff@daodas.sc.gov; bpowell@daodas.sc.gov; rbraneck@daodas.sc.gov; taryn.sloss@tn.gov; linda.mccorkle@tn.gov; Anthony.jackson@tn.gov; richard.sherman@illinois.gov; terry.cook@fssa.in.gov; Rebecca.Buhner@fssa.IN.gov; Jeremy.Heyer@fssa.IN.gov;
Cassandra.Anderson2@fssa.IN.gov; Mark.Loggins@fssa.IN.gov; Kelly.Welker@fssa.IN.gov; ScottL11@michigan.gov; BullardS@michigan.gov; SmithA8@michigan.gov; dave.rompa@state.mn.us; faye.bernstein@state.mn.us; Ellen.Augspurger@mha.ohio.gov; Sanford.Starr@mha.ohio.gov; joyce.allen@wisconsin.gov; Jason.Harris@dhs.wisconsin.gov; Scott.stokes@dhs.wisconsin.gov;
tcroom@odmhsas.org; monica.wilke-brown@idph.iowa.gov; Sharon.Kearse@ks.gov; Gowdy, Rick <Rick.Gowdy@dmh.mo.gov>; rachel.winograd@mimh.edu; philip.horn@mimh.edu; tamara.gavin@nebraska.gov; Marlies.Perez@dhcs.ca.gov; tfsunia@dhss.as; herbert.sablan@gmail.com; bvictor@fsmhealth.fm; athena.duenas@gbhwc.guam.gov; temengil.ej@gmail.com
Subject: Proposed Project: State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW
 
Dear STR and SOR Project Directors and Staff:
 
This is in follow-up to my correspondence to you of last week, indicating the publication of a Federal Registry Notice (FRN) containing the proposed reporting guidelines for the SOR and TOR Grant initiatives.
 
Please find attached below the proposed SOR information plans and reporting instruments that were referenced in the recent posting of the Federal Register for your review and comment.
 
I cannot emphasize too greatly how important it is for you to carefully review and comment on these reporting tools, and provide whatever recommendations that you have regarding implementation issues. 
 
I am hopeful that with your feedback we can enter into a meaningful dialogue to maximize the usefulness of this reporting, and minimize any unnecessary reporting burden.
 
Send comments to Summer King, SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer, 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57-B, Rockville, Maryland 20857, OR email a copy to summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov.
 
Written comments should be received by December 3, 2018.

I would appreciate your copying me on any feedback that you provide in this process so that I can be fully prepared to participate in this dialogue.
 
Thank you and best regards,
 

Spencer Clark
 
Spencer Clark, MSW, LMSW, ACSW,
Public Health Advisor/
Government Project Officer,
Opioid State Targeted Response, State Opioid Response, and MAT-PDOA Grant Initiatives,
Division of Pharmacologic Therapies,
Center for Substance Abuse Treatment,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration,
Department of Health and Human Services,
5600 Fishers Lane, Office 13E25C,
Rockville, MD 20857 
Email: Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov
Personal Direct Telephone: (240) 276-1027
Main Office Telephone: (240) 276-2700
 
---------------------------
Please do not post Protected Health Information (PHI) on this listserv. 

To reply, click "reply all", type in your message, and send your email.
To create a new message string, create a new message and send it to 
opioidstr@simplelists.com.

To access the archive of conversations, visit 
http://secure-web.cisco.com/10jChNDxsLD0sNfjEVRzqiFP-V4VvxLP6TPJR4fyNfJONbgGcsjGHM-UJOeIhUSq6DBY9xC7nzGEcIpn2wvQcaV3YJjd8_OHojCSNp2uPiKXZNuSCIUzeLDVAn0Zs6OFuqy9zkd1BqZibmLyaA0zCgLxnfcNz4teqSLybXGixoNSx9u4hpRQt6DKIgQwGLRfxtch9g-
JbI44tOH0EyYJrXzTL35ZWlobxvIl2bE4mtuKYg0M80t9iA_A_ghJEGoFAuYNjbq4ajZ088zwLIs7gNPPnlS2KyDEG93i7AI5aH39gb6g34Z_AVV5fqvoKKpr6USb4B796fE9uYo02WmY2j8elX_Dem1YUqLlzz47K76RJAg_ihNSDZ3Uz8XT1TkrWCWOHyLp2QE8ZoWgbsLH3As3RE2MoP0nkcc4FysOpdik/http%3A%2F%2Farchives.simplelists.com%2Fopioidstr

All messages are cleared through a moderator, and then posted to the 
group. Please allow up to 1 business day for your message to be 
approved.
To switch to one daily digest message instead of multiple messages per 
day, contact 
Phil Horn, Missouri Opioid STR Project Manager, at 
philip.horn@mimh.edu, with the 
subject line, "Request daily digest".
 
 

 

Burrell Behavioral Health

Sally GibsonVP of Addiction ServicesSally.Gibson@burrellcenter.com
(417) 761-5405
www.burrellcenter.com

       

Burrell Behavioral Health • 1931 E. Cherry Street • Springfield • MO • 65802
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail message, including any attachments, is for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s) and may contain confidential and privileged information protected by law. Any unauthorized review,
use, disclosure or distribution is prohibited. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender by
reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message.
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Summary 

The California Department of Health Care Services (“DHCS”) is committed to providing 

data necessary for the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 

(“SAMHSA”) to fulfill the Government Performance and Results Modernization Act of 

2010 requirements, as well as ensuring that program goals and objectives of the State 

Opioid Response (“SOR”) grant are met. The Grantee Level Tool SAMHSA has 

proposed is straightforward, easy to understand, and not overly burdensome.  

However, the Client-Level Data Collection Tool (“Client Tool”) that SAMHSA proposes is 

exceptionally complicated and lengthy, which would create an immense burden on 

providers and cause resources to be shifted away from providing direct patient care. As 

a result, DHCS recommends that the Office of Management and Budget deny 

SAMHSA’s current request and urge that the Client Tool be revised and abbreviated, 

such that it continues to collect sufficient data on patient treatment but does not impose 

excessive burdens on treatment providers.   

Extensive Client Tool and Administrative Burden to DHCS 

At over forty pages in length, the Client Tool is substantially more complex than the 

Client Tool currently being utilized by DHCS’ subrecipients for the State Targeted 

Response to the Opioid Crisis (“O-STR”) grant. DHCS has been informed by its 

subrecipients that a material number of patients are unwilling to submit the information 

requested by the existing Client Tool. It is anticipated that the numbers of patients 

declining to provide information will increase as a result of the complexity and length of 

the proposed reporting tool. This could potentially lead to the collection of less accurate 

data on the sample of patients receiving services as part of the SOR, which would run 

counter to the objectives of the data collection.  

The constraints of the current system prevent DHCS’ subrecipients from inputting 

information electronically, increasing the administrative burden on California. In the 

current process, only two of DHCS’ subrecipients were selected to submit data. These 

subrecipients submit electronic copies of the forms to DHCS, where DHCS personnel 

enter the information into the web-based system. DHCS analysts spend approximately 

fifteen minutes entering data from each respective form. California estimates data entry 

for the SOR form to increase to a minimum of twenty minutes, adding to the 

administrative burden.  

DHCS recommends the following solutions to remedy the issue: 1) SAMHSA allow 

DHCS to designate subrecipients and subrecipients of subrecipients to have their own 

accounts in the SAMHSA Performance Accountability and Reporting System (SPARS) 

system used to enter Client Tool data. This will create a mechanism for subrecipients to 

enter data directly into the system as they conduct interviews; 2) abbreviate the form to 

request slightly less detailed information, as this would reduce the time required for 

subrecipients to interview patients and increase adherence of the Client Tool data 

collection requirements; and 3) allow data to be collected for only a sample of the 
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programs and sites to be funded through the grant. These proposed recommendations 

fulfill SAMHSA’s performance objectives, while also easing administrative burdens and 

efforts needed by providers to collect relevant data.   

Treatment Services Definition 

DHCS is concerned that use of the phrase treatment services is not adequately defined 

in the draft regulations and is likely to cause data to be collected inconsistently by 

subrecipients. DHCS recommends that a full, specific, and well-defined explanation of 

treatment services be provided, so that programs may be consistent in the data that 

they are collecting. This is necessary for meaningful comparisons to be performed 

between programs and grantees.  

Supporting Statement regarding Confidentiality of Client Data 

The supporting statement provided does not provide sufficient assurance that SAMHSA 

will protect patient data from unauthorized access or release. The specific statement 

that “SAMHSA cannot ensure complete confidentiality of client data” provided on page 

four of the document is unlikely to remedy existing client attitudes about providing 

extensive data that may be received by malicious parties. Many patients may simply 

choose to decline to provide the information, impacting the veracity of the data.  

Follow-up Requirements 

The estimation of patients required to submit follow-up information, even after 

discharging from the program, is unreasonable. This requirement adds to existing 

burdens on programs and would require programs to shift resources away from direct 

patient care. DHCS recommends that the 80% follow-up requirement be reduced to an 

attainable percentage.  

Conclusion 

DHCS has determined that if the Client Tool is not significantly redesigned, it will create 

an added burden on treatment providers and is likely to result in information being 

collected inconsistently among programs and patients. DHCS recommends that 

SAMHSA consider the simplicity and ease of use of the Grantee Level Tool when 

revising the Client Tool and consider using the abbreviated tool currently being used for 

the O-STR projects. Lastly, DHCS requests that any subsequent divisions to either of 

the reporting tools be resubmitted for further public comment. 



From: Fred Rottnek
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Fred Rottnek
Subject: Comments on proposed reporting guidelines for the SOR and TOR Grant initiatives
Date: Friday, October 19, 2018 4:42:01 PM

Thank you for allowing us the opportunity to comment on proposed reporting guidelines.
In addition to my information below, I am very involved with the current STR and future SOR
programs through a few avenues:

1. I contract with the Missouri STR team for training, in-services, and resource development.
(30% of my time)

2. I contract with ARCA as medical director. (another 30% of my time) At ARCA, we provide on-
site and telehealth addiction medicine and co-occurring disorder services to 19 agencies at 37
sites around the state. We are on-track to see over 36,000 unduplicated patients in 2018.

 
When I reviewed these guidelines, a few things jumped out at me.

1. The questions are incredibly relevant to the population we are serving.
2. The reporting requirements as drafted seem to turn a primary service grant (STR being 76% in

treatment and recovery support) into some type of hybrid service and research grant.
3. The reporting requirements as drafted would be so onerous to our staff and patients, that

they would functional serve as a barrier to treatment.
 
While I am no expert in research design, I propose a way to gather a statistically significant number
of the proposed questions which minimizing reporting data for the bulk of clients treated.
For example, could the full reporting drafted here be mandated for a fraction of patients treated?
Say 10-25% of total patients.
The patients who provide the full reporting information could be randomized for each site, by
SAMHSA (or contracted entity) or by the agency, so that the bulk of clients experience expedited
enrollment, i.e., questions related to the most salient questions.
With this approach, significant data could be collected on a minority of patients. While this would be
additional work compared to the current process, it would not be as onerous as the reporting
structure proposed.
 
Thank you for your consideration,
 
Fred Rottnek, MD, MAHCM 
Professor
Director of Community Medicine, Department of Family and Community Medicine 
Board-certified in Family Medicine and Addiction Medicine
Medical Director, Physician Assistant Program
Saint Louis University School of Medicine 
1402 South Grand Boulevard
St. Louis, MO 63104
 
Campus Office: 2nd Floor O'Donnell Hall, 1320 South Grand Boulevard
(P) 314-977-8489 (F) 314-977-5268 rottnekf@slu.edu
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Agency Information Collection Activities: Proposed Collection 

COMMENT REQUEST 
 

To:    Summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov 

Submitted by:  Lauren Siembab, SOR grant Project Director 

  
   

a. Whether the proposed collections of information are necessary for the proposer performance of 

the functions of the agency, including whether the information shall have practical utility. 

 

Assuming that the “agency” is the SSA, the collection of client level data via the GPRA is not necessary 

since this SSA already has a mechanism for collecting client level data for SAMHSA funded treatment 

projects, as we do for TEDS reporting.  We are able to evaluate “connect to care” and “re-admission to 

treatment” rates with this same data. However, the GPRA interviews do provide richer data from the 

participant perspective, and could be measures that are of specific value for SOR beyond the generally 

available treatment data the SSA usually gets. Unfortunately, SAMHSA does not allow adequately for the 

cost of administering 3-4 GPRA interviews per client, particularly if these are conducted by the preferred 

“neutral” third party rather than the service provider(s).   

 

The version of the GPRA given to the SOR sites to review is markedly different from the version 

currently in use for most of the CSAT projects.  Although there certainly can be value in modifying the 

instrument so that there are items of specific interest for a particular project, keeping the majority of the 

items the same (or similar) in content and format would enhance ease of training and administration, as 

well as the ability to compare results across projects.  If additional components are added, it seems that 

MAT-specific questions would be useful.  

 

b. The accuracy of the agency’s estimate of the burden of the proposed collection of information. 

 

Overall, the estimate of burden is for GPRA interviews time is correct for the current version in use. 

However, the proposed version is longer and more confusing and will likely take longer to administer. 

What is not taken into account in the “burden estimate” is the amount of time expended trying to locate 

the individuals to conduct the follow-up interview(s), which in some cases is substantial. 

 

c. Ways to enhance the quality, utility and clarity of the information to be collected. 

1. Stick to one version of GPRA for the long-haul 

2. Reduce the number of questions and pages SUBSTANTIALLY. 

3. Remove the requirement for the 6 month follow-up or provide adequate funding for tracking and 

administration. 

 

d. Ways to minimize the burden of the collection of information on respondents, including 

through the use of automated collection techniques or other forms of information technology. 
 

Consider separate “frameworks”/formats for States to use for reporting treatment, prevention, recovery 

support, training and TA, and naloxone purchases; minimal detail beyond #’s served. 
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From: Noble Shaver
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Subject: Reporting requirements for SOR
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2018 1:47:00 PM

The GPRA for STR is a long tool, it adds a 3 month reporting time ( not required with STR), so if the
benchmark is 80% compliance in reporting like STR, this will add a layer of time for something  that for us

that is already very labor intensive in tracking , locating and administering. I fear we might lose potential
consumer's wanting treatment because of the lengthy requirements to receive services. The
Medication First model works well because it eliminates red tape and puts the consumer in
front of a physician quickly. I fear if we start to add new requirements now the ability to act
quickly and efficiently could fade. I believe that the collaboration taking place in Missouri
between providers, Department of Behavioral Health, and Missouri Institute for Mental Health
requiring the GPRA is a duplication of data collection. 

Thank you for your time

Noble Shaver Jr., MA, LPC, CRADC, NCC
Chief Clinical Officer Substance Use Disorders, Housing, & Outreach Services   573-888-5925 ext.
1501
Kennett, MO. 63857
nobles@fccinc.org
 

Person-Centered Recovery & Wellness
FCC is an equal opportunity provider and employer
 
PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL: This document and the information contained herein are confidential and
protected from disclosure pursuant to federal law.  This message is intended only for the use of the Addressee(s) and
may contain information that is PRIVILEDGED and CONFIDENTIAL.  If you are not the intended recipient, you
are hereby  notified that the use, dissemination, or copying of this information is strictly prohibited.  If you have
received this communication in error, please erase all copies of the message and its attachments and notify the
sender immediately.
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From: Moody-Geissler, Stephanie
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI); Bankhead, Jamal (SAMHSA)
Cc: Gazioch, Ute
Subject: 60-Day FRN for State Opioid Response Grant (Short Title: SOR) Data Collection Tool
Date: Monday, December 3, 2018 12:16:47 PM
Attachments: Attachment A - SOR TOR Client Instrument_EDITS.docx

Dear Summer King,
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the on the State Opioid Response Grant (Short Title:
SOR) Data Collection Tool. Please find attached comments and edits I would like to put forth for the
tool.
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions concerning this document, edits, or
comments.
 
Thank you,
Stephanie Moody-Geissler
 
Stephanie M. Moody-Geissler, MPH
Lead Epidemiologist
Overdose Prevention
Office of Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Florida Department of Children and Families
1317 Winewood Blvd., Bldg. 6, Room 272
Tallahassee, FL  32399
Office: (850) 717-4329
Stephanie.Moodygeissler@myflfamilies.com
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State Opioid Response/Tribal Opioid Response (SOR/TOR) Client-Level Data Collection Tool	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: There are no naloxone/narcan questions in this tool



RECORDS MANAGEMENT





Client ID	|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|





Contract/Grant ID	|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|





Site ID			|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|____|

_____________________________________________________________________________________





Date of Admission 		 |____|____| / |____|____| / |____|____|____|____|            

	  					 MONTH           DAY                    YEAR            





Interview Type (SELECT ONLY ONE TYPE)	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Is there going to be a skip pattern for baseline vs reassessment vs discharge questions? 



		Baseline 	

		Reassessment: |____|____| months 

	 	Discharge: Patient completed services

	 	Discharge: Non-completion of servicesAdministrative (SKIP TO SECTION X)





	     Was the interview conducted?    



		

	Yes	



When?



	 |____|____| / |____|____| / |____|____|____|____|            

	   MONTH          DAY                    YEAR            



How was this interview conducted?



		In Person

		Telephone (Intake must be in person)



		

	No	



Why not? Choose only one.



	    Not able to obtain consent from proxy	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Define proxy and include instructions on when and why to use a proxy, who can be a proxy? 

	    Consumer was impaired or unable to provide     consent

      Consumer refused this interview only          

      Consumer was not reached for interview     

      Consumer refused all interviews                   











Was the client referred for treatment from the Emergency Department (ED)?  Y/N (Ask only at intake)





Is this an Opioid Treatment Program (OTP)? Y/N  (Ask only at intake)	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: What is an OTP? The referring agency? The agency completing the intake? 
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SERVICES PLANNED

		Treatment Setting  

(Circle at least one modality)

		

		



		1. Inpatient/Hospital (Other than Detox)

		Yes

		No



		2. Outpatient

		Yes

		No



		3. Intensive Outpatient

		Yes

		No





		4. Partial Hospitalization

		Yes

		No



		5. Residential/Rehabilitation

		Yes

		No



		6. Detoxification (Select Only One)

		

		



		a. Hospital Inpatient

		Yes

		No



		b. Free Standing Clinic

		Yes

		No



		c. Ambulatory Support 

		Yes

		No



		7. Other (Specify) ________________

		Yes

		No



		

		

		



		Treatment Services 

(Circle at least one service)

		

		



		

		

		



		8. Medication-assisted treatment

		

		



		

		

		



		For Opioid Use Disorder

		

		



		a. Methadone

		Yes

		No



		b. Buprenorphine – Oral/Sublingual/Buccal 

(e.g., Suboxone, buprenorphine/naloxone)

		Yes

		No



		c. Buprenorphine – Injectable (e.g. Sublocade)

		Yes

		No



		d. Buprenorphine Implant (Probuphine) 

		Yes

		No



		e. Naltrexone – Oral

		Yes

		No



		f. Naltrexone – Injectable

(e.g., Vivitrol ®)

		Yes

		No



		

		

		



		For Alcohol Use Disorder

		

		



		a. Naltrexone – Oral

		Yes

		No



		b. Naltrexone – Injectable 

(e.g., Vivitrol ®) 

		Yes

		No



		c. Disulfiram 

		Yes

		No



		d. Acamprosate 

		Yes

		No



		

		

		



		9. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy

		Yes

		No



		10. Contingency Management

		Yes

		No



		11. Group Counseling

		

		



		12. Individual Counseling

		Yes

		No



		13. 12-step Facilitation

		Yes

		No



		14. Dialectical Behavioral Therapy

		Yes

		No



		15. Motivational Interviewing 

		Yes

		No



		16. Motivational Enhancement Therapy

		Yes

		No



		17. Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) 

		Yes

		No



		18. Co-Occurring Treatment/Recovery Services

		Yes

		No



		19. Recovery Support

		Yes

		No



		20. Marriage/Family Therapy

		Yes

		No



		21. Peer Recovery Support

		Yes

		No



		22. Other Clinical Services 

(Specify) __________________

		Yes

		No



		

		

		



		Case Management Services

		

		



		1. Family Services 

(Including Marriage Education, Reproductive Health, Parenting, Child Development Services)

		Yes

		No



		2. Child Care

		Yes

		No



		3. Employment Service

		

		



		a. Pre-Employment

		Yes

		No



		b. Employment Couching

		Yes

		No



		4. Transportation

		Yes

		No



		5. HIV/AIDS Care Coordination

		Yes

		No



		6. Viral Hepatitis Care Coordination

		Yes

		No



		7. Supportive Transitional Housing Services

		Yes

		No



		8. Legal Services

		Yes

		No



		9. Other Case Management (Specify)____________________

		Yes

		No



		

		

		



		Medical Services

		

		



		1. Medical Care

		Yes

		No



		2. Alcohol/Drug Testing

		Yes

		No



		3. HIV/AIDS Medical Support & Testing

		Yes

		No



		4. Viral Hepatitis Medical Support & Testing

		Yes

		No



		5. Tobacco Screening

		Yes

		No



		6. Tobacco Cessation Services

		Yes

		No



		7. Linkages to Health Care Services

		Yes

		No



		8. Other Medical Services (Specify)____________________

		Yes

		No



		

		

		



		After Care Services 

		

		



		1. Continuing Care

		Yes

		No



		2. Relapse Prevention

		Yes

		No



		3. Recovery Coaching

		Yes

		No



		4. Self-Help and Support Groups

		Yes

		No



		5. Spiritual Support

		Yes

		No



		6. Other After Care Services (Specify) __________________

		Yes

		No



		

		

		



		Education Services

		

		



		1. Substance Use Disorder Education

		Yes

		No



		2. HIV/AIDS Education

		Yes

		No



		3. Viral Hepatitis Education

		Yes

		No



		4. Other Education Services  (Specify) __________________

		Yes

		No













Behavioral Health Diagnoses



Please indicate patient’s current behavioral health diagnoses using the ICD 10 codes listed below:



Substance Use Disorder Diagnoses



Alcohol related disorders

 F10.10 – Alcohol use disorder, uncomplicated, mild

 F10.11 – Alcohol use disorder, mild, in remission

 F10.20 – Alcohol use disorder, uncomplicated, moderate/severe

 F10.21 – Alcohol use disorder, moderate/severe, in remission

 F10.9 – Alcohol use, unspecified



Opioid related disorders

 F11.10 – Opioid use disorder, uncomplicated, mild

 F11.11 – Opioid use disorder, mild, in remission

 F11.20 – Opioid use disorder, uncomplicated, moderate/severe

 F11.21 – Opioid use disorder, moderate/severe, in   remission

 F11.9 – Opioid use, unspecified



Cannabis related disorders

 F12.10 – Cannabis use disorder, uncomplicated, mild

 F12.11 – Cannabis use disorder, mild, in remission

 F12.20 – Cannabis use disorder, uncomplicated, moderate/severe

 F12.21 – Cannabis use disorder, moderate/severe, in remission

 F12.9 – Cannabis use, unspecified



Sedative, hypnotic, or anxiolytic related disorders

 F13.10 – Sedative, hypnotic, or anxiolytic-related use disorder, uncomplicated, mild

 F13.11 – Sedative, hypnotic, or anxiolytic-related use disorder, mild, in remission

 F13.20 – Sedative, hypnotic, or anxiolytic-related use disorder, uncomplicated, moderate/severe

 F13.21 – Sedative, hypnotic, or anxiolytic-related use disorder, moderate/severe, in remission

 F13.9 – Sedative, hypnotic, or anxiolytic-related use, unspecified



Cocaine related disorders

 F14.10 – Cocaine use disorder, uncomplicated, mild

 F14.11 – Cocaine use disorder, mild, in remission

 F14.20 – Cocaine use disorder, uncomplicated, moderate/severe

 F14.21 – Cocaine use disorder, moderate/severe, in remission

 F14.9 – Cocaine use, unspecified



Other stimulant related disorders

 F15.10 – Other stimulant use disorder, uncomplicated, mild

 F15.11 – Other stimulant use disorder, mild, in remission

 F15.20 – Other stimulant use disorder, uncomplicated, moderate/severe

 F15.21 – Other stimulant use disorder, moderate/severe, in remission

 F15.9 – Other stimulant use, unspecified



Hallucinogen related disorders

 F16.10 – Hallucinogen use disorder, uncomplicated, mild

 F16.11 – Hallucinogen use disorder, mild, in remission

 F16.20 – Hallucinogen use disorder, uncomplicated, moderate/severe

 F16.21 – Hallucinogen use disorder moderate/severe, in remission

 F16.9 – Hallucinogen use, unspecified



Inhalant related disorders

 F18.10 – Inhalant use disorder, uncomplicated, mild

 F18.11 – Inhalant use disorder, mild, in remission

 F18.20 – Inhalant use disorder, uncomplicated, moderate/severe

 F18.21 – Inhalant use disorder, moderate/severe, in remission

 F18.9 – Inhalant use, unspecified



Other psychoactive substance related disorders

 F19.10 – Other psychoactive substance use disorder, uncomplicated, mild

 F19.11 – Other psychoactive substance use disorder, in remission

 F19.20 – Other psychoactive substance use disorder, uncomplicated, moderate/severe

 F19.21 – Other psychoactive substance use disorder, moderate/severe, in remission

 F19.9 – Other psychoactive substance use, unspecified



Nicotine dependence

 F17.20 – Tobacco use disorder, mild/moderate/severe

 F17.21 –Tobacco use disorder, mild/moderate/severe, in remission



Mental Health Diagnoses



 F20 – Schizophrenia

 F21 – Schizotypal disorder

 F22 – Delusional disorder

 F23 – Brief psychotic disorder

 F24 – Shared psychotic disorder

 F25 – Schizoaffective disorders

 F28 – Other psychotic disorder not due to a substance or known physiological condition

 F29 – Unspecified psychosis not due to a substance or known physiological condition

 F30 – Manic episode

 F31 – Bipolar disorder

 F32 – Major depressive disorder, single episode

 F33 – Major depressive disorder, recurrent

 F34 – Persistent mood [affective] disorders

 F39 – Unspecified mood [affective] disorder

 F40 - F48 – Anxiety, dissociative, stress-related, somatoform and other nonpsychotic mental disorders

 F50 – Eating disorders

 F51 – Sleep disorders not due to a substance or known physiological condition

 F60-F69 – Disorders of adult personality and behavior

 F70-F79 – Intellectual disabilities

 F80-F89 – Pervasive and specific developmental disorders

 F90 – Attention-deficit hyperactivity disorders

 F91 – Conduct disorders

 F93 – Emotional disorders with onset specific to childhood

 F94 – Disorders of social functioning with onset specific to childhood or adolescence

 F95 – Tic disorder

 F98 – Other behavioral and emotional disorders with onset usually occurring in childhood and adolescence

 F99 – Unspecified mental disorder



    NONE OF THE ABOVE





DEMOGRAPHICS



1. What is your date of birth? 



	|____|____| / |____|____|____|____|

           Month	                 Year



 DECLINED

			 DON’T KNOW 



2. What sex were you assigned at birth, on your original birth certificate? 

	

 Male 

 Female 



 DECLINED

 DON’T KNOW



3. How do you describe yourselfself-identify? (check all that apply)



 Male 

 Female 

 Transgender

 Do not identify as female, male or transgender



 DECLINED

 DON’T KNOW





3a. 	Are you currently pregnant? (Ask only if sex = female)	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Ask all genders (men can be pregnant)



 Yes

  No



  DECLINED

  DON’T KNOW





	4.	Are you Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish origin? [ONE OR MORE CATEGORIES MAY BE SELECTED]

  No, not of Hispanic, Latino/a, or Spanish origin

  Yes, Central American

  Yes, Cuban

  Yes, Dominican

  Yes, Mexican, Mexican American, Chicano/a

  Yes, Puerto Rican

  Yes, South American

			     Yes, another Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin (SPECIFY): ___________________________



  DECLINED

  DON’T KNOW 









5. What is your race? [ONE OR MORE CATEGORIES MAY BE SELECTED]

	

		White

		Black or African American 	

		American Indian

		Alaska Native 

		Native Hawaiian/Other Pacific Islander

		Asian 



				DECLINED



6. Which one of the following do you consider yourself to be? 



	Straight/Heterosexual 

	Gay/Lesbian

	Bisexual

	Other



	DECLINED

	DON’T KNOW 



7. Have you ever served in the Armed Forces, the Reserves, or the National Guard? 



	Yes					

	No



	DECLINED

	DON’T KNOW





7a. [IF YES] In which of the following have you ever served? Please answer for each of the following. You may say yes to more than one.





		

		Yes

		No

		DECLINED

		DON’T KNOW



		Active Component

		

		

		

		



		Reserves

		

		

		

		



		National Guard

		

		

		

		









		7b. [IF YES]  Have you ever been deployed to a combat zone?



				   Yes

· No



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW









8. Do you currently smoke? 

				   Yes

· No



· DECLINED



8b.         [If yes].  How many cigarettes do you smoke per day? _______



9. Have you ever been diagnosed or told that you have HIV? 



	Yes 

	No 



	REFUSED 

	DON’T KNOW





10. Have you ever been diagnosed or told that you have Hepatitis B? 



	Yes 

	No 



	REFUSED 

	DON’T KNOW



11. Have you ever been diagnosed or told that you have Hepatitis C? 



	Yes 

	No 



	REFUSED 

	DON’T KNOW










MEDICAL STATUS



M1. 	Do you currently smoke? 

				   Yes

· No



· DECLINED



M1b.         [If yes].  How many cigarettes do you smoke per day? _______



M2. 	Have you ever been diagnosed or told by a medical professional that you have HIV? 



	Yes 

	No 



	DECLINED 

	DON’T KNOW





M3.	Have you ever been diagnosed or told by a medical professional that you have Hepatitis B? 



	Yes 

	No 



	DECLINED 

	DON’T KNOW



M4.	Have you ever been diagnosed or told by a medical professional that you have Hepatitis C? 



	Yes 

	No 



	DECLINED 

	DON’T KNOW







M5.	How many times in your life have you been hospitalized for medical problems? ________



[Include O.D.'s and D.T.'s. Exclude detox, alcohol/drug, psychiatric treatment and childbirth (if no complications). Enter the number of overnight hospitalizations for medical problems.]	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Excluding alcohol/drug problems but including OD and DT? This is contradictory. 



		 DECLINED

		 DON’T KNOW



M61b.	How many times in your life have you been treated in the emergency room for medical problems? _____



[Include O.D.'s and D.T.'s. Exclude detox, alcohol/drug, psychiatric treatment and childbirth (if no complications).] 	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Same issue as M5



		 DECLINED

		 DON’T KNOW



M73.	Do you have any chronic physical medical problems which continue to interfere with your life?	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Eliminate question if simply state “chronic” Everyone will answer “Yes” substance use disorder/addition is a chronic medical condition
Or
Add “physical” 



[A chronic medical condition is a serious physical condition that requires regular care (i.e., medication, dietary restriction) preventing full advantage of their abilities.]



		 Yes

		  No



		  DECLINED

		  DON’T KNOW



M84. 	Are you taking any prescribed medication prescribed to you by a MD on a regular basis for a physical problem?



[Medication prescribed by a MD for medical conditions; not psychiatric medicines.  Include medicines prescribed whether or not the patient is currently taking them. The intent is to verify chronic medical problems.]



		   Yes

		   No



		   DECLINED

		   DON’T KNOW



M95.	Do you receive a pension or Supplemental Security Income (SSI) for a physical disability?

	

[Include workman’s compensation, exclude psychiatric disability] 



		   Yes

		   No



		   DECLINED

		   DON’T KNOW






M106.	How many days have you experienced physical medical problems in the past 30 days?  ________



[Do not include ailments directly caused by drugs/alcohol.  Include flu, colds, etc. Include serious ailments related to drugs/alcohol, which would continue even if the patient were abstinent (e.g., cirrhosis of liver, abscesses from needles, etc.).]



	

			  	DECLINED

·       DON’T KNOW



M117.	How troubled or bothered have you been by these physical medical problems in the past 30 days?  



[Restrict response to problem days of  Question M6.]



		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



			 	DECLINED

			 	DON’T KNOW





M812. 	How important to you now is treatment for these physical medical problems?



	[Refers to the need for new or additional medical treatment by the patient]

	

		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

			         DON’T KNOW
























EMPLOYMENT/SUPPORT STATUS



E1.	Education completed:  ____	_____	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Greater instruction needed: Do we include Kindergarten or Pre-K?
is a HS diploma= 12 or13 yrs? 

		            		Years	Months



[GED = 12 years.  Include formal education only]



		 DECLINED

		 DON’T KNOW





E2.	Training or technical education completed 	 ____	_____

		           					 Years	Months

	

[Formal/organized training only. For military training, only include training that can be used in civilian life, i.e., electronics or computers.]



		 DECLINED

		 DON’T KNOW



E4.		Do you have a valid driver’s license?

		

		[Valid license; not suspended/revoked]



		 Yes

		  No



		  DECLINED

		  DON’T KNOW



E5.	Do you have an automobile available?

	

	[If answer to E4 is "No", then E5 must be "No”]

	[Does not require ownership, only requires availability on a regular basis]

	

		 Yes

		  No



		  DECLINED

		  DON’T KNOW



E6. 	How long was your longest full-time job? 	 ____	_____

		           				 	Years	Months



	[Full time = 35+ hours weekly; does not necessarily mean most recent job]



		 DECLINED

		 DON’T KNOW



E7.	Usual (or last) occupation?  (specify) ___________

	

(Use Hollingshead Categories Reference Sheet)



		 DECLINED

		 DON’T KNOW



E9.		Does someone else contribute the majority of your financial support?	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: define



 		 Yes

		  No



		  DECLINED

		  DON’T KNOW





E10.      Usual employment pattern, past three years:



		 Full time (35 + hours)		  Retired/disability

		 Part time (regular hours)		  Unemployed

		 Part time (irregular hours)                     In controlled environment	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: define

		 Student				  DECLINED

		 Service				  DON’T KNOW

		

  	[Answer should represent the majority of the past three years, not just the most recent selection.  If there are equal times for more than one category, select that which best represents more current situation.]



E11.		How many days were you paid for working in the past 30 days?  _________  



[Include "under the table" work, paid sick days and vacation.]



 	DECLINED

 	DON’T KNOW





E12.	How much money have you earned from the following sources in the past 30 days?



			E12a. 	Employment	______

			[Net or "take home" pay, include any "under the table" money.]



			E12bE13.	Unemployment compensation	______



			E12cE14.	Welfare	 _______

			[Include food stamps, transportation money provided by an agency to go to and from treatment.]

			

			E12dE15.	Pensions, benefits and Social Security  ______

			[Include disability, pensions, retirement, veteran's benefits, SSI & workers' compensation].



			E16 E12e.	PartnerMate, family, and friends  _______

[Money for personal expenses, (i.e. clothing), include unreliable sources of income (e.g. gambling).  Record cash payments only, include windfalls (unexpected), money from loans, gambling, inheritance, tax returns, etc.)].



			E12fE17.	Illegal ______

[Cash obtained from drug dealing, stealing, fencing stolen goods, gambling, prostitution, etc. Do not attempt to convert drugs exchanged to a dollar value.]

	

	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW









  E183.	How many people depend on you for the majority of their food, shelter etc.? ______

 

 [Must be regularly depending on patient, do include alimony/child support, do not include the patient or self-supporting spouse, etc.]



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW

E149. 	How many days have you experienced employment problems in the past 30 days?  ______

		

[Include inability to find work, if they are actively looking for work, or problems with present job in which that job is jeopardized.]



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



E1205.	How troubled or bothered have you been by these employment problems in the past 30 days?

  

[If the patient has been incarcerated or detained during the past 30 days, they cannot have employment problems.]

 

		 	Extremely

	Considerably

·        Moderately

·        Slightly

·        Not at all



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW



E216.	How important to you now is counseling for these employment problems?



[The patient's ratings in Questions E20-21 refer to Question E19.  Stress help in finding or preparing for a job, not giving them a job.]



		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW












SUBSTANCE USE	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Why are there so many alcohol questions for an Opioid grant? 

All Alcohol Qs should be changed to Opioids

Include alcohol in Drugs



Route of Administration Types:





1. Oral    2. Nasal   3. Smoking   4. Non-IV injection  5. IV



[Note the usual or most recent route. For more than one route, choose the most severe. The routes are listed from least severe to most severe.]





		Substance

		Past 30 days	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Are they supposed to write Number of times in last 30 days/Lifetime or simply a Y or N

		Lifetime

		Route of Administration



		



		Alcohol (any use at all)

		

		

		



		Alcohol (to intoxication)

		

		

		



		Non-Prescription Opioids



		     Heroin

		

		

		



		     Illicitly-made Fentanyl or Fentanyl analogs

		

		

		



		Other non-prescription opioid (specify)	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Where?

		

		

		



		Prescription Opioids



		     Methadone

		

		

		



		     Fentanyl (Rx formulations) (e.g., Fentora, Duragesic)

		

		

		



		     Hydrocodone (e.g., Vicodin, Lortab, Norco)

		

		

		



		     Oxycodone (e.g., OxycContin, Percocet, Roxicodone)

		

		

		



		     Morphine

		

		

		



		     Tramadol (e.g., Ultram)

		

		

		



		     Hydromorphone (e.g., Dilaudid)

		

		

		



		     Oxymorphone

		

		

		



		     Tapentadol (e.g., Nucynta)

		

		

		



		     Buprenorphine (e.g., Butrans, Suboxone)

		

		

		



		Kratom (mitragynine)

		

		

		



		Barbiturates

		

		

		



		Benzodiazepines

		

		

		



		Sedatives/Hypnotics/

Non-benzo tranquilizers

		

		

		



		Cocaine

		

		

		



		Amphetamine/Methamphetamine

		

		

		



		Synthetic stimulants (e.g., bath salts, cathinones)

		

		

		



		Codeine (e.g., Tylenol #3)

		

		

		



		Cannabis

		

		

		



		Synthetic cannabinoids

		

		

		



		Hallucinogens

		

		

		



		Inhalants

		

		

		



		Tobacco

		

		

		



		More than one substance per day (including alcohol)

		

		

		









D17.      Lifetime: How many times have you had the Alcohol DTsexperienced Opioid withdrawal?      ________



[Delerium tremens (DT) occur 24-48 hours after last drinkWithdrawal symptoms can begin within hours after last dose, or significant decrease in opioidalcohol intake.  WithdrawalDT symptoms include Symptoms of opioid withdrawal include anxiety, nausea, vomiting, or abdominal pain. While symptoms can be severe, they aren't life-threateningshaking, severe disorientation, fever, hallucinations, and they usually require medical attention].



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



D18.     How many times in your life have you been treated for:



[Include MATdetoxification, halfway houses and, in/outpatient, counseling, and AA or NA (if 3+ meetings within one month period).]



	D198a.         OpioidAlcohol abuse?  ____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



	D218b0.         Other Drug Abuse?      ____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



D19.      How many of these were detox only?



                [If D18a9 = “00”, then question D219a is “Not Applicable”; if D18b20 = “00”, then question D19b22 is “Not Applicable]



	D19a21.            OpioidAlcohol?  _____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



	          NOT APPLICABLE





                 D19b22.              Other Drugs? _____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



	          NOT APPLICABLE







D20. 	How much money would you say you spent in the last 30 days on?



[Only count actual money spent.  What is the financial burden caused by drugs/alcohol?]



             D20a3.   AlcoholOpioids?  _____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW





              D240b.    Other Drugs? _____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW









D215.   How many days have you been treated as an outpatient for opioidsalcohol or other drugs in the past 30 days?  ______

	

[Do Not Include AA/NA]	





	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW





D26.  How many days in the past 30 have you had alcoholopioid problems?_____





	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW









D28.   How troubled or bothered have you been in the past 30 days by these alcohol opioid problems?



		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW





D30.   How important to you now is treatment for these alcoholopioid problems? 



		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW

































D27.  How many days in the past 30 have you had other drug problems?_____

__

[Include only: craving, withdrawal symptoms, disturbing effects of use, wanting to stop and being unable to.]

_



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW





D29.  How troubled or bothered have you been in the past 30 days by these other drug problems?





		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW





D31.  How important to you now is treatment for these other drug problems?



		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW





		



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW





How important to you now is treatment for these drug problems? ______



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW
































































































LEGAL STATUS



L1.  Was this admission prompted or suggested by the criminal justice system?

        

        [Judge, probation/parole officer, etc.]



				   Yes

· No



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW



L2.   Are you on parole or probation?



				   Yes

· No



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW







How many times have you been arrested and charged with the following?



[Include total number of counts, not just convictions.  Do not include juvenile (pre-age 18) crimes, unless they were charged as an adult.  Include formal charges only.]





		

		Past 30 days

		Lifetime

		DECLINED

		DON’T KNOW



		L3. Shoplift/Vandal

		

		

		

		



		L4. Parole/Probation	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: You can’t be charged with probation or parole. Those aren’t crimes

		

		

		

		



		L5. Drug Charges	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: All drug charges? Procession? Distribution? Etc. 

		

		

		

		



		L6. Forgery

		

		

		

		



		L7. Weapons Offense

		

		

		

		



		L8. Burglary/Larceny/B&E

		

		

		

		



		L9. Robbery

		

		

		

		



		L10. Assault

		

		

		

		



		L11. Arson

		

		

		

		



		L12. Rape

		

		

		

		



		L13. Homicide/Manslaughter

		

		

		

		



		L14. Prostitution

		

		

		

		



		L15. Contempt of Court

		

		

		

		



		L16. Other (Specify)__________________

		

		

		

		









L17. How many of these charges resulted in convictions?________



           [If L3-L16 = 00, then question L17 = “Not Applicable”.]   

[Do not include misdemeanor offenses from questions L18-20 below.]	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Confusing directions

[Convictions include fines, probation, incarcerations, suspended sentences, and guilty pleas.]





· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW



		   NOT APPLICABLE

 



How many times in your life have you been charged with the following:

L18. Disorderly conduct, vagrancy, public intoxication?  _____



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW

L19.  Driving while intoxicated? __________



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW

L20.   Major driving violations? __________

[Moving violations: speeding, reckless driving, no license, etc.]



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW







































L21. How many months were you incarcerated in your life?  _____



[If incarcerated 2 weeks or more, round this up to 1 month. List total number of months incarcerated.]



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW




























L226. How many days in the past 30 were you detained or incarcerated? ____

          [Include being arrested and released on the same day.]



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW









L234. 	Are you presently awaiting charges, trials or sentence?

		

· Yes

· No

· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW



L254.  	What for?



[Use the number of the type of crime committed in L3-L16 and L18-20; Refers to Question L24.  If more than one, choose most severe.  Don’t include civil cases, unless a criminal offense is involved.]



· Shoplift/vandal

· Parole /probation

· Drug charges

· Forgery

· Weapons offense

· Burglary/larceny/B&E

· Robbery

· Assault

· Arson

· Rape

· Homicide/manslaughter

· Prostitution

· Contempt of court

· Disorderly conduct, vagrancy, public intoxication

· Driving while intoxicated

· Major driving violation

· Other (specify) ______

· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW



 

























































































L275.  How many days in the past 30 have you engaged in illegal activities for profit? ____

[Exclude simple drug possession.  Include drug dealing, prostitution, selling stolen goods, etc.  May be cross-checked with Question E17 under Employment/Social Support Section.]



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW











































L268.  How serious do you feel your present legal problems are?



[Exclude civil problems]



 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW





L279.  How important to you now is counseling or referral for these legal problems?__________



[Patient is rating a need for additional referral to legal counsel for defense against criminal charges]





 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW


























FAMILY/SOCIAL RELATIONSHIPS

F1.   Marital Status?

 	Married

	Remarried

·        Widowed

·        Separated

·        Divorced

·        Never Married



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED



F23.  Are you satisfied with this situation?

[Satisfied = generally liking the situation]



·        Yes

·        Indifferent

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED






















































F43.  Usual living arrangements (past 3 years):



[Choose arrangements most representative of the past 3 years.  If there is an even split in time between these arrangements, choose the most recent arrangement].



 	With sexual partner and children

	With sexual partner alone

·        With children alone

·        With parents

·        With family

·        With friends

·        Alone

·        Controlled environment

·        No stable arrangement



·        DON’T KNOW

·         RefusedDECLINED





  F4.  In the past 30 days, where have you been living most of the time?  



[DO NOT READ RESPONSE OPTIONS TO THE CONSUMER. SELECT ONLY ONE.]



	OWNED OR RENTED HOUSE, APARTMENT, TRAILER, ROOM

	SOMEONE ELSE’S HOUSE, APARTMENT, TRAILER, ROOM

	HOMELESS (SHELTER, STREET/OUTDOORS, PARK)

	GROUP HOME

	ADULT FOSTER CARE

· TRANSITIONAL LIVING FACILITY

· HOSPITAL (MEDICAL)

· HOSPITAL (PSYCHIATRIC)

· DETOX/INPATIENT OR RESIDENTIAL SUBSTANCE ABUSE TREATMENT FACILITY

	CORRECTIONAL FACILITY (JAIL/PRISON)

	NURSING HOME

	VA HOSPITAL

	VETERAN’S HOME

	MILITARY BASE

	OTHER HOUSED (SPECIFY) _______________________________________________

	DECLINED REFUSED

	DON’T KNOW





F65.  Are you satisfied with these arrangements?



·        Yes

·        Indifferent

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED









































    

































































F76.  Do you live with anyone who has a current alcohol opioid problem?



·        Yes

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED



F87.  Do you live with anyone who uses non-prescribed drugs?



·        Yes

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED





F98.  With whom do you spend most of your free time?



[If a girlfriend/boyfriend is considered as family by patient, then they must refer to them as family throughout this section, and not a friend.]



·        Family

·        Friends

·        Alone



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED



F910.  Are you satisfied spending your free time this way?



[A satisfied response must indicate that the person generally likes the situation described in F98]



·        Yes

·        Indifferent

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED















































































Have you had significant periods of time in which you have experienced serious problems getting along with:



[“Serious problems” mean those that endangered the relationship.  A “problem” requires contact of some sort either by telephone or in person.]







Past 30 days

In Your Life

DECLINED

DON’T KNOW

F180.  Mother











F119.  Father











F1220.  Brother/Sister











F1321.  Sexual Partner/Spouse











F1422.  Children











F1523.  Other Significant Family 

Specify__________________________











F1624.  Close Friends











F1725.  Neighbors











F1826.  Co-workers































































Has anyone abused you?





Past 30 Days

In Your Life

F1927. Emotionally?

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

F208.  Physically?

[Caused you physical harm]

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

F219.  Sexually?

[Forced sexual advances/acts]

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

















F3022.  How many days in the past 30 have you had serious conflicts with your family?  ____



· DON’T KNOW

· DECLINED





F232.  How troubled or bothered have you been in the past 30 days by family problems?



 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW



F324.  How important to you now is treatment or counseling for these family problems?



[Patient is rating his/her need for counseling for family problems, not whether the family would be willing to attend.]



 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW














































































F3125.  How many days in the past 30 have you had serious conflicts with other people (excluding family)?  ____



· DON’T KNOW

· DECLINED





F3326.  How troubled or bothered have you been in the past 30 days by social problems?



 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW



F3527.  How important to you now is treatment or counseling for these social problems?



[Include patient’s need to seek treatment for such social problems as loneliness, inability to socialize, and dissatisfaction with friends.  Patient rating should refer to dissatisfaction, conflicts, or other serious problems.]



 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW




























PSYCHIATRIC STATUS

How many times have you been treated for any psychological or emotional problems:



P1.  In a hospital or inpatient setting?  _____



· DON’T KNOW

· DECLINED



P2.  Outpatient/private patient? _____



[Do not include substance abuse, employment, or family counseling. Treatment episode = a series of more or less continuous visits or treatment days, not the number of visits or treatment days.]



· DON’T KNOW

· DECLINED



















































P3.  Do you receive a pension for a psychiatric disability?



·        Yes

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED













	











Have you had a significant period of time (that was not a direct result of alcoholopioids/other drugs use) in which you have:



		

		Past 30 Days

		In Your Life



		P4.  Experienced serious depression, sadness, hopelessness, loss of interest, difficulty with daily function?

		

		



		P5.  Experienced serious anxiety/tension, uptight, unreasonably worried, inability to feel relaxed?

		

		



		P6.  Experienced hallucinations-saw things or heard voices that were not there?

		

		



		P7.  Experienced trouble understanding, concentrating or remembering?

		

		























For Items P8-P10  patients can have been under the influence of alcohol/drugs	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Confusing, re-write



		

		Past 30 Days

		In Your Life



		P8.  Experienced trouble controlling violent behavior including episodes of rage, or violence?

		

		



		P9.  Experienced serious thoughts of suicide?

[Patient seriously considered a plan for taking his/her life.]



		

		



		P10.  Attempted suicide? 



[Include actual suicidal gestures or attempts]

		

		









Have you had a significant period of time (that was not a direct result of alcoholopioids/other drugs use) in which you have:



		P11.  Been prescribed medication for any psychological or emotional problems?



[Prescribed for the patient by MD.  Record "Yes" if a medication was prescribed even if the patient is not taking it.]

		

		

































\





























P12.  How many days in the past 30 have you experienced these psychological or emotional problems?  ______



         [This refers to problems noted in Questions P4-P10.]



· DON’T KNOW

· DECLINED





P13.  How much have you been troubled or bothered by these psychological or emotional problems in the past 30 days?



[Patient should be rating the problem days from Question P12]



 	Extremely

	Considerably

·        Moderately

·        Slightly

·        Not at all



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW



P14.  How important to you now is treatment for these psychological or emotional problems?



 	Extremely

	Considerably

·        Moderately

·        Slightly

·        Not at all



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW













Modified Colorado Symptom Index



Below is a list of problems that people sometimes have. Please think about how often you experienced certain problems and how much they bothered or distressed you during the past month. For each problem, please pick one answer choice that best describes how often you have had the problem in the past month (30 days).



		

		How often have you experienced these problems?



		

		Not at all

		Once during the month

		Several times during the month

		Several times a week

		At least every day

		DRF

		NA

		DK



		1. How often have you felt nervous, tense, worried, frustrated, or afraid? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		2. How often have you felt depressed? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		3. How often have you felt lonely?

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		4. How often have others told you that you acted "paranoid" or "suspicious"?

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		5. How often did you hear voices, or hear and see things that other people didn’t think were there?

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		6. How often did you have trouble making up your mind about something, like deciding where you wanted to go or what you were going to do, or how to solve a problem? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		7. How often did you have trouble thinking straight or concentrating on something you needed to do (like worrying so much or thinking about problems so much that you can’t remember or focus on other things)? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		8. How often did you feel that your behavior or actions were strange or different from that of other people? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		9. How often did you feel out of place or like you did not fit in? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		10. How often did you forget important things? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		11. How often did you have problems with thinking too fast (thoughts racing)? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		12. How often did you feel suspicious or paranoid? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		13. How often did you feel like hurting or killing yourself? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9



		14. How often have you felt like seriously hurting someone else? 

		0

		1

		2

		3

		4

		7

		8

		9





DRF= DECLINEDRefused, NA = Not applicable, DK = Don’t know












 SOR/TOR Specific Questions	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Opioid specific question for overdose and naloxone need to be included





1. In the past 90 days, how many nights have you spent in an incarceration facility/institution? ____	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Very similar to L22 (30 days)



(An incarceration facility/institution is a federal, state or local jail, prison, or detention facility. Count all new and current individuals that have been recently been released.)



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW



2. In the past 30 days, how many non-fatal opioid overdoses* have you experienced?

(IF ZERO OVERDOSES, ENTER 0)

a. (IF Q4 IS GREATER THAN ZERO) For your last overdose, were you administered Naloxone (Narcan)? Yes/No/Unknown/Decline to answer

b. (IF Q4 IS GREATER THAN ZERO) For your last overdose, was a 911/ambulance/emergency services/Fire & Rescue called? Yes/No/Unknown/Decline to answer

c. (IF Q4 IS GREATER THAN ZERO) For your last overdose, did you receive medical treatment in a hospital (Emergency Room or General Admission)? Yes/No/Unknown/Decline to answer

3. How many times have you overdosed on drugs?      ________	Comment by Moody-Geissler, Stephanie: Needs to be opioid specific
Is this lifetime or 30 days



4. In your lifetime, how many non-fatal opioid overdoses* have you experienced?

(IF ZERO OVERDOSES, ENTER 0) 



5. Do you always carry naloxone to administer in case of an Opioid overdose? Yes/No/Decline to answer



6. Have you been offered Naloxone by your MAT provider? Yes/No/Decline to answer (Overdoses (OD): Requires intervention by someone to recover, not simply sleeping it off, include suicide attempts by OD.)

7. 

8. 	 	DECLINED

9. 	 	DON’T KNOW

10. 



11. [Ask only if client indicated they injected drugs.] In the past 30 days, have you shared syringes/needles or other injection equipment? 



 Yes

  No



  DECLINED

[bookmark: _GoBack]  DON’T KNOW







*Non-Fatal Opioid Overdose: A non-fatal incident where an individual has consumed (ingested/inhaled/injected) opioids resulting in loss of consciousness with respiratory and circulatory compromise requires medical intervention via naloxone administration and/or CPR and/or assisted ventilation













SERVICES PROVIDED

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY STAFF AT EACH INTERVIEW AND SHOULD REFLECT THE SERVICES PROVIDED SINCE THE LAST INTERVIEW WAS CONDUCTED.

 

		Treatment setting 

(Provide number of days for at least one setting)

		

Days

		



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

(Provide number of days prescribed or number of sessions provided for at least one service)

		Days Prescribed

		



		

		

		



		8. Medication assisted treatment

		

		



		

		

		



		For Opioid Use Disorder

		

		



		a. Methadone

		

		No



		b. Buprenorphine – Oral/Sublingual/Buccal

(e.g., Suboxone, buprenorphine/naloxone)

		

		No



		c. Buprenorphine – Injectable (e.g., Sublocade)

		

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



		g. Disulfiram  

		

		No



		h. Acamprosate 

		

		No



		

		Sessions

		



		9. Cognitive Behavioral Therapy

		

		No



		10. Contingency Management

		

		No



		11. Group counseling

		

		No



		12. Individual counseling

		

		No



		13. 12-step facilitation

		

		No



		14. Dialectical behavioral therapy

		

		No



		15. Motivational enhancement therapy

		

		No



		16. Assertive Community Treatment (ACT) 

		

		No



		17. Co-Occurring Treatment/Recovery Services

		

		No



		18. Marriage/Family Therapy

		

		



		19. Other Clinical Services 

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



		2. Child care

		

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



		9. Other Case Management (Specify)___________________

		

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



		8. Other Medical Services (Specify)___________________

		

		No



		

		

		



		After Care Services 

		

		



		1. Continuing Care

		

		No



		2. Relapse Prevention

		

		No



		3. Recovery Coaching

		

		No



		4. Self-Help and Support Groups

		

		No



		5. Spiritual Support

		

		No



		6. Other After Care Services  (Specify) __________________

		

		No



		

		

		



		Education Services

		

		



		1. Substance Use Disorder Education

		

		No



		2. HIV/AIDS Education

		

		No



		3. Viral Hepatitis Education

		

		No



		4. Other Education Services    (Specify) __________________

		

		No







DISCHARGE STATUS



THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY STAFF AT CLIENT DISCHARGE. 



1.	On what date was the patient discharged? 



	

|____|____| / |____|____| / |____|____|____|____|

           Month	        Day	           Year



2.	On what date did the patient last receive services? 



	|____|____| / |____|____| / |____|____|____|____|

          Month	        Day	           Year



3.	What is the patient’s discharge status?



		Administrative Discharge (initiated by agency) 

		Completed episode of Care – No substance use

		Completed episode of Care – Some substance use

		Died 

		Died - Opioid Overdose

		Disengaged - Left Voluntarily Before Completing Treatment

		Incarcerated (NEWLY OR RE-INCARCERATED)

Mutually agreed cessation of treatment

		Withdrew from/DECLINED treatment

		Non-Compliant With Agency's Rules

		No contact within 90 days of last encounter

		Other Funding Stream Identified

		Referred Outside Of Agency - Episode Of Care Completed

		Referred Outside Of Agency – Episode Of Care Not Completed	Expulsion from program

		Incarcerated (NEWLY OR RE-INCARCERATED) 

		Clinically referred out

		Death  (SPECIFY CAUSE OF DEATH IF KNOWN) ________________________

		Other (SPECIFY): __________________________________





From: Kyle Mead
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Subject: Re: URGENT - Please respond (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW
Date: Thursday, October 25, 2018 1:16:36 PM
Attachments: Outlook-v5lto2o0.png

Outlook-cid_image0.png

I would like to reiterate what so many of my colleagues have already stated. The
implementation of an electronic health record should have made data collection and sharing
much easier and it has internally. However, external sharing is incredibly complicated already
and as a small non-profit the time spent on staff dedicated to redundant data entry into
multiple electronic systems is becoming overwhelming.

The human factor of errors as a result of repetitively entering the same information into
multiple systems is neither efficient nor effective. We are already burdened with fixing this
errors that are inevitable with redundancies such as we already experience. 

There simply must be a better way than adding this to our already stretched resources. We
already gather so much of this information and have to enter it into at least 2 systems and often
as many as 4 systems dependent upon the payer and referent. Integration with the state CIMOR
system here in Missouri would be more logical than passing this burden down to the providers
who should be using their resources to provide consumer care. 

Kyle Mead
Vice President of Behavioral Health Services
Heartland Center for Behavioral Change
816 421-6670 ext. 1296
kmead@heartlandcbc.org

From: shauntay McCollough <shauntay@newbeginningscstar.org>
Sent: Tuesday, October 23, 2018 11:05:21 AM
To: 'Bock, Nora'; 'Gardine, Cheryl'; 'Menzies, Suneal'; 'Johnson, Clif'; 'Cori Putz'; 'Geoff Moeller';
lmccallister@placesforpeople.org; 'NCADA - St. Louis - Nichole Dawsey'; 'NCADA St Louis - Jenny
Armbruster'; 'New Beginnings - Freda Theus'; 'Cheung, Chi'; 'New Horizons - Laura Porting'; 'New
Horizons - Shanna Behrens'; 'New Horizons - Stacy Doggett'; 'North Central MO - DeAnna Savage';
'Irvine, Lori'; 'North Central MO - Tammy Floyd'; 'Francis, Lisa'; 'Mieseler, Vicky'; 'Ozarks Medical
Center - Curtis Cook'; 'Ozarks Medical Center - Joy Anderson'; 'Pathways - Amy Blake'; 'Pathways -
Becky Camden'; 'Pathways - Elisabeth Brockman-Knight'; 'Pathways - Gloria Miller'; 'Pathways - Julia
Bozarth'; 'Yach, Kristen'; 'Pathways - Linda Grgurich'; 'Pathways - Mel Fetter'; 'Pathways - Shannon
Crowley-Einsphar'; 'Pathways - Todd Martensen'; 'Foster, Tonie'; 'Greening, Andrew'; 'PFH - Andrew
Schwend'; 'Hutton, Ann'; 'Putz, Cori'; 'PFH - Darlene Harrell'; 'PFH - Jason Hinckley'; 'PFH - Lorinda
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Meyer'; 'PFH - Marilyn Nolan'; 'PFH - Nancy Atwater'; 'PFH - Rhonda Ferguson'; 'PFH - Una Bennett ';
'Phoenix - Laura Cameron'; 'Phoenix - Rhiannon Ross'; 'Phoenix - Teresa Goslin'; 'Phoenix Health
Programs - Tracy McIntyre'; 'Places for People - Diane Maguire'; 'Places for People - Nicole Stewart';
'Bayliff, Scott'; 'Places for People - Tiffany Lacy Clark'; 'Spruell, Sharon'; 'Flory, Alan'; 'ReDiscover -
Elizabeth Deason'; 'ReDiscover - Jennifer Craig'; 'ReDiscover - John Dean'; 'ReDiscover - Lauren Moyer';
'ReDiscover - Marsha Page'; 'Busiek, Gary'; 'Beck, Kimberly'; 'SAMHSA Regional Administrator Region
VII - Kimberly Nelson'; 'Angela Toman, CRPS'; 'Brenda Felkerson'; 'Cathy Schroer BS'; 'Dan Adams MBA';
'Jason W. Gilliam MBA MHA AICP'; 'Storey, Janice'; 'Swope Health - Kortney Carr'; 'Swope Health -
Mark Miller'; 'Holm, Christy'; 'Tri-County - JoAnn Werner'; 'Tri-County - Talina Nelson'; 'Tri-County -
Tom Petrizzo'; 'Truman Medical Center - Barbara Warner'; 'Zaiger, Bethany'; 'Truman Medical Center -
Jodi Gusman'; 'Truman Medical Center - Mark VanMeter'; 'Truman Medical Center - Sharon Freese';
'Turning Point - Catie Franklin'; 'Turning Point - Heather Higgins'; 'Allyson Ashley'; 'Fred Rottnek';
'Menzies, Percy'; 'Arthur Center - Kristin Fishback'; 'Arthur Center - Rachel Ward'; 'BASIC - Keturah
Ibrahim'; 'BASIC - Kirby Anderson-El'; 'Johnson, Lola'; 'BASIC - Michael Batchman'; 'BASIC - Robin
Smith'; 'Singleton, Yulonda'; 'BHR Worldwide - Angela Tate'; 'BHR Worldwide - Bart Andrews'; 'BJC -
Karen Miller'; 'Bootheel Counseling - David Terrell'; 'Kassinger, Micaela'; 'Brandon, Teresa'; 'Bridgeway
- Craig Miner'; 'Bridgeway - Jack Barnett'; 'Morrison, Mike'; 'Burch, Mitzi'; 'Burell - CJ Davis'; 'Burrell -
Cristin Martinez'; 'Burrell Center - Adam Andreassen'; 'Burrell Center - Austin Burdine'; 'Burrell Center -
Bethany Silliman'; 'Burrell Center - Brent Sugg'; 'Burrell Center - Christopher Orr'; 'Burrell Center -
Denise Mills'; 'Burrell Center - Gina Burroughs'; 'Burrell Center - Hunter Houston'; 'Burrell Center -
Lauren Pratt'; 'Burrell Center - Leslie Corbiere'; 'Gass, Mathew'; 'Burrell Center - Megan Steen'; 'Burrell
Center - Sally Gibson'; 'Burrell Center - Shae Hitchock'; 'Burrell Center - Stephanie March-Hopkins';
'Burrell Center - Stephen Koch'; 'Burrell Center - Wes Starlin'; 'Camp, Timothy'; 'CCC - Brenda
Robertson'; 'CCC - Lonnie Lusk'; 'Ridenour, Brad'; 'Clark CMHC - Debbie Schoon'; 'Beatie, Laura'; 'Clark
Mental Health - Christy Henley'; 'CMHC - Jenny Wright'; 'Anderson, Carl'; 'CMHS - Jenny Duncan';
'CMHS - Julie Pratt'; 'CMHS - Tara Yardley'; 'CommCARE - Erica Immenschuh'; 'Compass Health /
McCambridge - Angela Allphin'; 'COMTREA - Agnes Jos'; 'COMTREA - Andrea Cuneio'; 'COMTREA -
Jonathan Cochran'; 'COMTREA - Rachael Bersdale'; 'Susan Curfman'; 'Crider - Carrie Rigdon'; 'Crider -
Laura Heebner'; 'Crider - Nancy Gongaware'; 'Crider - Victoria Walker'; 'Family Guidance - Elizabeth
Sprung'; 'Family Guidance - Kristina Hannon'; 'Family Guidance - Rachel Evans'; 'Family Guidance -
Raven Hutchison'; 'Family Guidance - Rebekah Quillin'; 'Family Guidance - Robin Reynozo'; 'Family Self
Help - Alison Malinowski Sunday'; 'Family Self Help - Gwen Ewing'; 'FCC - Ashley Singleton'; 'FCC -
Kelley Wilbanks'; 'FCC - Melissa Weatherwax'; 'FCC - Randy Ray'; 'FCC - Shawn Sando'; 'First Call - Susan
Whitmore'; 'Freeman Health - Melissa Moore'; 'Freeman Health - Spencer Ellis'; 'Feaman, Kimberly';
'Doherty, Steve'; 'Hannibal Council dba Turning Point - Jennifer Wilson'; 'Hannibal Council dba Turning
Point - Kettisha Hodges'; Carolyn Ross; Kyle Mead; 'Hinton, Tineen'; 'Hopewell Center - Barbara
Tucker'; 'Butler, Dwayne'; 'Hopewell Center - Lynette Jones'; 'Franklin, Wil'; 'Higginbotham, Jennifer';
'Independence Center - Jocelyn Hertich'; 'Independence Center - Paul Schoenig'; 'Karl, Barbara';
'Lafayette House - Teddy Brown'; 'Mark Twain'; 'McMahon, Cory'; 'Midwest Assessment - Catie Platt';
'Mineral Area CPRC - Karen Ferrell'; 'Mineral Area CPRC - Vicky Winick'; 'Terry Trafton'; 'Beck,
Kimberly'; 'Busiek, Gary'; 'eydie caughron'; 'CMHC - Jerry Morris'; 'CMHC - Kate Hogsett'; 'CMHC - Nate
Gulliford'; 'CMHC - Terri Morris'; 'Lafayette House - Deb Allman'; 'Lafayette House - Teddy Brown';
'Moore, Jonathan'; 'Salvation Army - TSA Midland Contracts'; 'Turning Point - Gary Stoner'; 'Turning
Point - John Pruett'; 'Turning Point - Virginia Frese'; 'Westend Clinic - Pamela Byes'; 'Miller, Oval';
'Carter, Hardy'; 'CMHC - Cindy Brannan'; 'CMHC - Jerry Morris'; 'Swinfard, Tim'; 'Comprehensive -
Jenny Miller'; 'Pigg, Margo'; 'Family Guidance - Garry Hammond'; 'Jackson, Derek'; 'Brown, Joshua';



'FCC - Ken Tombley'; 'FCC - Misty Brazel'; 'FCC - Noble Shaver'; 'Parrigon, Mary'; 'Gibson Center - John
Gary'; 'Payden, Vernon'; 'Gibson Recovery - Ryan Essex'; 'Gibson Recovery - Sherry Eakers'; 'Camp,
Timothy'; 'Preferred - Pam Leyhe'; 'Brawner, Paula'; 'Queen of Peace - Clara Stevenson'; 'Tri-County
MHS - Jan Pool'; 'Truman Medical - Douglas Burgess'; 'Carter, Wardell'
Cc: 'Brent McGinty'; ''Emily Conde''; 'Rembecki, Mark'; 'Cook, Natalie'; 'Turner, Rhonda'; 'Rudder,
Timothy'; 'Smyser, Melissa'; 'Blume, Susan'
Subject: RE: URGENT - Please respond (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement
—NEW
 
I hope and pray that this is not something that will be implemented here in Missouri.  Our facility along
with others are doing a greater job than just a year ago with the tools that we have now and adding
additional data request will only cause the loss of consumer participation along with loss of billing due
to a non reimbursable additional questionnaire.  I understand the need for the data but, this seems to
be more about numbers and data instead of the actual service to the consumer.  Thank you for your
time and I hope the response’s from myself and others will make a direct impact on the decisions
being made.

Shauntay McCollough B.S.
Chief Executive Officer
New Beginnings C-STAR Inc.
1027 S. Vandeventer, Floor 3
St. Louis, MO  63110
PH: (314) 367-8989 Ext. 254
FX: (314) 367-2188
EM: shauntay@newbeginningscstar.org
CN: (314) 757-0106

Mathew 20:16  

-----Original Message-----
From: Bock, Nora [mailto:Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2018 1:04 PM
To: Gardine, Cheryl; Menzies, Suneal; Johnson, Clif; Cori Putz (cmoore@pfh.org); Geoff Moeller;
lmccallister@placesforpeople.org; NCADA - St. Louis - Nichole Dawsey; NCADA St Louis - Jenny
Armbruster; New Beginnings - Freda Theus; McCollough, Shauntay; Cheung, Chi; New Horizons - Laura
Porting; New Horizons - Shanna Behrens; New Horizons - Stacy Doggett; North Central MO - DeAnna
Savage; Irvine, Lori; North Central MO - Tammy Floyd; Francis, Lisa; Mieseler, Vicky; Ozarks Medical
Center - Curtis Cook; Ozarks Medical Center - Joy Anderson; Pathways - Amy Blake; Pathways - Becky
Camden; Pathways - Elisabeth Brockman-Knight; Pathways - Gloria Miller; Pathways - Julia Bozarth;
Yach, Kristen; Pathways - Linda Grgurich; Pathways - Mel Fetter; Pathways - Shannon Crowley-
Einsphar; Pathways - Todd Martensen; Foster, Tonie; Greening, Andrew; PFH - Andrew Schwend;
Hutton, Ann; Putz, Cori; PFH - Darlene Harrell; PFH - Jason Hinckley; PFH - Lorinda Meyer; PFH -
Marilyn Nolan; PFH - Nancy Atwater; PFH - Rhonda Ferguson; PFH - Una Bennett ; Phoenix - Laura
Cameron; Phoenix - Rhiannon Ross; Phoenix - Teresa Goslin; Phoenix Health Programs - Tracy

mailto:Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov


McIntyre; Places for People - Diane Maguire; Places for People - Nicole Stewart; Bayliff, Scott; Places
for People - Tiffany Lacy Clark; Spruell, Sharon; Flory, Alan; ReDiscover - Elizabeth Deason; ReDiscover -
Jennifer Craig; ReDiscover - John Dean; ReDiscover - Lauren Moyer; ReDiscover - Marsha Page; Busiek,
Gary; Beck, Kimberly; SAMHSA Regional Administrator Region VII - Kimberly Nelson; Angela Toman,
CRPS; Brenda Felkerson; Cathy Schroer BS; Dan Adams MBA; Jason W. Gilliam MBA MHA AICP; Storey,
Janice; Swope Health - Kortney Carr; Swope Health - Mark Miller; Holm, Christy; Tri-County - JoAnn
Werner; Tri-County - Talina Nelson; Tri-County - Tom Petrizzo; Truman Medical Center - Barbara
Warner; Zaiger, Bethany; Truman Medical Center - Jodi Gusman; Truman Medical Center - Mark
VanMeter; Truman Medical Center - Sharon Freese; Turning Point - Catie Franklin; Turning Point -
Heather Higgins; Allyson Ashley; Fred Rottnek; Menzies, Percy; Arthur Center - Kristin Fishback; Arthur
Center - Rachel Ward; BASIC - Keturah Ibrahim; BASIC - Kirby Anderson-El; Johnson, Lola; BASIC -
Michael Batchman; BASIC - Robin Smith; Singleton, Yulonda; BHR Worldwide - Angela Tate; BHR
Worldwide - Bart Andrews; BJC - Karen Miller; Bootheel Counseling - David Terrell; Kassinger, Micaela;
Brandon, Teresa; Bridgeway - Craig Miner; Bridgeway - Jack Barnett; Morrison, Mike; Burch, Mitzi;
Burell - CJ Davis; Burrell - Cristin Martinez; Burrell Center - Adam Andreassen; Burrell Center - Austin
Burdine; Burrell Center - Bethany Silliman; Burrell Center - Brent Sugg; Burrell Center - Christopher
Orr; Burrell Center - Denise Mills; Burrell Center - Gina Burroughs; Burrell Center - Hunter Houston;
Burrell Center - Lauren Pratt; Burrell Center - Leslie Corbiere; Gass, Mathew; Burrell Center - Megan
Steen; Burrell Center - Sally Gibson; Burrell Center - Shae Hitchock; Burrell Center - Stephanie March-
Hopkins; Burrell Center - Stephen Koch; Burrell Center - Wes Starlin; Camp, Timothy; CCC - Brenda
Robertson; CCC - Lonnie Lusk; Ridenour, Brad; Clark CMHC - Debbie Schoon; Beatie, Laura; Clark
Mental Health - Christy Henley; CMHC - Jenny Wright; Anderson, Carl; CMHS - Jenny Duncan; CMHS -
Julie Pratt; CMHS - Tara Yardley; CommCARE - Erica Immenschuh; Compass Health / McCambridge -
Angela Allphin; COMTREA - Agnes Jos; COMTREA - Andrea Cuneio; COMTREA - Jonathan Cochran;
COMTREA - Rachael Bersdale; Susan Curfman; Crider - Carrie Rigdon; Crider - Laura Heebner; Crider -
Nancy Gongaware; Crider - Victoria Walker; Family Guidance - Elizabeth Sprung; Family Guidance -
Kristina Hannon; Family Guidance - Rachel Evans; Family Guidance - Raven Hutchison; Family Guidance
- Rebekah Quillin; Family Guidance - Robin Reynozo; Family Self Help - Alison Malinowski Sunday;
Family Self Help - Gwen Ewing; FCC - Ashley Singleton; FCC - Kelley Wilbanks; FCC - Melissa
Weatherwax; FCC - Randy Ray; FCC - Shawn Sando; First Call - Susan Whitmore; Freeman Health -
Melissa Moore; Freeman Health - Spencer Ellis; Feaman, Kimberly; Doherty, Steve; Hannibal Council
dba Turning Point - Jennifer Wilson; Hannibal Council dba Turning Point - Kettisha Hodges; Heartland
Center - Carolyn Ross; Heartland Center - Kyle Mead; Hinton, Tineen; Hopewell Center - Barbara
Tucker; Butler, Dwayne; Hopewell Center - Lynette Jones; Franklin, Wil; Higginbotham, Jennifer;
Independence Center - Jocelyn Hertich; Independence Center - Paul Schoenig; Karl, Barbara; Lafayette
House - Teddy Brown; Mark Twain; McMahon, Cory; Midwest Assessment - Catie Platt; Mineral Area
CPRC - Karen Ferrell; Mineral Area CPRC - Vicky Winick; Terry Trafton (ttrafton@CommCARE1.org);
Beck, Kimberly; Busiek, Gary; eydie caughron; CMHC - Jerry Morris; CMHC - Kate Hogsett; CMHC - Nate
Gulliford; CMHC - Terri Morris; Lafayette House - Deb Allman; Lafayette House - Teddy Brown; Moore,
Jonathan; Salvation Army - TSA Midland Contracts; Turning Point - Gary Stoner; Turning Point - John
Pruett; Turning Point - Virginia Frese; Westend Clinic - Pamela Byes; Miller, Oval; Carter, Hardy; CMHC
- Cindy Brannan (cmhc.nmh.cbrannan@gmail.com); CMHC - Jerry Morris (cmhcjerry@sbcglobal.net);
Swinfard, Tim; Comprehensive - Jenny Miller (jemil@thecmhs.com); Pigg, Margo; Family Guidance -
Garry Hammond (ghammond@FGCnow.org); Jackson, Derek; Brown, Joshua; FCC - Ken Tombley
(ken.tombley@fccinc.org); FCC - Misty Brazel (mistyb@fccinc.org); 'FCC - Noble Shaver'; Parrigon,
Mary; Gibson Center - John Gary (garyj@gibsonrecovery.org); Payden, Vernon; Gibson Recovery - Ryan



Essex (essexr@gibsonrecovery.org); Gibson Recovery - Sherry Eakers (eakerss@gibsonrecovery.org);
McCollough, Shauntay; Camp, Timothy; Preferred - Pam Leyhe (pleyhe@pfh.org); Brawner, Paula;
Queen of Peace - Clara Stevenson; Tri-County MHS - Jan Pool (janp@tri-countymhs.org); Truman
Medical - Douglas Burgess (douglas.burgess@tmcmed.org); Carter, Wardell
Cc: 'Brent McGinty'; 'Emily Conde' (econde@mocoalition.org); Rembecki, Mark; Cook, Natalie; Turner,
Rhonda; Rudder, Timothy; Smyser, Melissa; Blume, Susan
Subject: RE: URGENT - Please respond (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement
—NEW

Thanks, Cheryl.

Everyone: Again, please respond formally via the process outlined in the e-mail – SAMHSA needs to
hear from you!

From: cheryl gardine <cheryl@centerforlifesolutions.org>
Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2018 1:02 PM
To: Menzies, Suneal <sunealmenzies@arcamidwest.com>; Johnson, Clif <cjohnson@semobh.org>;
Bock, Nora <Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov>; Cori Putz (cmoore@pfh.org) <cmoore@pfh.org>; Geoff
Moeller <gmoeller@fchcstl.org>; lmccallister@placesforpeople.org; NCADA - St. Louis - Nichole
Dawsey <ndawsey@ncada-stl.org>; NCADA St Louis - Jenny Armbruster <JArmbruster@ncada-stl.org>;
New Beginnings - Freda Theus <fredatheusnb@gmail.com>; McCollough, Shauntay
<Shauntay@newbeginningscstar.org>; Cheung, Chi <chi.c@mo-newhorizons.com>; New Horizons -
Laura Porting <LPorting@mo-newhorizons.com>; New Horizons - Shanna Behrens <sbehrens@mo-
newhorizons.com>; New Horizons - Stacy Doggett <doggett@mo-newhorizons.com>; North Central
MO - DeAnna Savage <deanna@ncmmh.org>; Irvine, Lori <lori@ncmmh.org>; North Central MO -
Tammy Floyd <tfloyd77@gmail.com>; Francis, Lisa <lkfrancis@freemanhealth.com>; Mieseler, Vicky
<vlmieseler@freemanhealth.com>; Ozarks Medical Center - Curtis Cook
<Curtis.Cook@ozarksmedicalcenter.com>; Ozarks Medical Center - Joy Anderson
<Joy.Anderson@ozarksmedicalcenter.com>; Pathways - Amy Blake <ablake@compasshn.org>;
Pathways - Becky Camden <bcamden@compasshn.org>; Pathways - Elisabeth Brockman-Knight
<eknight@compasshn.org>; Pathways - Gloria Miller <gmiller@compasshn.org>; Pathways - Julia
Bozarth <jbozarth@compasshn.org>; Yach, Kristen <kyach@compasshn.org>; Pathways - Linda
Grgurich <lgrgurich@compasshn.org>; Pathways - Mel Fetter <melf@compasshn.org>; Pathways -
Shannon Crowley-Einsphar <seinspahr@compasshn.org>; Pathways - Todd Martensen
<tmartensen@compasshn.org>; Foster, Tonie <tfoster@compasshn.org>; Greening, Andrew
<agreening@pfh.org>; PFH - Andrew Schwend <aschwend@pfh.org>; Hutton, Ann
<ahutton@pfh.org>; Putz, Cori <cputz@pfh.org>; PFH - Darlene Harrell <dharrell@pfh.org>; PFH -
Jason Hinckley <jhinckley@pfh.org>; PFH - Lorinda Meyer <lomeyer@pfh.org>; PFH - Marilyn Nolan
<mnolan@pfh.org>; PFH - Nancy Atwater <natwater@pfh.org>; PFH - Rhonda Ferguson
<rferguson@pfh.org>; PFH - Una Bennett <ubennett@pfh.org>; Phoenix - Laura Cameron
<lcameron@phoenixhealthprograms.com>; Phoenix - Rhiannon Ross
<rross@phoenixhealthprograms.com>; Phoenix - Teresa Goslin
<tgoslin@phoenixhealthprograms.com>; Phoenix Health Programs - Tracy McIntyre
<tmcintyre@phoenixhealthprograms.com>; Places for People - Diane Maguire
<dmaguire@placesforpeople.org>; Places for People - Nicole Stewart



<nstewart@placesforpeople.org>; Bayliff, Scott <sbayliff@placesforpeople.org>; Places for People -
Tiffany Lacy Clark <tclark@placesforpeople.org>; Spruell, Sharon <sspruell@ccstl.org>; Flory, Alan
<alflory@rediscovermh.org>; ReDiscover - Elizabeth Deason <edeason@rediscovermh.org>;
ReDiscover - Jennifer Craig <jcraig@rediscovermh.org>; ReDiscover - John Dean
<jadean@rediscovermh.org>; ReDiscover - Lauren Moyer <lmoyer@rediscovermh.org>; ReDiscover -
Marsha Page <mjpage@rediscovermh.org>; Busiek, Gary <gary_busiek@usc.salvationarmy.org>; Beck,
Kimberly <kimberly_beck@usc.salvationarmy.org>; SAMHSA Regional Administrator Region VII -
Kimberly Nelson <Kimberly.Nelson@samhsa.hhs.gov>; Angela Toman, CRPS <atoman@semobh.org>;
Brenda Felkerson <bfelkerson@semobh.org>; Cathy Schroer BS <cschroer@semobh.org>; Dan Adams
MBA <dadams@semobh.org>; Jason W. Gilliam MBA MHA AICP <jgilliam@semobh.org>; Storey, Janice
<janices@tri-countymhs.org>; Swope Health - Kortney Carr <KCarr@swopehealth.org>; Swope Health
- Mark Miller <MMiller@swopehealth.org>; Holm, Christy <christieh@tri-countymhs.org>; Tri-County -
JoAnn Werner <joannw@tri-countymhs.org>; Tri-County - Talina Nelson <talinan@tri-countymhs.org>;
Tri-County - Tom Petrizzo <tomp@tri-countymhs.org>; Truman Medical Center - Barbara Warner
<Barbara.Warner@tmcmed.org>; Zaiger, Bethany <bethany.zaiger@tmcmed.org>; Truman Medical
Center - Jodi Gusman <Jodi.Gusman@tmcmed.org>; Truman Medical Center - Mark VanMeter
<mark.vanmeter@tmcmed.org>; Truman Medical Center - Sharon Freese
<Sharon.Freese@tmcmed.org>; Turning Point - Catie Franklin <cfranklin@turningpointrc.org>; Turning
Point - Heather Higgins <hhiggins@turningpointrc.org>; Allyson Ashley <allyson.ashley1@gmail.com>;
Fred Rottnek <frottnek@arcamidwest.com>; Menzies, Percy <percymenzies@arcamidwest.com>;
Arthur Center - Kristin Fishback <kfishback@arthurcenter.com>; Arthur Center - Rachel Ward
<rward@arthurcenter.com>; BASIC - Keturah Ibrahim <kibra@sbcglobal.net>; BASIC - Kirby Anderson-
El <kirbya@basicinc.org>; Johnson, Lola <lolaj@basicinc.org>; BASIC - Michael Batchman
<michaelb@basicinc.org>; BASIC - Robin Smith <robins@basicinc.org>; Singleton, Yulonda
<yulondas@basicinc.org>; BHR Worldwide - Angela Tate <atate@bhrworldwide.com>; BHR Worldwide
- Bart Andrews <bandrews@bhrworldwide.com>; BJC - Karen Miller <kfm6775@bjc.org>; Bootheel
Counseling - David Terrell <dterrell@bootheelcounseling.com>; Kassinger, Micaela
<mkassinger@bootheelcounseling.com>; Brandon, Teresa <Teresa.brandon@bjc.org>; Bridgeway -
Craig Miner <cminer@bridgewaybh.com>; Bridgeway - Jack Barnett <jbarnett@bridgewaybh.com>;
Morrison, Mike <MMorrison@bridgewaybh.com>; Burch, Mitzi <mitzi.burch@burrellcenter.com>;
Burell - CJ Davis <cj.davis@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell - Cristin Martinez
<Cristin.Martinez@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Adam Andreassen
<adam.andreassen@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Austin Burdine
<austin.burdine@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Bethany Silliman
<bethany.silliman@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Brent Sugg <Brent.Sugg@burrellcenter.com>;
Burrell Center - Christopher Orr <christopher.orr@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Denise Mills
<Denise.Mills@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Gina Burroughs
<Gina.Burroughs@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Hunter Houston
<Hunter.Houston@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Lauren Pratt
<lauren.pratt@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Leslie Corbiere
<leslie.corbiere@burrellcenter.com>; Gass, Mathew <mathew.gass@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell
Center - Megan Steen <Megan.Steen@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Sally Gibson
<sally.gibson@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Shae Hitchock
<shae.hitchcock@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Stephanie March-Hopkins <stephanie.march-
hopkins@burrellcenter.com>; Burrell Center - Stephen Koch <stephen.koch@burrellcenter.com>;
Burrell Center - Wes Starlin <wesley.starlin@burrellcenter.com>; Camp, Timothy



<tdcamp@freemanhealth.com>; CCC - Brenda Robertson <brobertson@cccntr.com>; CCC - Lonnie
Lusk <llusk@cccntr.com>; Ridenour, Brad <ridenourb@clarkmentalhealth.com>; Clark CMHC - Debbie
Schoon <schoond@clarkmentalhealth.com>; Beatie, Laura <beatiel@clarkmentalhealth.com>; Clark
Mental Health - Christy Henley <henleyc@clarkmentalhealth.com>; CMHC - Jenny Wright
<cmhc.nmh.jwright@gmail.com>; Anderson, Carl <canderson@thecmhs.com>; CMHS - Jenny Duncan
<jduncan@thecmhs.com>; CMHS - Julie Pratt <jpratt@thecmhs.com>; CMHS - Tara Yardley
<tyardley@thecmhs.com>; CommCARE - Erica Immenschuh <Erica.Immenschuh@commcare1.org>;
Compass Health / McCambridge - Angela Allphin <aallphin@compasshn.org>; COMTREA - Agnes Jos
<AJos@comtrea.org>; COMTREA - Andrea Cuneio <ACuneio@comtrea.org>; COMTREA - Jonathan
Cochran <JCochran@comtrea.org>; COMTREA - Rachael Bersdale <RBersdale@comtrea.org>; Susan
Curfman <scurfman@comtrea.org>; Crider - Carrie Rigdon <crigdon@compasshn.org>; Crider - Laura
Heebner <lheebner@compasshn.org>; Crider - Nancy Gongaware <ngongaware@compasshn.org>;
Crider - Victoria Walker <vwalker@compasshn.org>; Family Guidance - Elizabeth Sprung
<esprung@FGCnow.org>; Family Guidance - Kristina Hannon <khannon@FGCnow.org>; Family
Guidance - Rachel Evans <revans@fgcnow.org>; Family Guidance - Raven Hutchison
<RHutchison@FGCnow.org>; Family Guidance - Rebekah Quillin <rquillin@fgcnow.org>; Family
Guidance - Robin Reynozo <robinr@fgcnow.org>; Family Self Help - Alison Malinowski Sunday
<alisonmsunday@lafayettehouse.org>; Family Self Help - Gwen Ewing <mewingg@yahoo.com>; FCC -
Ashley Singleton <ashleys@fccinc.org>; FCC - Kelley Wilbanks <kwilbanks@fccinc.org>; FCC - Melissa
Weatherwax <melissaw@fccinc.org>; FCC - Randy Ray <randy@fccinc.org>; FCC - Shawn Sando
<sando@fccinc.org>; First Call - Susan Whitmore <whitmore@firstcallkc.org>; Freeman Health -
Melissa Moore <mlmoore@freemanhealth.com>; Freeman Health - Spencer Ellis
<slellis@freemanhealth.com>; Feaman, Kimberly <klfeaman@gatewayfoundation.org>; Doherty, Steve
<sdoherty@gatewayfoundation.org>; Hannibal Council dba Turning Point - Jennifer Wilson
<jwilson@turningpointrc.org>; Hannibal Council dba Turning Point - Kettisha Hodges
<k_hodges5@yahoo.com>; Heartland Center - Carolyn Ross <cross@heartlandcbc.org>; Heartland
Center - Kyle Mead <kmead@heartlandcbc.org>; Hinton, Tineen <tineen.hinton@bjc.org>; Hopewell
Center - Barbara Tucker <btucker@hopewellcenter.com>; Butler, Dwayne <dbutler@phcenters.com>;
Hopewell Center - Lynette Jones <lyjones@hopewellcenter.com>; Franklin, Wil
<wfranklin@phcenters.com>; Higginbotham, Jennifer <jhigginbotham@independencecenter.org>;
Independence Center - Jocelyn Hertich <JHertich@independencecenter.org>; Independence Center -
Paul Schoenig <PSchoenig@independencecenter.org>; Karl, Barbara <Barbara.Karl@bjc.org>;
Lafayette House - Teddy Brown <tlbrown02@yahoo.com>; Mark Twain <mcantrell@mtbh.org>;
McMahon, Cory <Cory.McMahon@dmh.mo.gov>; Midwest Assessment - Catie Platt
<cplatt@midwestassessment.com>; Mineral Area CPRC - Karen Ferrell <karen.ferrell@macprc.com>;
Mineral Area CPRC - Vicky Winick <vicky.winick@macprc.com>; Terry Trafton
(ttrafton@CommCARE1.org) <ttrafton@CommCARE1.org>; Beck, Kimberly
<kimberly_beck@usc.salvationarmy.org>; Busiek, Gary <gary_busiek@usc.salvationarmy.org>; eydie
caughron <eydie@centerforlifesolutions.org>; CMHC - Jerry Morris <cmhcjerry@sbdglobal.net>;
CMHC - Kate Hogsett <khogsett.ccps@gmail.com>; CMHC - Nate Gulliford
<nategulliford@hotmail.com>; CMHC - Terri Morris <terrikmorris@sbcglobal.net>; Lafayette House -
Deb Allman <deballman@lafayettehouse.org>; Lafayette House - Teddy Brown
<teddybrown@lafayettehouse.org>; Moore, Jonathan <adam_moore@usc.salvationarmy.org>;
Salvation Army - TSA Midland Contracts <tsa_midlandcontracts@usc.salvationarmy.org>; Turning
Point - Gary Stoner <gstoner@turningpointrc.org>; Turning Point - John Pruett
<jpruett@turningpointrc.org>; Turning Point - Virginia Frese <vfrese@turningpointrc.org>; Westend



Clinic - Pamela Byes <sugarbaby53@msn.com>; Miller, Oval <ovalsr@sbcglobal.net>; Carter, Hardy
<basic@basicinc.org>; CMHC - Cindy Brannan (cmhc.nmh.cbrannan@gmail.com)
<cmhc.nmh.cbrannan@gmail.com>; CMHC - Jerry Morris (cmhcjerry@sbcglobal.net)
<cmhcjerry@sbcglobal.net>; Swinfard, Tim <tswinfard@compasshn.org>; Comprehensive - Jenny
Miller (jemil@thecmhs.com) <jemil@thecmhs.com>; Pigg, Margo <mpigg@comtrea.org>; Family
Guidance - Garry Hammond (ghammond@FGCnow.org) <ghammond@FGCnow.org>; Jackson, Derek
<derek.jackson@fccinc.org>; Brown, Joshua <joshua.brown@fccinc.org>; FCC - Ken Tombley
(ken.tombley@fccinc.org) <ken.tombley@fccinc.org>; FCC - Misty Brazel (mistyb@fccinc.org)
<mistyb@fccinc.org>; 'FCC - Noble Shaver' <nobles@fccinc.org>; Parrigon, Mary
<mbparrigon@freemanhealth.com>; Gibson Center - John Gary (garyj@gibsonrecovery.org)
<garyj@gibsonrecovery.org>; Payden, Vernon <paydenv@gibsonrecovery.org>; Gibson Recovery -
Ryan Essex (essexr@gibsonrecovery.org) <essexr@gibsonrecovery.org>; Gibson Recovery - Sherry
Eakers (eakerss@gibsonrecovery.org) <eakerss@gibsonrecovery.org>; McCollough, Shauntay
<Shauntay@newbeginningscstar.org>; Camp, Timothy <tdcamp@freemanhealth.com>; Preferred -
Pam Leyhe (pleyhe@pfh.org) <pleyhe@pfh.org>; Brawner, Paula <pbrawner@pfh.org>; Queen of
Peace - Clara Stevenson <cstevenson@ccstl.org>; Tri-County MHS - Jan Pool (janp@tri-countymhs.org)
<janp@tri-countymhs.org>; Truman Medical - Douglas Burgess (douglas.burgess@tmcmed.org)
<douglas.burgess@tmcmed.org>; Carter, Wardell <Westendclinic45@yahoo.com>
Cc: 'Brent McGinty' <BMcGinty@mocoalition.org>; 'Emily Conde' (econde@mocoalition.org)
<econde@mocoalition.org>; Rembecki, Mark <Mark.Rembecki@dmh.mo.gov>; Cook, Natalie
<Natalie.Cook@dmh.mo.gov>; Turner, Rhonda <Rhonda.Turner@dmh.mo.gov>; Rudder, Timothy
<Timothy.Rudder@dmh.mo.gov>; Smyser, Melissa <Melissa.Smyser@dmh.mo.gov>; Blume, Susan
<Susan.Blume@dmh.mo.gov>
Subject: RE: URGENT - Please respond (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement
—NEW

I agree with the others that this would create a lot of extra time.

From: Suneal Menzies
<sunealmenzies@arcamidwest.com<mailto:sunealmenzies@arcamidwest.com>>
Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2018 12:53 PM
To: Clif Johnson CRAADC <cjohnson@semobh.org<mailto:cjohnson@semobh.org>>; Bock, Nora
<Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov>>; Cori Putz
(cmoore@pfh.org<mailto:cmoore@pfh.org>) <cmoore@pfh.org<mailto:cmoore@pfh.org>>; Geoff
Moeller <gmoeller@fchcstl.org<mailto:gmoeller@fchcstl.org>>;
lmccallister@placesforpeople.org<mailto:lmccallister@placesforpeople.org>; NCADA - St. Louis -
Nichole Dawsey <ndawsey@ncada-stl.org<mailto:ndawsey@ncada-stl.org>>; NCADA St Louis - Jenny
Armbruster <JArmbruster@ncada-stl.org<mailto:JArmbruster@ncada-stl.org>>; New Beginnings -
Freda Theus <fredatheusnb@gmail.com<mailto:fredatheusnb@gmail.com>>; McCollough, Shauntay
<Shauntay@newbeginningscstar.org<mailto:Shauntay@newbeginningscstar.org>>; Cheung, Chi
<chi.c@mo-newhorizons.com<mailto:chi.c@mo-newhorizons.com>>; New Horizons - Laura Porting
<LPorting@mo-newhorizons.com<mailto:LPorting@mo-newhorizons.com>>; New Horizons - Shanna
Behrens <sbehrens@mo-newhorizons.com<mailto:sbehrens@mo-newhorizons.com>>; New Horizons
- Stacy Doggett <doggett@mo-newhorizons.com<mailto:doggett@mo-newhorizons.com>>; North
Central MO - DeAnna Savage <deanna@ncmmh.org<mailto:deanna@ncmmh.org>>; Irvine, Lori
<lori@ncmmh.org<mailto:lori@ncmmh.org>>; North Central MO - Tammy Floyd



<tfloyd77@gmail.com<mailto:tfloyd77@gmail.com>>; Francis, Lisa
<lkfrancis@freemanhealth.com<mailto:lkfrancis@freemanhealth.com>>; Mieseler, Vicky
<vlmieseler@freemanhealth.com<mailto:vlmieseler@freemanhealth.com>>; Ozarks Medical Center -
Curtis Cook
<Curtis.Cook@ozarksmedicalcenter.com<mailto:Curtis.Cook@ozarksmedicalcenter.com>>; Ozarks
Medical Center - Joy Anderson
<Joy.Anderson@ozarksmedicalcenter.com<mailto:Joy.Anderson@ozarksmedicalcenter.com>>;
Pathways - Amy Blake <ablake@compasshn.org<mailto:ablake@compasshn.org>>; Pathways - Becky
Camden <bcamden@compasshn.org<mailto:bcamden@compasshn.org>>; Pathways - Elisabeth
Brockman-Knight <eknight@compasshn.org<mailto:eknight@compasshn.org>>; Pathways - Gloria
Miller <gmiller@compasshn.org<mailto:gmiller@compasshn.org>>; Pathways - Julia Bozarth
<jbozarth@compasshn.org<mailto:jbozarth@compasshn.org>>; Yach, Kristen
<kyach@compasshn.org<mailto:kyach@compasshn.org>>; Pathways - Linda Grgurich
<lgrgurich@compasshn.org<mailto:lgrgurich@compasshn.org>>; Pathways - Mel Fetter
<melf@compasshn.org<mailto:melf@compasshn.org>>; Pathways - Shannon Crowley-Einsphar
<seinspahr@compasshn.org<mailto:seinspahr@compasshn.org>>; Pathways - Todd Martensen
<tmartensen@compasshn.org<mailto:tmartensen@compasshn.org>>; Foster, Tonie
<tfoster@compasshn.org<mailto:tfoster@compasshn.org>>; Greening, Andrew
<agreening@pfh.org<mailto:agreening@pfh.org>>; PFH - Andrew Schwend
<aschwend@pfh.org<mailto:aschwend@pfh.org>>; Hutton, Ann
<ahutton@pfh.org<mailto:ahutton@pfh.org>>; Putz, Cori <cputz@pfh.org<mailto:cputz@pfh.org>>;
PFH - Darlene Harrell <dharrell@pfh.org<mailto:dharrell@pfh.org>>; PFH - Jason Hinckley
<jhinckley@pfh.org<mailto:jhinckley@pfh.org>>; PFH - Lorinda Meyer
<lomeyer@pfh.org<mailto:lomeyer@pfh.org>>; PFH - Marilyn Nolan
<mnolan@pfh.org<mailto:mnolan@pfh.org>>; PFH - Nancy Atwater
<natwater@pfh.org<mailto:natwater@pfh.org>>; PFH - Rhonda Ferguson
<rferguson@pfh.org<mailto:rferguson@pfh.org>>; PFH - Una Bennett
<ubennett@pfh.org<mailto:ubennett@pfh.org>>; Phoenix - Laura Cameron
<lcameron@phoenixhealthprograms.com<mailto:lcameron@phoenixhealthprograms.com>>; Phoenix
- Rhiannon Ross <rross@phoenixhealthprograms.com<mailto:rross@phoenixhealthprograms.com>>;
Phoenix - Teresa Goslin
<tgoslin@phoenixhealthprograms.com<mailto:tgoslin@phoenixhealthprograms.com>>; Phoenix
Health Programs - Tracy McIntyre
<tmcintyre@phoenixhealthprograms.com<mailto:tmcintyre@phoenixhealthprograms.com>>; Places
for People - Diane Maguire
<dmaguire@placesforpeople.org<mailto:dmaguire@placesforpeople.org>>; Places for People - Nicole
Stewart <nstewart@placesforpeople.org<mailto:nstewart@placesforpeople.org>>; Bayliff, Scott
<sbayliff@placesforpeople.org<mailto:sbayliff@placesforpeople.org>>; Places for People - Tiffany Lacy
Clark <tclark@placesforpeople.org<mailto:tclark@placesforpeople.org>>; Spruell, Sharon
<sspruell@ccstl.org<mailto:sspruell@ccstl.org>>; Flory, Alan
<alflory@rediscovermh.org<mailto:alflory@rediscovermh.org>>; ReDiscover - Elizabeth Deason
<edeason@rediscovermh.org<mailto:edeason@rediscovermh.org>>; ReDiscover - Jennifer Craig
<jcraig@rediscovermh.org<mailto:jcraig@rediscovermh.org>>; ReDiscover - John Dean
<jadean@rediscovermh.org<mailto:jadean@rediscovermh.org>>; ReDiscover - Lauren Moyer
<lmoyer@rediscovermh.org<mailto:lmoyer@rediscovermh.org>>; ReDiscover - Marsha Page
<mjpage@rediscovermh.org<mailto:mjpage@rediscovermh.org>>; Busiek, Gary



<gary_busiek@usc.salvationarmy.org<mailto:gary_busiek@usc.salvationarmy.org>>; Beck, Kimberly
<kimberly_beck@usc.salvationarmy.org<mailto:kimberly_beck@usc.salvationarmy.org>>; SAMHSA
Regional Administrator Region VII - Kimberly Nelson
<Kimberly.Nelson@samhsa.hhs.gov<mailto:Kimberly.Nelson@samhsa.hhs.gov>>; Angela Toman, CRPS
<atoman@semobh.org<mailto:atoman@semobh.org>>; Brenda Felkerson
<bfelkerson@semobh.org<mailto:bfelkerson@semobh.org>>; Cathy Schroer BS
<cschroer@semobh.org<mailto:cschroer@semobh.org>>; Dan Adams MBA
<dadams@semobh.org<mailto:dadams@semobh.org>>; Jason W. Gilliam MBA MHA AICP
<jgilliam@semobh.org<mailto:jgilliam@semobh.org>>; Storey, Janice <janices@tri-
countymhs.org<mailto:janices@tri-countymhs.org>>; Swope Health - Kortney Carr
<KCarr@swopehealth.org<mailto:KCarr@swopehealth.org>>; Swope Health - Mark Miller
<MMiller@swopehealth.org<mailto:MMiller@swopehealth.org>>; Holm, Christy <christieh@tri-
countymhs.org<mailto:christieh@tri-countymhs.org>>; Tri-County - JoAnn Werner <joannw@tri-
countymhs.org<mailto:joannw@tri-countymhs.org>>; Tri-County - Talina Nelson <talinan@tri-
countymhs.org<mailto:talinan@tri-countymhs.org>>; Tri-County - Tom Petrizzo <tomp@tri-
countymhs.org<mailto:tomp@tri-countymhs.org>>; Truman Medical Center - Barbara Warner
<Barbara.Warner@tmcmed.org<mailto:Barbara.Warner@tmcmed.org>>; Zaiger, Bethany
<bethany.zaiger@tmcmed.org<mailto:bethany.zaiger@tmcmed.org>>; Truman Medical Center - Jodi
Gusman <Jodi.Gusman@tmcmed.org<mailto:Jodi.Gusman@tmcmed.org>>; Truman Medical Center -
Mark VanMeter <mark.vanmeter@tmcmed.org<mailto:mark.vanmeter@tmcmed.org>>; Truman
Medical Center - Sharon Freese <Sharon.Freese@tmcmed.org<mailto:Sharon.Freese@tmcmed.org>>;
Turning Point - Catie Franklin <cfranklin@turningpointrc.org<mailto:cfranklin@turningpointrc.org>>;
Turning Point - Heather Higgins <hhiggins@turningpointrc.org<mailto:hhiggins@turningpointrc.org>>;
Allyson Ashley <allyson.ashley1@gmail.com<mailto:allyson.ashley1@gmail.com>>; Fred Rottnek
<frottnek@arcamidwest.com<mailto:frottnek@arcamidwest.com>>; Percy Menzies
<percymenzies@arcamidwest.com<mailto:percymenzies@arcamidwest.com>>; Arthur Center - Kristin
Fishback <kfishback@arthurcenter.com<mailto:kfishback@arthurcenter.com>>; Arthur Center -
Rachel Ward <rward@arthurcenter.com<mailto:rward@arthurcenter.com>>; BASIC - Keturah Ibrahim
<kibra@sbcglobal.net<mailto:kibra@sbcglobal.net>>; BASIC - Kirby Anderson-El
<kirbya@basicinc.org<mailto:kirbya@basicinc.org>>; Johnson, Lola
<lolaj@basicinc.org<mailto:lolaj@basicinc.org>>; BASIC - Michael Batchman
<michaelb@basicinc.org<mailto:michaelb@basicinc.org>>; BASIC - Robin Smith
<robins@basicinc.org<mailto:robins@basicinc.org>>; Singleton, Yulonda
<yulondas@basicinc.org<mailto:yulondas@basicinc.org>>; BHR Worldwide - Angela Tate
<atate@bhrworldwide.com<mailto:atate@bhrworldwide.com>>; BHR Worldwide - Bart Andrews
<bandrews@bhrworldwide.com<mailto:bandrews@bhrworldwide.com>>; BJC - Karen Miller
<kfm6775@bjc.org<mailto:kfm6775@bjc.org>>; Bootheel Counseling - David Terrell
<dterrell@bootheelcounseling.com<mailto:dterrell@bootheelcounseling.com>>; Kassinger, Micaela
<mkassinger@bootheelcounseling.com<mailto:mkassinger@bootheelcounseling.com>>; Brandon,
Teresa <Teresa.brandon@bjc.org<mailto:Teresa.brandon@bjc.org>>; Bridgeway - Craig Miner
<cminer@bridgewaybh.com<mailto:cminer@bridgewaybh.com>>; Bridgeway - Jack Barnett
<jbarnett@bridgewaybh.com<mailto:jbarnett@bridgewaybh.com>>; Morrison, Mike
<MMorrison@bridgewaybh.com<mailto:MMorrison@bridgewaybh.com>>; Burch, Mitzi
<mitzi.burch@burrellcenter.com<mailto:mitzi.burch@burrellcenter.com>>; Burell - CJ Davis
<cj.davis@burrellcenter.com<mailto:cj.davis@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell - Cristin Martinez
<Cristin.Martinez@burrellcenter.com<mailto:Cristin.Martinez@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center -



Adam Andreassen
<adam.andreassen@burrellcenter.com<mailto:adam.andreassen@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell
Center - Austin Burdine
<austin.burdine@burrellcenter.com<mailto:austin.burdine@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center -
Bethany Silliman
<bethany.silliman@burrellcenter.com<mailto:bethany.silliman@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center -
Brent Sugg <Brent.Sugg@burrellcenter.com<mailto:Brent.Sugg@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center -
Christopher Orr <christopher.orr@burrellcenter.com<mailto:christopher.orr@burrellcenter.com>>;
Burrell Center - Denise Mills
<Denise.Mills@burrellcenter.com<mailto:Denise.Mills@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center - Gina
Burroughs <Gina.Burroughs@burrellcenter.com<mailto:Gina.Burroughs@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell
Center - Hunter Houston
<Hunter.Houston@burrellcenter.com<mailto:Hunter.Houston@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center -
Lauren Pratt <lauren.pratt@burrellcenter.com<mailto:lauren.pratt@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell
Center - Leslie Corbiere
<leslie.corbiere@burrellcenter.com<mailto:leslie.corbiere@burrellcenter.com>>; Gass, Mathew
<mathew.gass@burrellcenter.com<mailto:mathew.gass@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center - Megan
Steen <Megan.Steen@burrellcenter.com<mailto:Megan.Steen@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center -
Sally Gibson <sally.gibson@burrellcenter.com<mailto:sally.gibson@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell
Center - Shae Hitchock
<shae.hitchcock@burrellcenter.com<mailto:shae.hitchcock@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center -
Stephanie March-Hopkins <stephanie.march-hopkins@burrellcenter.com<mailto:stephanie.march-
hopkins@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center - Stephen Koch
<stephen.koch@burrellcenter.com<mailto:stephen.koch@burrellcenter.com>>; Burrell Center - Wes
Starlin <wesley.starlin@burrellcenter.com<mailto:wesley.starlin@burrellcenter.com>>; Camp,
Timothy <tdcamp@freemanhealth.com<mailto:tdcamp@freemanhealth.com>>; CCC - Brenda
Robertson <brobertson@cccntr.com<mailto:brobertson@cccntr.com>>; CCC - Lonnie Lusk
<llusk@cccntr.com<mailto:llusk@cccntr.com>>; cheryl gardine
<cheryl@centerforlifesolutions.org<mailto:cheryl@centerforlifesolutions.org>>; Ridenour, Brad
<ridenourb@clarkmentalhealth.com<mailto:ridenourb@clarkmentalhealth.com>>; Clark CMHC -
Debbie Schoon <schoond@clarkmentalhealth.com<mailto:schoond@clarkmentalhealth.com>>;
Beatie, Laura <beatiel@clarkmentalhealth.com<mailto:beatiel@clarkmentalhealth.com>>; Clark
Mental Health - Christy Henley
<henleyc@clarkmentalhealth.com<mailto:henleyc@clarkmentalhealth.com>>; CMHC - Jenny Wright
<cmhc.nmh.jwright@gmail.com<mailto:cmhc.nmh.jwright@gmail.com>>; Anderson, Carl
<canderson@thecmhs.com<mailto:canderson@thecmhs.com>>; CMHS - Jenny Duncan
<jduncan@thecmhs.com<mailto:jduncan@thecmhs.com>>; CMHS - Julie Pratt
<jpratt@thecmhs.com<mailto:jpratt@thecmhs.com>>; CMHS - Tara Yardley
<tyardley@thecmhs.com<mailto:tyardley@thecmhs.com>>; CommCARE - Erica Immenschuh
<Erica.Immenschuh@commcare1.org<mailto:Erica.Immenschuh@commcare1.org>>; Compass Health
/ McCambridge - Angela Allphin <aallphin@compasshn.org<mailto:aallphin@compasshn.org>>;
COMTREA - Agnes Jos <AJos@comtrea.org<mailto:AJos@comtrea.org>>; COMTREA - Andrea Cuneio
<ACuneio@comtrea.org<mailto:ACuneio@comtrea.org>>; COMTREA - Jonathan Cochran
<JCochran@comtrea.org<mailto:JCochran@comtrea.org>>; COMTREA - Rachael Bersdale
<RBersdale@comtrea.org<mailto:RBersdale@comtrea.org>>; Susan Curfman
<scurfman@comtrea.org<mailto:scurfman@comtrea.org>>; Crider - Carrie Rigdon



<crigdon@compasshn.org<mailto:crigdon@compasshn.org>>; Crider - Laura Heebner
<lheebner@compasshn.org<mailto:lheebner@compasshn.org>>; Crider - Nancy Gongaware
<ngongaware@compasshn.org<mailto:ngongaware@compasshn.org>>; Crider - Victoria Walker
<vwalker@compasshn.org<mailto:vwalker@compasshn.org>>; Family Guidance - Elizabeth Sprung
<esprung@FGCnow.org<mailto:esprung@FGCnow.org>>; Family Guidance - Kristina Hannon
<khannon@FGCnow.org<mailto:khannon@FGCnow.org>>; Family Guidance - Rachel Evans
<revans@fgcnow.org<mailto:revans@fgcnow.org>>; Family Guidance - Raven Hutchison
<RHutchison@FGCnow.org<mailto:RHutchison@FGCnow.org>>; Family Guidance - Rebekah Quillin
<rquillin@fgcnow.org<mailto:rquillin@fgcnow.org>>; Family Guidance - Robin Reynozo
<robinr@fgcnow.org<mailto:robinr@fgcnow.org>>; Family Self Help - Alison Malinowski Sunday
<alisonmsunday@lafayettehouse.org<mailto:alisonmsunday@lafayettehouse.org>>; Family Self Help -
Gwen Ewing <mewingg@yahoo.com<mailto:mewingg@yahoo.com>>; FCC - Ashley Singleton
<ashleys@fccinc.org<mailto:ashleys@fccinc.org>>; FCC - Kelley Wilbanks
<kwilbanks@fccinc.org<mailto:kwilbanks@fccinc.org>>; FCC - Melissa Weatherwax
<melissaw@fccinc.org<mailto:melissaw@fccinc.org>>; FCC - Randy Ray
<randy@fccinc.org<mailto:randy@fccinc.org>>; FCC - Shawn Sando
<sando@fccinc.org<mailto:sando@fccinc.org>>; First Call - Susan Whitmore
<whitmore@firstcallkc.org<mailto:whitmore@firstcallkc.org>>; Freeman Health - Melissa Moore
<mlmoore@freemanhealth.com<mailto:mlmoore@freemanhealth.com>>; Freeman Health - Spencer
Ellis <slellis@freemanhealth.com<mailto:slellis@freemanhealth.com>>; Feaman, Kimberly
<klfeaman@gatewayfoundation.org<mailto:klfeaman@gatewayfoundation.org>>; Doherty, Steve
<sdoherty@gatewayfoundation.org<mailto:sdoherty@gatewayfoundation.org>>; Hannibal Council
dba Turning Point - Jennifer Wilson
<jwilson@turningpointrc.org<mailto:jwilson@turningpointrc.org>>; Hannibal Council dba Turning
Point - Kettisha Hodges <k_hodges5@yahoo.com<mailto:k_hodges5@yahoo.com>>; Heartland Center
- Carolyn Ross <cross@heartlandcbc.org<mailto:cross@heartlandcbc.org>>; Heartland Center - Kyle
Mead <kmead@heartlandcbc.org<mailto:kmead@heartlandcbc.org>>; Hinton, Tineen
<tineen.hinton@bjc.org<mailto:tineen.hinton@bjc.org>>; Hopewell Center - Barbara Tucker
<btucker@hopewellcenter.com<mailto:btucker@hopewellcenter.com>>; Butler, Dwayne
<dbutler@phcenters.com<mailto:dbutler@phcenters.com>>; Hopewell Center - Lynette Jones
<lyjones@hopewellcenter.com<mailto:lyjones@hopewellcenter.com>>; Franklin, Wil
<wfranklin@phcenters.com<mailto:wfranklin@phcenters.com>>; Higginbotham, Jennifer
<jhigginbotham@independencecenter.org<mailto:jhigginbotham@independencecenter.org>>;
Independence Center - Jocelyn Hertich
<JHertich@independencecenter.org<mailto:JHertich@independencecenter.org>>; Independence
Center - Paul Schoenig
<PSchoenig@independencecenter.org<mailto:PSchoenig@independencecenter.org>>; Karl, Barbara
<Barbara.Karl@bjc.org<mailto:Barbara.Karl@bjc.org>>; Lafayette House - Teddy Brown
<tlbrown02@yahoo.com<mailto:tlbrown02@yahoo.com>>; Mark Twain
<mcantrell@mtbh.org<mailto:mcantrell@mtbh.org>>; McMahon, Cory
<Cory.McMahon@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Cory.McMahon@dmh.mo.gov>>; Midwest Assessment - Catie
Platt <cplatt@midwestassessment.com<mailto:cplatt@midwestassessment.com>>; Mineral Area
CPRC - Karen Ferrell <karen.ferrell@macprc.com<mailto:karen.ferrell@macprc.com>>; Mineral Area
CPRC - Vicky Winick <vicky.winick@macprc.com<mailto:vicky.winick@macprc.com>>; Terry Trafton
(ttrafton@CommCARE1.org<mailto:ttrafton@CommCARE1.org>)
<ttrafton@CommCARE1.org<mailto:ttrafton@CommCARE1.org>>; Beck, Kimberly



<kimberly_beck@usc.salvationarmy.org<mailto:kimberly_beck@usc.salvationarmy.org>>; Busiek, Gary
<gary_busiek@usc.salvationarmy.org<mailto:gary_busiek@usc.salvationarmy.org>>; eydie caughron
<eydie@centerforlifesolutions.org<mailto:eydie@centerforlifesolutions.org>>; CMHC - Jerry Morris
<cmhcjerry@sbdglobal.net<mailto:cmhcjerry@sbdglobal.net>>; CMHC - Kate Hogsett
<khogsett.ccps@gmail.com<mailto:khogsett.ccps@gmail.com>>; CMHC - Nate Gulliford
<nategulliford@hotmail.com<mailto:nategulliford@hotmail.com>>; CMHC - Terri Morris
<terrikmorris@sbcglobal.net<mailto:terrikmorris@sbcglobal.net>>; cheryl gardine
<cheryl@centerforlifesolutions.org<mailto:cheryl@centerforlifesolutions.org>>; Lafayette House - Deb
Allman <deballman@lafayettehouse.org<mailto:deballman@lafayettehouse.org>>; Lafayette House -
Teddy Brown <teddybrown@lafayettehouse.org<mailto:teddybrown@lafayettehouse.org>>; Moore,
Jonathan <adam_moore@usc.salvationarmy.org<mailto:adam_moore@usc.salvationarmy.org>>;
Salvation Army - TSA Midland Contracts
<tsa_midlandcontracts@usc.salvationarmy.org<mailto:tsa_midlandcontracts@usc.salvationarmy.org>>;
Turning Point - Gary Stoner <gstoner@turningpointrc.org<mailto:gstoner@turningpointrc.org>>;
Turning Point - John Pruett <jpruett@turningpointrc.org<mailto:jpruett@turningpointrc.org>>;
Turning Point - Virginia Frese <vfrese@turningpointrc.org<mailto:vfrese@turningpointrc.org>>;
Westend Clinic - Pamela Byes <sugarbaby53@msn.com<mailto:sugarbaby53@msn.com>>; Miller,
Oval <ovalsr@sbcglobal.net<mailto:ovalsr@sbcglobal.net>>; Carter, Hardy
<basic@basicinc.org<mailto:basic@basicinc.org>>; CMHC - Cindy Brannan
(cmhc.nmh.cbrannan@gmail.com<mailto:cmhc.nmh.cbrannan@gmail.com>)
<cmhc.nmh.cbrannan@gmail.com<mailto:cmhc.nmh.cbrannan@gmail.com>>; CMHC - Jerry Morris
(cmhcjerry@sbcglobal.net<mailto:cmhcjerry@sbcglobal.net>)
<cmhcjerry@sbcglobal.net<mailto:cmhcjerry@sbcglobal.net>>; Swinfard, Tim
<tswinfard@compasshn.org<mailto:tswinfard@compasshn.org>>; Comprehensive - Jenny Miller
(jemil@thecmhs.com<mailto:jemil@thecmhs.com>)
<jemil@thecmhs.com<mailto:jemil@thecmhs.com>>; Pigg, Margo
<mpigg@comtrea.org<mailto:mpigg@comtrea.org>>; Family Guidance - Garry Hammond
(ghammond@FGCnow.org<mailto:ghammond@FGCnow.org>)
<ghammond@FGCnow.org<mailto:ghammond@FGCnow.org>>; Jackson, Derek
<derek.jackson@fccinc.org<mailto:derek.jackson@fccinc.org>>; Brown, Joshua
<joshua.brown@fccinc.org<mailto:joshua.brown@fccinc.org>>; FCC - Ken Tombley
(ken.tombley@fccinc.org<mailto:ken.tombley@fccinc.org>)
<ken.tombley@fccinc.org<mailto:ken.tombley@fccinc.org>>; FCC - Misty Brazel
(mistyb@fccinc.org<mailto:mistyb@fccinc.org>) <mistyb@fccinc.org<mailto:mistyb@fccinc.org>>;
'FCC - Noble Shaver' <nobles@fccinc.org<mailto:nobles@fccinc.org>>; Parrigon, Mary
<mbparrigon@freemanhealth.com<mailto:mbparrigon@freemanhealth.com>>; Gibson Center - John
Gary (garyj@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:garyj@gibsonrecovery.org>)
<garyj@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:garyj@gibsonrecovery.org>>; Payden, Vernon
<paydenv@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:paydenv@gibsonrecovery.org>>; Gibson Recovery - Ryan Essex
(essexr@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:essexr@gibsonrecovery.org>)
<essexr@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:essexr@gibsonrecovery.org>>; Gibson Recovery - Sherry Eakers
(eakerss@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:eakerss@gibsonrecovery.org>)
<eakerss@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:eakerss@gibsonrecovery.org>>; McCollough, Shauntay
<Shauntay@newbeginningscstar.org<mailto:Shauntay@newbeginningscstar.org>>; Camp, Timothy
<tdcamp@freemanhealth.com<mailto:tdcamp@freemanhealth.com>>; Preferred - Pam Leyhe
(pleyhe@pfh.org<mailto:pleyhe@pfh.org>) <pleyhe@pfh.org<mailto:pleyhe@pfh.org>>; Brawner,



Paula <pbrawner@pfh.org<mailto:pbrawner@pfh.org>>; Queen of Peace - Clara Stevenson
<cstevenson@ccstl.org<mailto:cstevenson@ccstl.org>>; Tri-County MHS - Jan Pool (janp@tri-
countymhs.org<mailto:janp@tri-countymhs.org>) <janp@tri-countymhs.org<mailto:janp@tri-
countymhs.org>>; Truman Medical - Douglas Burgess
(douglas.burgess@tmcmed.org<mailto:douglas.burgess@tmcmed.org>)
<douglas.burgess@tmcmed.org<mailto:douglas.burgess@tmcmed.org>>; Carter, Wardell
<Westendclinic45@yahoo.com<mailto:Westendclinic45@yahoo.com>>
Cc: 'Brent McGinty' <BMcGinty@mocoalition.org<mailto:BMcGinty@mocoalition.org>>; 'Emily Conde'
(econde@mocoalition.org<mailto:econde@mocoalition.org>)
<econde@mocoalition.org<mailto:econde@mocoalition.org>>; Rembecki, Mark
<Mark.Rembecki@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Mark.Rembecki@dmh.mo.gov>>; Cook, Natalie
<Natalie.Cook@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Natalie.Cook@dmh.mo.gov>>; Turner, Rhonda
<Rhonda.Turner@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Rhonda.Turner@dmh.mo.gov>>; Rudder, Timothy
<Timothy.Rudder@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Timothy.Rudder@dmh.mo.gov>>; Smyser, Melissa
<Melissa.Smyser@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Melissa.Smyser@dmh.mo.gov>>; Blume, Susan
<Susan.Blume@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Susan.Blume@dmh.mo.gov>>
Subject: RE: URGENT - Please respond (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement
—NEW

I agree – this will create a good deal of additional administrative and clinical work.

From: Clif Johnson CRAADC <cjohnson@semobh.org<mailto:cjohnson@semobh.org>>
Sent: Thursday, October 18, 2018 12:28 PM
To: Bock, Nora <Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov>>; Cori Putz
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
<percymenzies@arcamidwest.com<mailto:percymenzies@arcamidwest.com>>; Suneal Menzies
<sunealmenzies@arcamidwest.com<mailto:sunealmenzies@arcamidwest.com>>; Arthur Center -
Kristin Fishback <kfishback@arthurcenter.com<mailto:kfishback@arthurcenter.com>>; Arthur Center -
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
<llusk@cccntr.com<mailto:llusk@cccntr.com>>; Gardine, Cheryl
<Cheryl@centerforlifesolutions.org<mailto:Cheryl@centerforlifesolutions.org>>; Ridenour, Brad
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
<gary_busiek@usc.salvationarmy.org<mailto:gary_busiek@usc.salvationarmy.org>>; Center for Life
Solutions - Eydie Caughron
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
<terrikmorris@sbcglobal.net<mailto:terrikmorris@sbcglobal.net>>; Gardine, Cheryl



<Cheryl@centerforlifesolutions.org<mailto:Cheryl@centerforlifesolutions.org>>; Lafayette House -
Deb Allman <deballman@lafayettehouse.org<mailto:deballman@lafayettehouse.org>>; Lafayette
House - Teddy Brown <teddybrown@lafayettehouse.org<mailto:teddybrown@lafayettehouse.org>>;
Moore, Jonathan
<adam_moore@usc.salvationarmy.org<mailto:adam_moore@usc.salvationarmy.org>>; Salvation
Army - TSA Midland Contracts
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

For us and Preferred doing the GPRA for STR, this is a longer tool, it adds a 3 month reporting time (
not required with STR), so if the benchmark is 80% compliance in reporting like STR, this will add a
layer of time for something  that for us that is already very labor intensive in tracking , locating and
administering. For instance, we are currently tracking 95 STR GPRAs needing completion as of
yesterday.

[cid:image001.jpg@01D466E2.FD575C70]
Clif Johnson CRAADC | Director of Clinical Compliance and Physician Services | 573-756-5749 O 
+15737606084 M
1565 Ste. Genevieve Avenue-PO Drawer 459 | Farmington, MO  63640-0459

From: Bock, Nora [mailto:Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 4:53 PM
To: Cori Putz (cmoore@pfh.org<mailto:cmoore@pfh.org>); Geoff Moeller;
lmccallister@placesforpeople.org<mailto:lmccallister@placesforpeople.org>; NCADA - St. Louis -
Nichole Dawsey; NCADA St Louis - Jenny Armbruster; New Beginnings - Freda Theus; McCollough,
Shauntay; Cheung, Chi; New Horizons - Laura Porting; New Horizons - Shanna Behrens; New Horizons -
Stacy Doggett; North Central MO - DeAnna Savage; Irvine, Lori; North Central MO - Tammy Floyd;
Francis, Lisa; Mieseler, Vicky; Ozarks Medical Center - Curtis Cook; Ozarks Medical Center - Joy
Anderson; Pathways - Amy Blake; Pathways - Becky Camden; Pathways - Elisabeth Brockman-Knight;
Pathways - Gloria Miller; Pathways - Julia Bozarth; Yach, Kristen; Pathways - Linda Grgurich; Pathways -
Mel Fetter; Pathways - Shannon Crowley-Einsphar; Pathways - Todd Martensen; Foster, Tonie;
Greening, Andrew; PFH - Andrew Schwend; Hutton, Ann; Putz, Cori; PFH - Darlene Harrell; PFH - Jason
Hinckley; PFH - Lorinda Meyer; PFH - Marilyn Nolan; PFH - Nancy Atwater; PFH - Rhonda Ferguson; PFH
- Una Bennett ; Phoenix - Laura Cameron; Phoenix - Rhiannon Ross; Phoenix - Teresa Goslin; Phoenix
Health Programs - Tracy McIntyre; Places for People - Diane Maguire; Places for People - Nicole
Stewart; Bayliff, Scott; Places for People - Tiffany Lacy Clark; Spruell, Sharon; Flory, Alan; ReDiscover -
Elizabeth Deason; ReDiscover - Jennifer Craig; ReDiscover - John Dean; ReDiscover - Lauren Moyer;
ReDiscover - Marsha Page; Busiek, Gary; Beck, Kimberly; SAMHSA Regional Administrator Region VII -
Kimberly Nelson; Angela Toman, CRPS; Brenda Felkerson; Cathy Schroer BS; Clif Johnson CRAADC; Dan
Adams MBA; Jason W. Gilliam MBA MHA AICP; Storey, Janice; Swope Health - Kortney Carr; Swope
Health - Mark Miller; Holm, Christy; Tri-County - JoAnn Werner; Tri-County - Talina Nelson; Tri-County -

mailto:Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov


Tom Petrizzo; Truman Medical Center - Barbara Warner; Zaiger, Bethany; Truman Medical Center -
Jodi Gusman; Truman Medical Center - Mark VanMeter; Truman Medical Center - Sharon Freese;
Turning Point - Catie Franklin; Turning Point - Heather Higgins; Allyson Ashley; ARCA - Fred Rottnek;
Menzies, Percy; Menzies, Suneal; Arthur Center - Kristin Fishback; Arthur Center - Rachel Ward; BASIC -
Keturah Ibrahim; BASIC - Kirby Anderson-El; Johnson, Lola; BASIC - Michael Batchman; BASIC - Robin
Smith; Singleton, Yulonda; BHR Worldwide - Angela Tate; BHR Worldwide - Bart Andrews; BJC - Karen
Miller; Bootheel Counseling - David Terrell; Kassinger, Micaela; Brandon, Teresa; Bridgeway - Craig
Miner; Bridgeway - Jack Barnett; Morrison, Mike; Burch, Mitzi; Burell - CJ Davis; Burrell - Cristin
Martinez; Burrell Center - Adam Andreassen; Burrell Center - Austin Burdine; Burrell Center - Bethany
Silliman; Burrell Center - Brent Sugg; Burrell Center - Christopher Orr; Burrell Center - Denise Mills;
Burrell Center - Gina Burroughs; Burrell Center - Hunter Houston; Burrell Center - Lauren Pratt; Burrell
Center - Leslie Corbiere; Gass, Mathew; Burrell Center - Megan Steen; Burrell Center - Sally Gibson;
Burrell Center - Shae Hitchock; Burrell Center - Stephanie March-Hopkins; Burrell Center - Stephen
Koch; Burrell Center - Wes Starlin; Camp, Timothy; CCC - Brenda Robertson; CCC - Lonnie Lusk;
Gardine, Cheryl; Ridenour, Brad; Clark CMHC - Debbie Schoon; Beatie, Laura; Clark Mental Health -
Christy Henley; CMHC - Jenny Wright; Anderson, Carl; CMHS - Jenny Duncan; CMHS - Julie Pratt; CMHS
- Tara Yardley; CommCARE - Erica Immenschuh; Compass Health / McCambridge - Angela Allphin;
COMTREA - Agnes Jos; COMTREA - Andrea Cuneio; COMTREA - Jonathan Cochran; COMTREA - Rachael
Bersdale; Susan Curfman; Crider - Carrie Rigdon; Crider - Laura Heebner; Crider - Nancy Gongaware;
Crider - Victoria Walker; Family Guidance - Elizabeth Sprung; Family Guidance - Kristina Hannon; Family
Guidance - Rachel Evans; Family Guidance - Raven Hutchison; Family Guidance - Rebekah Quillin;
Family Guidance - Robin Reynozo; Family Self Help - Alison Malinowski Sunday; Family Self Help - Gwen
Ewing; FCC - Ashley Singleton; FCC - Kelley Wilbanks; FCC - Melissa Weatherwax; FCC - Randy Ray; FCC
- Shawn Sando; First Call - Susan Whitmore; Freeman Health - Melissa Moore; Freeman Health -
Spencer Ellis; Feaman, Kimberly; Doherty, Steve; Hannibal Council dba Turning Point - Jennifer Wilson;
Hannibal Council dba Turning Point - Kettisha Hodges; Heartland Center - Carolyn Ross; Heartland
Center - Kyle Mead; Hinton, Tineen; Hopewell Center - Barbara Tucker; Butler, Dwayne; Hopewell
Center - Lynette Jones; Franklin, Wil; Higginbotham, Jennifer; Independence Center - Jocelyn Hertich;
Independence Center - Paul Schoenig; Karl, Barbara; Lafayette House - Teddy Brown; Mark Twain;
McMahon, Cory; Midwest Assessment - Catie Platt; Mineral Area CPRC - Karen Ferrell; Mineral Area
CPRC - Vicky Winick; Terry Trafton (ttrafton@CommCARE1.org<mailto:ttrafton@CommCARE1.org>);
Beck, Kimberly; Busiek, Gary; Center for Life Solutions - Eydie Caughron; CMHC - Jerry Morris; CMHC -
Kate Hogsett; CMHC - Nate Gulliford; CMHC - Terri Morris; Gardine, Cheryl; Lafayette House - Deb
Allman; Lafayette House - Teddy Brown; Moore, Jonathan; Salvation Army - TSA Midland Contracts;
Turning Point - Gary Stoner; Turning Point - John Pruett; Turning Point - Virginia Frese; Westend Clinic -
Pamela Byes; Miller, Oval; Carter, Hardy; CMHC - Cindy Brannan
(cmhc.nmh.cbrannan@gmail.com<mailto:cmhc.nmh.cbrannan@gmail.com>); CMHC - Jerry Morris
(cmhcjerry@sbcglobal.net<mailto:cmhcjerry@sbcglobal.net>); Swinfard, Tim; Comprehensive - Jenny
Miller (jemil@thecmhs.com<mailto:jemil@thecmhs.com>); Pigg, Margo; Family Guidance - Garry
Hammond (ghammond@FGCnow.org<mailto:ghammond@FGCnow.org>); Jackson, Derek; Brown,
Joshua; FCC - Ken Tombley (ken.tombley@fccinc.org<mailto:ken.tombley@fccinc.org>); FCC - Misty
Brazel (mistyb@fccinc.org<mailto:mistyb@fccinc.org>); 'FCC - Noble Shaver'; Parrigon, Mary; Gibson
Center - John Gary (garyj@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:garyj@gibsonrecovery.org>); Payden, Vernon;
Gibson Recovery - Ryan Essex (essexr@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:essexr@gibsonrecovery.org>);
Gibson Recovery - Sherry Eakers (eakerss@gibsonrecovery.org<mailto:eakerss@gibsonrecovery.org>);
McCollough, Shauntay; Camp, Timothy; Preferred - Pam Leyhe



(pleyhe@pfh.org<mailto:pleyhe@pfh.org>); Brawner, Paula; Queen of Peace - Clara Stevenson; Tri-
County MHS - Jan Pool (janp@tri-countymhs.org<mailto:janp@tri-countymhs.org>); Truman Medical -
Douglas Burgess (douglas.burgess@tmcmed.org<mailto:douglas.burgess@tmcmed.org>); Carter,
Wardell
Cc: 'Brent McGinty'; 'Emily Conde' (econde@mocoalition.org<mailto:econde@mocoalition.org>);
Rembecki, Mark; Cook, Natalie; Turner, Rhonda; Rudder, Timothy; Smyser, Melissa; Blume, Susan
Subject: URGENT - Please respond (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement—
NEW
Importance: High

THIS WILL HUGELY IMPACT THE DATA REQUIREMENTS FOR SOR – I cannot emphasize enough how
important it is for you to review the proposed requirements and provide feedback!!

Nora

From: Gowdy, Rick
Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 4:49 PM
To: 'Winograd, Rachel' <rachel.winograd@mimh.edu<mailto:rachel.winograd@mimh.edu>>; Horn,
Philip <philip.horn@mimh.edu<mailto:philip.horn@mimh.edu>>; Bock, Nora
<Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Nora.Bock@dmh.mo.gov>>; Rudder, Timothy
<Timothy.Rudder@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Timothy.Rudder@dmh.mo.gov>>; Epple, Laurie
<Laurie.Epple@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Laurie.Epple@dmh.mo.gov>>; Anderson-Harper, Rosie
<Rosie.Anderson-Harper@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Rosie.Anderson-Harper@dmh.mo.gov>>;
Stuckenschneider, Angie
<Angie.Stuckenschneider@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Angie.Stuckenschneider@dmh.mo.gov>>; Cahalan,
Connie <Connie.Cahalan@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Connie.Cahalan@dmh.mo.gov>>
Subject: FW: Proposed Project: State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR)
Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW

10-17-18.

See note below from Mr. Clark.

Written comments should be received by December 3, 2018
RNG.
Confidentiality Statement:
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This e-mail communication and any attachments may contain confidential
and privileged information for the use of the designated recipients named above. The designated
recipients are prohibited from redisclosing this information to any other party without authorization
and are required to destroy the information after its stated need has been fulfilled. If you are not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this communication in error and
that any review, disclosure, dissemination, distribution or copying of it or its contents is prohibited by
federal or state law. If you have received this communication in error, please notify me immediately by
telephone at 573-751-9499, and destroy all copies of this communication and any attachments.



From: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT)
<Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov<mailto:Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov>>
Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 4:44 PM
To: lauren.siembab@ct.gov<mailto:lauren.siembab@ct.gov>;
Michael.parks@maine.gov<mailto:Michael.parks@maine.gov>;
Tom.Connors@maine.gov<mailto:Tom.Connors@maine.gov>;
Katherine.Coutu@maine.gov<mailto:Katherine.Coutu@maine.gov>;
Allison.bauer@state.ma.us<mailto:Allison.bauer@state.ma.us>; amy.sorensen-
alawad@state.ma.us<mailto:amy.sorensen-alawad@state.ma.us>;
Nicole.m.schmitt@state.ma.us<mailto:Nicole.m.schmitt@state.ma.us>;
Jennifer.miller@state.ma.us<mailto:Jennifer.miller@state.ma.us>;
Hannah.Lipper@state.ma.us<mailto:Hannah.Lipper@state.ma.us>;
Abby.Shockley@dhhs.nh.gov<mailto:Abby.Shockley@dhhs.nh.gov>;
Donald.Hunter@dhhs.nh.gov<mailto:Donald.Hunter@dhhs.nh.gov>;
Cynthia.Thomas@vermont.gov<mailto:Cynthia.Thomas@vermont.gov>;
Megan.Mitchell@vermont.gov<mailto:Megan.Mitchell@vermont.gov>;
Mariah.Ogden@vermont.gov<mailto:Mariah.Ogden@vermont.gov>;
sgoldsby@daodas.sc.gov<mailto:sgoldsby@daodas.sc.gov>;
dwalker@daodas.sc.gov<mailto:dwalker@daodas.sc.gov>;
ckraeff@daodas.sc.gov<mailto:ckraeff@daodas.sc.gov>;
bpowell@daodas.sc.gov<mailto:bpowell@daodas.sc.gov>;
rbraneck@daodas.sc.gov<mailto:rbraneck@daodas.sc.gov>;
taryn.sloss@tn.gov<mailto:taryn.sloss@tn.gov>;
linda.mccorkle@tn.gov<mailto:linda.mccorkle@tn.gov>;
Anthony.jackson@tn.gov<mailto:Anthony.jackson@tn.gov>;
richard.sherman@illinois.gov<mailto:richard.sherman@illinois.gov>;
terry.cook@fssa.in.gov<mailto:terry.cook@fssa.in.gov>;
Rebecca.Buhner@fssa.IN.gov<mailto:Rebecca.Buhner@fssa.IN.gov>;
Jeremy.Heyer@fssa.IN.gov<mailto:Jeremy.Heyer@fssa.IN.gov>;
Cassandra.Anderson2@fssa.IN.gov<mailto:Cassandra.Anderson2@fssa.IN.gov>;
Mark.Loggins@fssa.IN.gov<mailto:Mark.Loggins@fssa.IN.gov>;
Kelly.Welker@fssa.IN.gov<mailto:Kelly.Welker@fssa.IN.gov>;
ScottL11@michigan.gov<mailto:ScottL11@michigan.gov>;
BullardS@michigan.gov<mailto:BullardS@michigan.gov>;
SmithA8@michigan.gov<mailto:SmithA8@michigan.gov>;
dave.rompa@state.mn.us<mailto:dave.rompa@state.mn.us>;
faye.bernstein@state.mn.us<mailto:faye.bernstein@state.mn.us>;
Ellen.Augspurger@mha.ohio.gov<mailto:Ellen.Augspurger@mha.ohio.gov>;
Sanford.Starr@mha.ohio.gov<mailto:Sanford.Starr@mha.ohio.gov>;
joyce.allen@wisconsin.gov<mailto:joyce.allen@wisconsin.gov>;
Jason.Harris@dhs.wisconsin.gov<mailto:Jason.Harris@dhs.wisconsin.gov>;
Scott.stokes@dhs.wisconsin.gov<mailto:Scott.stokes@dhs.wisconsin.gov>;
tcroom@odmhsas.org<mailto:tcroom@odmhsas.org>; monica.wilke-
brown@idph.iowa.gov<mailto:monica.wilke-brown@idph.iowa.gov>;
Sharon.Kearse@ks.gov<mailto:Sharon.Kearse@ks.gov>; Gowdy, Rick
<Rick.Gowdy@dmh.mo.gov<mailto:Rick.Gowdy@dmh.mo.gov>>;

mailto:taryn.sloss@tn.gov
mailto:tcroom@odmhsas.org


rachel.winograd@mimh.edu<mailto:rachel.winograd@mimh.edu>;
philip.horn@mimh.edu<mailto:philip.horn@mimh.edu>;
tamara.gavin@nebraska.gov<mailto:tamara.gavin@nebraska.gov>;
Marlies.Perez@dhcs.ca.gov<mailto:Marlies.Perez@dhcs.ca.gov>;
tfsunia@dhss.as<mailto:tfsunia@dhss.as>;
herbert.sablan@gmail.com<mailto:herbert.sablan@gmail.com>;
bvictor@fsmhealth.fm<mailto:bvictor@fsmhealth.fm>;
athena.duenas@gbhwc.guam.gov<mailto:athena.duenas@gbhwc.guam.gov>;
temengil.ej@gmail.com<mailto:temengil.ej@gmail.com>
Subject: Proposed Project: State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) Program
Data Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW

Dear STR and SOR Project Directors and Staff:

This is in follow-up to my correspondence to you of last week, indicating the publication of a Federal
Registry Notice (FRN) containing the proposed reporting guidelines for the SOR and TOR Grant
initiatives.

Please find attached below the proposed SOR information plans and reporting instruments that were
referenced in the recent posting of the Federal Register for your review and comment.

I cannot emphasize too greatly how important it is for you to carefully review and comment on these
reporting tools, and provide whatever recommendations that you have regarding implementation
issues.

I am hopeful that with your feedback we can enter into a meaningful dialogue to maximize the
usefulness of this reporting, and minimize any unnecessary reporting burden.

Send comments to Summer King, SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer, 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57-
B, Rockville, Maryland 20857, OR email a copy to
summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov<mailto:summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov>.

Written comments should be received by December 3, 2018.

I would appreciate your copying me on any feedback that you provide in this process so that I can be
fully prepared to particiapte in this dialogue.

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

mailto:tfsunia@dhss.as


Center for Substance Abuse Treatment,
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration,
Department of Health and Human Services,
5600 Fishers Lane, Office 13E25C,
Rockville, MD 20857
Email: Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov<mailto:Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov>
Personal Direct Telephone: (240) 276-1027
Main Office Telephone: (240) 276-2700

[cid:image002.jpg@01D466E2.FD575C70]

_____________________________________________
From: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Sent: Tuesday, October 09, 2018 10:19 AM
To: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT)
<Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov<mailto:Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov>>
Cc: Jacobus-Kantor, Laura (SAMHSA/CBHSQ) <Laura.Jacobus-
Kantor@samhsa.hhs.gov<mailto:Laura.Jacobus-Kantor@samhsa.hhs.gov>>
Subject: RE: SAMHSA Internal Request for More Information on the Proposed Project and to Obtain a
Copy of the Information Collection Plans for the SOR and TOR Grant Initiatives

Hi Spencer,
Attached are copies of the information plans and the instruments.  Please let me know if you need
anything else.
Thanks,
Summer

_____________________________________________
From: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT)
Sent: Tuesday, October 9, 2018 10:07 AM
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
<Summer.King@samhsa.hhs.gov<mailto:Summer.King@samhsa.hhs.gov>>
Subject: SAMHSA Internal Request for More Information on the Proposed Project and to Obtain a Copy
of the Information Collection Plans for the SOR and TOR Grant Initiatives

Dear Summer:
Please provide me with a copy of the information collection plans and copies of the instruments as
described below in the FRN released last week:
In compliance with Section 3506(c)(2)(A) of the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 concerning
opportunity for public comment on proposed collections of information, the Substance Abuse and
Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) will publish periodic summaries of proposed
projects. To request more information on the proposed project or to obtain a copy of the information



collection plans, call the SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer on (240) 276-1243.
Comments are invited on: (a) Whether the proposed collections of information are necessary for the
proper performance of the functions of the agency, including whether the information shall have
practical utility; (b) the accuracy of the agency's estimate of the burden of the proposed collection of
information; (c) ways to enhance the quality, utility, and clarity of the information to be collected; and
(d) ways to minimize the burden of the collection of information on respondents, including through
the use of automated collection techniques or other forms of information technology.
Proposed Project: State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) Program Data
Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW
The Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration's (SAMHSA) Center for Substance
Abuse Treatment (CSAT) is requesting approval from the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for
data collection activities associated with the State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response
(TOR) discretionary grant programs. Approval of this information collection will allow SAMHSA to
continue to meet the Government Performance and Results Modernization Act of 2010 (GPRMA)
reporting requirements that quantify the effects and accomplishments of its discretionary grant
programs which are consistent with OMB guidance. Information collected through this request will be
used to monitor performance throughout the grant period.
There will be up to 359 award recipients (states, territories, and tribal entities) in these grant
programs. Grantee-level data will include information related to naloxone purchases and distribution.
This grantee-level information will be collected quarterly.
All funded states/territories and tribal entities will also be required to collect and report client-level
data on individuals who are receiving opioid treatment services to ensure program goals and
objectives are being met. Client-level data will include information such as: Demographic information,
services planned/received, mental health/substance use disorder diagnoses, medical status,
employment status, substance use, legal status, and psychiatric status/symptoms. Client-level data will
be collected at intake/baseline, three months post intake, six months post intake, and at discharge.
CSAT anticipates that the time required to collect and report the grantee-level data is approximately
10 minutes per response, and the time required to collect and report the client-level data is
approximately 47 minutes per response. CSAT's estimate of the burden associated with the client-level
instrument includes an adjustment for data elements that are currently being collected by entities that
are likely to be funded by the SOR/TOR grant programs. Start Printed Page 50117
Table 1—Estimate of Annualized Hour Burden for SOR/TOR Grantees

SAMHSA data Collection

Number of respondents

Responses per respondent

Total number of responses

Burden hours per response

Total burden Hours



Grantee-Level Instrument

359

4

1,436

.17

244

Client Level Instrument: Baseline Interview

165,000

1

165,000

.78

128,700

Client-Level Instrument: Follow-up Interview 1

132,000

2

264,000

.78

205,920

Client-Level Instrument: Discharge Interview 2

85,800

1

85,800

.78



66,924

CSAT Total

165,359

516,236

401,788

Notes:

1 It is estimated that 80% of baseline clients will complete the three month and six month follow-up
interviews.

2 It is estimated that 52% of baseline clients will complete this interview.

Send comments to Summer King, SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer, 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57-
B, Rockville, Maryland 20857, OR email a copy to
summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov<mailto:summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov>. Written comments should be
received by December 3, 2018.
Start Signature
Summer King,
Statistician.
End Signature End Preamble
[FR Doc. 2018-21576<https://www.federalregister.gov/a/2018-21576> Filed 10-3-18; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4162-20-P

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

https://www.federalregister.gov/a/2018-21576
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SOR Data Collection Review 

Grantee Quarterly Data Collection: 
No comments, requirements include: 

1. Naloxone overdose reversal kits that were purchased using grant funds. 
2.  Naloxone overdose reversal kits that were distributed using grant funds. 

Seems like Britni Reilly already collects all of this information, just will have to add sites. 

Client level data collection: 
Broad Comments 

Data collection Methods and time points: 
1. “The SOR/TOR data collection will not interfere with ongoing program operations that 

facilitate information collection at each site as state/territories and tribal entity are 
already using collecting and reporting program data as a component of other SAMHSA 
grants.”  
This doesn’t make sense – these SOR data points are in addition to other SAMHSA data 
collection requirements e.g. block grant, in some cases items are duplicative, but are not 
collected at all of the same time points.  

2. Also, more instructions per section for staff would be helpful in ensuring that SOR data 
will be collected in a consistent manner. 

Data Collection Time Points: 
1. SOR/TOR grant programs will collect data at four time points: intake, three months post 

intake, six months post intake, and discharge.  The post intake data collections may 
occur after the client has been discharged from the program. These 4 time points is 
more than most SUD programs typically submit. Most complete 2 assessments 
(enrollment and discharge), only MAT programs submit more (addition of a periodic 
assessment, completed quarterly).   

Difficulties: 
Both of the sections noted below, requires programs to complete a clinical assessment prior to 
completing these sections and related fields.  

1. Behavioral Health Diagnoses: Depending on the type of program serving OUD patient 
under SOR, it may be difficult to capture DSM 5 diagnoses/ICD 10 codes related to SUD 
and MH (E.g. atr, wraparound or case management services). If there is no masters level 
or higher clinician to make a clinical diagnoses, what is the data reporting expectation? 
Is this a diagnosis that was made at the time of current treatment, or a previous 
diagnosis? What if staff entering this data don’t know at the time of admission? There is 
only an option “none of the above”. Should “don’t know” be added? 

2. 2: Services Planned: Documenting all planned services during this current episode 
treatment, would require a full clinical assessment assessing clients clinical and 
wraparound needs prior to this point in time.  
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Question Specific Comments 

Records Management: 
1. Interview type – by having grantees fill his in an open ended space – it may be tough to 

track what is baseline, 3 month, six months, and discharge (e.g. what if discharge was at 
6 months, and technically they missed the actual 6 m assessment). Of course analysts at 
the back end can figure this out, but may be messy. Perhaps having 2 questions that get 
at which of the 4 time points this assessment is for, and a second question that collects 
what month the actual assessment was completed. 

Demographics 
1. Question 3a – people who are transgender should be able to answer this question. 

Currently the note says if sex=female, more directions might be helpful for staff 
completing these assessments. 

2. Question 3a- would be helpful to know how far a long someone is in their pregnancy? 
Could inform treatment 

3. Question 5 is missing a don’t know option (each question should consistently have a 
don’t know and a declined option) 

4. Question 4 – for Hispanic/Latino/a, or Spanish origin -  add Salvadoran 
5. Ethnicity is not collected. Suggestion – adding this element might be critical for 

evaluation looking at cultural competency. (recommended responses: African, African 
American, American, Asian Indian, Brazilian, Cambodian, Cape Verdean, Caribbean 
Islander, Chinese Eastern European, European, Filipino, Haitian, Japanese, Korean, 
Laotian, Latin American Indian, Middle eastern, Portuguese, Russian, Thai, Vietnamese, 
Unknown, Unknown, Other – specify) 

6. Currently no data collection related to Tribal community associations 
7. Perhaps Q 9,10,11 should move under medical status 

 Medical Status 
1. M1 and M1b. Might be helpful to ask these questions regarding past year as well. 
2. M! and M1b – is there a maximum of digits? 

Employment/Support Status 
1. No comments/questions 

Substance Use 
1. Needs instructions. Yes/no, or indicating how many days? 
2. For the alcohol us in the drug table, there is no definition for intoxication, or instructions 

for completion 

 
3. What about past year use? 
4. For route of administration might be important to add vaping/e-cigarettes 
5. Substance table is confusing in terms of how Opioids are captured – there should be a 

clarification that this is non-medical use of prescription Opioids 
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6. D19 – 20. Remove “abuse” language, change to alcohol use disorder, and drug use 
disorder 

7. D19-D22 what if treatment episodes were for “addiction”/multiple SUD how would a 
client respond to number of prior treatments by drugs or alcohol  

Legal Status 
1. Question L2 – asks if client is on parole or probation, is it potentially important to 

distinguish these two categories (i.e. change the format of this question) 

Family/Social Relationships 
1. Question F4 has an option of “refused” which is inconsistent with all other SOR 

questions that have the option as “declined” 
2. Question F5 is missing the question number next to the question 
3. Question F5 has an option of “refused” which is inconsistent with all other SOR 

questions that have the option as “declined” 
4. Questions skip from F10, to F18 
5. Question F31 and F33 are out of order (they come after F34) 

Psychiatric Status 
1. For questions P1-2 Is there a maximum number of fields for number of times treated? 
2. For P4 – P11, how should this be filled out (yes or not? Number of times?), also what 

about options for don’t know in declined? These questions could benefit from 
instructions. 

Modified Colorado Symptom Index 
1. For self-report measure of psychological symptomatology. Has good reliability and validity 

(Conrad, K. J., Yagelka, J. R., Matters, M. D., Rich, A. R., Williams, V., & Buchanan, M. (2001) 

Reliability and validity of a modified Colorado Symptom Index in a national homeless 
sample. Mental Health Services Research, 3(3), 141-153.) 

 

SOR/TOR Specific Questions 
1. Subsequent to question 2, might be helpful to ask if Narcan was administered 
2. For question 3, in the instructions indicate which section and question to refer back to 

for this skip logic. 

Services Provided 
1. For baseline assessment, what is the timeframe for services received? Past year, past 6 

months, etc.? 

Discharge Status 
1. Are staff supposed to fill out this portion, as well as all of the previous questions at 

discharge? If so, directions would be helpful. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________________________________________  
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GPRA direction comparison to SOR client tool 
1. Order of sections is different between two tools 
2. Interview type is more clearly defined on gpra versus SOR tool 

Gpra 

 
 
SOR 

 
3. GPRA asks about screening for co-occurring disorders, SOR does not 

 
4. Planned services, gpra provides instructions, SOR tool does not 
5. Planned services, medical services section is longer on SOR than GPRA (8 items versus 4) 
6. SOR asks for ICD 10 codes related to behavioral health diagnoses, GPRA does not 
7. Gender is captured differently 
8. GPRA military section has skip logic,  SOR does not 
9. SOR does not ask about active duty, GPRA does 
10. GPRA asks about family military involvement, SOR does not 
11. Substance use history has different format, sor is missing instructions 
12. GPRA has more detail regarding defining use (e.g. to intoxication, more than 5+ drinks in 

one sitting), SOR does not have that 
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13. Past 30 days usual living arrangements are different 
14. F6 – satisfaction scale is different 

SOR 

 
GPRA 

 
15. SOR no longer has a military section, SOR has three questions that are at a much higher 

level, e.g.  
SOR 

 
 

 
16. Gpra section on mental and physical health problems and treatment/recovery is more 

detailed than SOR, which is now broken out into separate sections and does not have 
the same level of detail 

17. Services received in gpra, is now called services provided in SOR 
18. Discharge status is different 

SOR 
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GPRA 

 
19. HIV questions not included in SOR, that are in GPRA 

 



From: Pelotte, Tara M
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT); Coutu, Katherine
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Proposed Project: State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW
Date: Monday, December 3, 2018 4:17:39 PM
Attachments: Attachment A - SOR TOR Client Instrument.docx

Attachment B - SOR TOR Program Instrument.docx
SOR TOR OMB SS-A 10.4.2018.docx
SOR TOR OMB SS-B 9.20.2018.docx

Good morning, Ms. King-
 
Please see the comments below from the State of Maine re: the proposed data collection instruments:
 
SSA Comments:
 
Based on the language of these documents, our understanding is such that in order to operationalize these data collection protocols properly, Maine will require the use a staff resource or contracted
resource to collect the required data from program providers as outlined in Attachments A and B. Program providers in Maine will Not be asked to complete a separate form, which would cause
duplication and undue administrative burden in the midst of an opioid crisis, they will only be asked to update their own EHR assessments and tools in order to comply with these new SOR reporting
requirements (if necessary).
 
Provider comments:
 
In regard to the information Katherine has requested we gather in our assessment there are a few challenges from a logistical standpoint. To that end, the measure would need to be done separately
and in addition to the biopsychosocial assessment. To that end however, many of the questions asked by the instrument would also assist in gathering and starting the discussion for much of the
information for the biopsychosocial itself. 
 
 My overall clinical consensus is that a good share of the information gathered will answer much of the questions asked of us to gather but will be cumbersome on both ends for the state to pull it
from our biopsychosocial. In addition,although some of the information/data is gathered as part of our biopsychosocial assessment: some of the questions regarding behaviors and circumstances for
specific time periods would not be (i.e., past 90 day mental health symptoms, etc) . To ask these questions with program clients in a general interview with such specificity in the psychosocial
interview would in many instances feel fragmented and awkward for the clinician and the client. 
 
Lastly, the section regarding past 30 day substance use will be skewed with many of our clients in the jail for obvious reasons. Will this issue be considered and weighted when the state/ feds look at
our indicators and outcomes? When I reviewed the instrument again I noticed that the job questions had a fine print guiding how incarcerated individuals should answer so that is helpful. 
 
Overall, I personally feel comfortable with administering this instrument as an additional piece to the assessment . More instrument equates to more time needed to assess a client in any setting; so
as long as that is understood by all then it should be fine. Clinically speaking, administering the intrustrument should be explained as such to the client as a way to gather information for current and
future program needs and outcomes as opposed to the biopsychosocial which is done to understand the individual.
 
 
Thank you and please reach out to me if I can offer additional information.
 

Tara
 
 
    Tara M. Pelotte
SAMHS Project/Grant Manager
Maine Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services
#11 State House Station, 41 Anthony Avenue
Augusta, ME 04333-0011
Desk (207) 287-2516   Cell (207) 458-4587
 
 

From: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT) [mailto:Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 5:44 PM
To: lauren.siembab@ct.gov; Parks, Michael <Michael.Parks@maine.gov>; Connors, Tom <Tom.Connors@maine.gov>; Coutu, Katherine <Katherine.Coutu@maine.gov>; Allison.bauer@state.ma.us;
amy.sorensen-alawad@state.ma.us; Nicole.m.schmitt@state.ma.us; Jennifer.miller@state.ma.us; Hannah.Lipper@state.ma.us; Abby.Shockley@dhhs.nh.gov; Donald.Hunter@dhhs.nh.gov;
Cynthia.Thomas@vermont.gov; Megan.Mitchell@vermont.gov; Mariah.Ogden@vermont.gov; sgoldsby@daodas.sc.gov; dwalker@daodas.sc.gov; ckraeff@daodas.sc.gov; bpowell@daodas.sc.gov;
rbraneck@daodas.sc.gov; taryn.sloss@tn.gov; linda.mccorkle@tn.gov; Anthony.jackson@tn.gov; richard.sherman@illinois.gov; terry.cook@fssa.in.gov; Rebecca.Buhner@fssa.IN.gov;
Jeremy.Heyer@fssa.IN.gov; Cassandra.Anderson2@fssa.IN.gov; Mark.Loggins@fssa.IN.gov; Kelly.Welker@fssa.IN.gov; ScottL11@michigan.gov; BullardS@michigan.gov; SmithA8@michigan.gov;
dave.rompa@state.mn.us; faye.bernstein@state.mn.us; Ellen.Augspurger@mha.ohio.gov; Sanford.Starr@mha.ohio.gov; joyce.allen@wisconsin.gov; Jason.Harris@dhs.wisconsin.gov;
Scott.stokes@dhs.wisconsin.gov; tcroom@odmhsas.org; monica.wilke-brown@idph.iowa.gov; Sharon.Kearse@ks.gov; rick.gowdy@dmh.mo.gov; rachel.winograd@mimh.edu;
philip.horn@mimh.edu; tamara.gavin@nebraska.gov; Marlies.Perez@dhcs.ca.gov; tfsunia@dhss.as; herbert.sablan@gmail.com; bvictor@fsmhealth.fm; athena.duenas@gbhwc.guam.gov;
temengil.ej@gmail.com
Subject: [EXTERNAL SENDER] Proposed Project: State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW
 
Dear STR and SOR Project Directors and Staff:
 
This is in follow-up to my correspondence to you of last week, indicating the publication of a Federal Registry Notice (FRN) containing the proposed reporting guidelines for the SOR and TOR Grant
initiatives.
 
Please find attached below the proposed SOR information plans and reporting instruments that were referenced in the recent posting of the Federal Register for your review and comment.
 
I cannot emphasize too greatly how important it is for you to carefully review and comment on these reporting tools, and provide whatever recommendations that you have regarding
implementation issues. 
 
I am hopeful that with your feedback we can enter into a meaningful dialogue to maximize the usefulness of this reporting, and minimize any unnecessary reporting burden.
 
Send comments to Summer King, SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer, 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57-B, Rockville, Maryland 20857, OR email a copy to
summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov.
 
Written comments should be received by December 3, 2018.

I would appreciate your copying me on any feedback that you provide in this process so that I can be fully prepared to particiapte in this dialogue.
 
Thank you and best regards,
 

Spencer Clark
 
Spencer Clark, MSW, LMSW, ACSW,
Public Health Advisor/
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State Opioid Response/Tribal Opioid Response (SOR/TOR) Client-Level Data Collection Tool



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





Interview Type (SELECT ONLY ONE TYPE)



		Baseline 	

		Reassessment: |____|____| months 

	 	Discharge: Patient completed services

	 	Discharge: Administrative (SKIP TO SECTION X)





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



	    Not able to obtain consent from proxy

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





Is this an Opioid Treatment Program (OTP)? Y/N  (Ask only at intake)
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

(Including Marriage Education, Parenting, Child Development Services)

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

[bookmark: _GoBack] F10.11 – Alcohol use disorder, mild, in remission

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



3. How do you describe yourself? (check all that apply)



 Male 

 Female 

 Transgender

 Do not identify as female, male or transgender



 DECLINED

 DON’T KNOW





3a. 	Are you currently pregnant? (Ask only if sex = female)



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



M1. 	How many times in your life have you been hospitalized for medical problems? ________



[Include O.D.'s and D.T.'s. Exclude detox, alcohol/drug, psychiatric treatment and childbirth (if no complications). Enter the number of overnight hospitalizations for medical problems.]



		 DECLINED

		 DON’T KNOW



M1b.	How many times in your life have you been treated in the emergency room for medical problems? _____



[Include O.D.'s and D.T.'s. Exclude detox, alcohol/drug, psychiatric treatment and childbirth (if no complications).] 



		 DECLINED

		 DON’T KNOW



M3.	Do you have any chronic medical problems which continue to interfere with your life?



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



M4. 	Are you taking any prescribed medication on a regular basis for a physical problem?



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



M5.	Do you receive a pension for a physical disability?

	

[Include workman’s compensation, exclude psychiatric disability] 



		   Yes

		   No



		   DECLINED

		   DON’T KNOW






M6.	How many days have you experienced medical problems in the past 30 days?  ________



[Do not include ailments directly caused by drugs/alcohol.  Include flu, colds, etc. Include serious ailments related to drugs/alcohol, which would continue even if the patient were abstinent (e.g., cirrhosis of liver, abscesses from needles, etc.).]



	

			  	DECLINED

·       DON’T KNOW



M7.	How troubled or bothered have you been by these medical problems in the past 30 days?  



[Restrict response to problem days of  Question M6.]



		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



			 	DECLINED

			 	DON’T KNOW





M8. 	How important to you now is treatment for these medical problems?



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



E1.	Education completed:  ____	_____

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



E9.		Does someone else contribute the majority of your support?



 		 Yes

		  No



		  DECLINED

		  DON’T KNOW





E10.      Usual employment pattern, past three years:



		 Full time (35 + hours)		  Retired/disability

		 Part time (regular hours)		  Unemployed

		 Part time (irregular hours)                     In controlled environment

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





How much money have you earned from the following sources in the past 30 days?



			E12. 	Employment	______

			[Net or "take home" pay, include any "under the table" money.]



			E13.	Unemployment compensation	______



			E14.	Welfare	 _______

			[Include food stamps, transportation money provided by an agency to go to and from treatment.]

			

			E15.	Pensions, benefits and Social Security  ______

			[Include disability, pensions, retirement, veteran's benefits, SSI & workers' compensation].



			E16.	Mate, family and friends  _______

[Money for personal expenses, (i.e. clothing), include unreliable sources of income (e.g. gambling).  Record cash payments only, include windfalls (unexpected), money from loans, gambling, inheritance, tax returns, etc.)].



			E17.	Illegal ______

[Cash obtained from drug dealing, stealing, fencing stolen goods, gambling, prostitution, etc. Do not attempt to convert drugs exchanged to a dollar value.]

	

	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW









  E18.	How many people depend on you for the majority of their food, shelter etc.? ______

 

 [Must be regularly depending on patient, do include alimony/child support, do not include the patient or self-supporting spouse, etc.]



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW

E19. 	How many days have you experienced employment problems in the past 30 days?  ______

		

[Include inability to find work, if they are actively looking for work, or problems with present job in which that job is jeopardized.]



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



E20.	How troubled or bothered have you been by these employment problems in the past 30 days?

  

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



E21.	How important to you now is counseling for these employment problems?



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












SUBSTANCE USE



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

		

		

		



		Other non-prescription opioid (specify)

		

		

		



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

		

		

		









D17.      How many times have you had the Alcohol DTs?      ________



[Delerium tremens (DT) occur 24-48 hours after last drink, or significant decrease in alcohol intake.  DT symptoms include shaking, severe disorientation, fever, hallucinations, and they usually require medical attention].



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



How many times in your life have you been treated for:



[Include detoxification, halfway houses, in/outpatient counseling, and AA or NA (if 3+ meetings within one month period).]



D19.         Alcohol abuse?  ____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



D20.          Drug Abuse?      ____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



How many of these were detox only?



[If D19 = “00”, then question D21 is “Not Applicable”; if D20 = “00”, then question D22 is “Not Applicable]



D21.            Alcohol?  _____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



	          NOT APPLICABLE





D22.              Drugs? _____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW



	          NOT APPLICABLE







How much money would you say you spent in the last 30 days on?



[Only count actual money spent.  What is the financial burden caused by drugs/alcohol?]



D23.   Alcohol?  _____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW





D24.    Drugs? _____



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW









D25.   How many days have you been treated as an outpatient for alcohol or drugs in the past 30 days?  ______

	

[Include AA/NA]	





	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW





D26.  How many days in the past 30 have you had alcohol problems?_____





	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW









D28.   How troubled or bothered have you been in the past 30 days by these alcohol problems?



		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW





D30.   How important to you now is treatment for these alcohol problems? 



		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW

































D27.  How many days in the past 30 have you had drug problems?_____

__

[Include only: craving, withdrawal symptoms, disturbing effects of use, wanting to stop and being unable to.]

_



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW





D29.  How troubled or bothered have you been in the past 30 days by these drug problems?





		 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW





D31.  How important to you now is treatment for these drug problems?



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

		

		

		

		



		L4. Parole/Probation

		

		

		

		



		L5. Drug Charges

		

		

		

		



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

[Do not include misdemeanor offenses from questions L18-20 below.]

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


































L24. 	Are you presently awaiting charges, trials or sentence?

		

· Yes

· No

· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW



L25.  	What for?



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



 











































































L26. How many days in the past 30 were you detained or incarcerated? ____

          [Include being arrested and released on the same day.]



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW

















L27.  How many days in the past 30 have you engaged in illegal activities for profit? ____

[Exclude simple drug possession.  Include drug dealing, prostitution, selling stolen goods, etc.  May be cross-checked with Question E17 under Employment/Social Support Section.]



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW











































L28.  How serious do you feel your present legal problems are?



[Exclude civil problems]



 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW





L29.  How important to you now is counseling or referral for these legal problems?__________



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



F3.  Are you satisfied with this situation?

[Satisfied = generally liking the situation]



·        Yes

·        Indifferent

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED






















































F4.  Usual living arrangements (past 3 years):



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

·        Refused





  In the past 30 days, where have you been living most of the time?  



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

	REFUSED

	DON’T KNOW





F6.  Are you satisfied with these arrangements?



·        Yes

·        Indifferent

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED









































    

































































F7.  Do you live with anyone who has a current alcohol problem?



·        Yes

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED



F8.  Do you live with anyone who uses non-prescribed drugs?



·        Yes

·        No



·        DON’T KNOW

·        DECLINED





F9.  With whom do you spend most of your free time?



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



F10.  Are you satisfied spending your free time this way?



[A satisfied response must indicate that the person generally likes the situation described in F9]



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

F18.  Mother











F19.  Father











F20.  Brother/Sister











F21.  Sexual Partner/Spouse











F22.  Children











F23.  Other Significant Family 

Specify__________________________











F24.  Close Friends











F25.  Neighbors











F26.  Co-workers































































Has anyone abused you?





Past 30 Days

In Your Life

F27. Emotionally?

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

F28.  Physically?

[Caused you physical harm]

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

F29.  Sexually?

[Forced sexual advances/acts]

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

Yes          DECLINED

No          DON’T KNOW

















F30.  How many days in the past 30 have you had serious conflicts with your family?  ____



· DON’T KNOW

· DECLINED





F32.  How troubled or bothered have you been in the past 30 days by family problems?



 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW



F34.  How important to you now is treatment or counseling for these family problems?



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














































































F31.  How many days in the past 30 have you had serious conflicts with other people (excluding family)?  ____



· DON’T KNOW

· DECLINED





F33.  How troubled or bothered have you been in the past 30 days by social problems?



 	Not at all 

	Slightly 

·        Moderately

·        Considerably 

·        Extremely 



·        DECLINED

·        DON’T KNOW



F35.  How important to you now is treatment or counseling for these social problems?



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













	











Have you had a significant period of time (that was not a direct result of alcohol/drug use) in which you have:



		

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

		

		























For Items P8-P10  patients can have been under the influence of alcohol/drugs



		

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

		RF

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





RF=Refused, NA = Not applicable, DK = Don’t know












 SOR/TOR Specific Questions





1. In the past 90 days, how many nights have you spent in an incarceration facility/institution? ____



(An incarceration facility/institution is a federal, state or local jail, prison, or detention facility. Count all new and current individuals that have been recently been released.)



· DECLINED

· DON’T KNOW



2. How many times have you overdosed on drugs?      ________



(Overdoses (OD): Requires intervention by someone to recover, not simply sleeping it off, include suicide attempts by OD.)



	 	DECLINED

	 	DON’T KNOW





3. [Ask only if client indicated they injected drugs.] In the past 30 days, have you shared syringes/needles or other injection equipment? 



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

		Expulsion from program

		Incarcerated (NEWLY OR RE-INCARCERATED) 

		Clinically referred out

		Death  (SPECIFY CAUSE OF DEATH IF KNOWN) ________________________

		Other (SPECIFY): __________________________________




Attachment C – Program Instrument

[bookmark: _GoBack]State Opioid Response (SOR) /Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) – Program Instrument

For all program-specific questions below, consider the past three months as the reporting time period. Information and data should be reported for all programs/services either funded wholly or in part by SOR/TOR grant funds.   

For all questions below, if unable to answer a question that requires a number, please indicate the reason as follows: 



1   DATA UNAVAILABLE

2	DATA AVAILABLE, BUT UNABLE TO OBTAIN IN ALLOTTED TIME

3	DATA AVAILABLE, BUT INCONSISTENT IN DIFFERENT DATA SOURCES

4	OTHER (Specify the reason following the section in the space provided).

 

		

		Naloxone Overdose Reversal Kit Distribution and Utilization



		

		



		1

		

Has your state/territory/tribal entity used SOR/TOR funds to expand the availability, distribution, and use of naloxone overdose reversal kits (Narcan, Evzio, and others)? 



Yes/No





		1a

		

If “Yes,” how many naloxone overdose reversal kits have been purchased (funded) wholly or in part since the last reporting period with SOR/TOR funds? 



____ kits 



If information is unavailable, please indicate why using the codes provided above________________





		1b

		

If “Yes,” how many naloxone overdose reversal kits funded wholly or in part by SOR/TOR funds have been distributed since the last reporting period? 



____ kits 



If information is unavailable, please indicate why using the codes provided above________________
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STATE OPIOID RESPONSE (SOR) AND TRIBAL OPIOID RESPONSE (TOR) PROGRAM DATA COLLECTION AND PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

SUPPORTING STATEMENT



A. 	Justification

A.1	Circumstances of Information Collection

[bookmark: _Toc391970689]

The Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA), Center for Substance Abuse Treatment (CSAT) is requesting approval from the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for new data collection activities associated with the State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) discretionary grant programs. 



Information will be collected using a grantee-level (state/territory or tribal entity) tool and client-level tool that will provides CSAT with  information about all SOR/TOR grantees, including: demographic information of clients served, services received (including use of Medication Assisted Treatment), behavioral health diagnoses, and substance use.  In order to be fully accountable for the spending of federal funds, SAMHSA/CSAT requires all SOR/TOR grantees to collect and report data on clients served to ensure program goals and objectives are being met.  Data collected as part of this package are used as a tool to monitor performance through the grant period.  All data under this request will be collected electronically in SAMHSA’s Performance and Accountability Reporting System (SPARS). 



Approval of this information collection will allow SAMHSA to continue to meet the Government Performance and Results Modernization Act of 2010 (GPRMA) reporting requirements that quantify the effects and accomplishments of its discretionary grant programs which are consistent with OMB guidance.  



In order to carry out section 1105(a) (29) of the GPRA, SAMHSA is required to prepare a performance plan for its major programs of activity.  This plan must:



a)	Establish performance goals to define the level of performance to be achieved by a program activity;

b)	Express such goals in an objective, quantifiable, and measurable form;

c)	Briefly describe the operational processes, skills and technology, and the human, capital, information, or other resources required to meet the performance goals;

d)	Establish performance indicators to be used in measuring or assessing the relevant outputs, service levels, and outcomes of each program activity;

e)	Provide a basis for comparing actual program results with the established performance goals; and

f)	Describe the means to be used to verify and validate measured values.



SAMHSA’s legislative mandate is to increase access to high quality prevention and treatment services and to improve outcomes.  Its mission is to reduce the impact of substance use and mental illness on our communities.  



The SOR/TOR programs and activities are geared toward the achievement of goals related to reducing the impact of opioid use and the opioid epidemic affecting the Nation.  GPRA performance monitoring is a collaborative and cooperative aspect of this process.  



A.2	Purpose and Use of Information 



SAMHSA uses the performance measures to report on the performance of its discretionary services grant programs.  The performance information is used by individuals at three different levels: the Assistant Secretary for Mental Health and Substance Use and SAMHSA staff, the Center administrators and government project officers, and grantees:  



Assistant Secretary for Mental Health and Substance Use —The information is used to inform the administration of the performance of the SOR/TOR programs.  The performance is based on the goals of the grant program and includes the National Outcome Measure (NOMs).  This information serves as the basis of the annual GPRA report to Congress contained in the Justifications of Budget Estimates.  



Center Level—In addition to exploring the performance of the SOR/TOR programs, the information will be used to monitor and manage individual grant projects within each program.  The information informs the government project officers of the program staff’s abilities to meet their individual goals.  



Grantee Level—In addition to monitoring performance outcomes, the grantee staff uses the information to improve the quality of treatment and prevention services provided to clients within their projects.  



Grantees will be required to collect client-level data from all individuals receiving opioid treatment services funded under the SOR/TOR grant programs.  The CSAT SOR/TOR Client-level tool will address the following domains:


· Demographics

· Services Planned/Received

· Mental Health and Substance Use Diagnoses

· Medical Status

· Employment/Support Status

· Family/Social Relationships

· Substance Use

· Legal Status

· Psychiatric Status/Symptoms

· SOR/TOR Program Specific Questions 

	

The CSAT SOR/TOR grantee-level tool will collect information on naloxone overdose reversal kits that were purchased and distributed using grant funds.  This grantee-level information will be collected quarterly.





[bookmark: _Toc391970690]A.3	Use of Improved Information Technology



SOR/TOR grantees will collect client-level information using a variety of methods from paper and pencil to electronic methods.  The SOR/TOR data collection will not interfere with ongoing program operations that facilitate information collection at each site as state/territories and tribal entity are already using collecting and reporting program data as a component of other SAMHSA grants.  



Electronic submission of the data promotes enhanced data quality.  With built-in data quality checks, easy access to data outputs and reports, users of the data can feel confident about the quality of the output.  The electronic submission also promotes immediate access to the dataset.  Once the data are entered into the web-based system, it is available for access, review, and reporting by all those with access to the system from Center staff to the grantee staff.  



[bookmark: _Toc391970691]A.4	Efforts to Avoid Duplication



The items collected under this request are necessary in order to assess SOR/TOR grantee performance.  SAMHSA is promoting the use of consistent performance and outcomes measures across all programs; this effort will ultimately result in less overlap and duplication, and will reduce the burden on grantees that results from data demands associated with individual programs. 



Though there may be initial potential overlap with data already being collected among grantees and/or sub-grantees that are already collecting client-level GPRA measures, SAMHSA will work closely with the grantees to identify duplication and will identify a priority action plan to reduce the duplicative efforts, and streamline the data items to reduce client burden.  



[bookmark: _Toc391970692]A.5	Involvement of Small Businesses



Individual grantees are likely to vary from small entities to large provider organizations.  Every effort has been made to minimize the number of data items collected from programs and sub-recipients to accomplish objectives of the SOR/TOR grant program and to meet GPRA reporting requirements.  

[bookmark: _Toc391970693]A.6	Consequences if Information Collected Less Frequently



SOR/TOR grant programs will collect data at four time points: intake, three months post intake, six months post intake, and discharge.  The post intake data collections may occur after the client has been discharged from the program.  These times points are part of regular program activity.  If the data is collected less frequently, the ability to determine changes in client services and substance use will be difficult to ascertain.  



These data collection points are generally accepted intervals for client assessment and the participants will be asked to respond to the items according to this schedule.  The data will be reported to SAMHSA on an annual basis in keeping with the GPRA requirements for annual reporting. 



[bookmark: _Toc391970694]A.7	Consistency with the Guidelines in 5 CFR 1320.5(d)(2)



[bookmark: _Toc391970695]The data collection efforts will be consistent with the guidelines at 5 CFR 1320.5(d)(2). 



A.8	Consultation Outside the Agency



[bookmark: _GoBack]As required by 5 CFR 1320.8(d), the 60-Day FRN was published in the Federal Register on October 4, 2018 (83 FR 50116).  



A.9	Payment to Respondents



According to the SOR and TOR funding opportunity announcements (FOAs), grant funds cannot be used to “[m]ake direct payments to individuals to enter treatment or continue to participate in prevention or treatment services” however, “[a] recipient or treatment or prevention provider may provide up to $30 non-cash incentive to individuals to participate in required data collection follow up.  This amount may be paid for participation in each required follow up interview.” 



Survey research literature suggests that monetary incentives have a strong positive effect on response rates and no known adverse effect on reliability.  In particular, substance abuse research has shown improved response rates when remuneration is offered to respondents.  Substance abusers are typically a harder-to-reach population for whom out-of-pocket costs of participation (e.g., transportation, child care) are significant barriers. 



A.10	Assurance of Confidentiality



The information from SOR/TOR grantees and all other potential respondents will be kept private through all points in the data collection and reporting processes.  However, SAMHSA cannot ensure complete confidentiality of client data.  All data will be closely safeguarded, and no institutional or individual identifiers will be used in reports.  Only aggregated data will be reported.   



SAMHSA has statutory authority to collect data under the Government Performance and Results Act (Public Law 1103(a), Title 31) and is subject to the Privacy Act for the protection of data.  Federally assisted substance abuse treatment providers are subject to the federal regulations for alcohol and substance abuse patient records (42 CFR Part 2) which govern the protection of patient identifying data.  In some cases, these same providers meet the definition of a HIPAA covered entity and are additionally subject to the Privacy Rule (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) for the protection of individually identifiable data.  



Health information data protection standards are taken to protect the information shared.  The information is collected using multi-factor authentication and is stored in a Federal Information Security Modernization Act moderate compliant system that has an up to date Authority to Operate. 



A.11	Questions of a Sensitive Nature



SAMHSA’s mission is to improve the quality and availability of prevention, early intervention, treatment, and rehabilitation services for substance abuse and mental illnesses, including co-occurring disorders, in order to improve health and reduce illness, death, disability, and cost to society.  In carrying out this mission it is necessary for service providers to collect sensitive items such as experiences with violence and trauma, criminal justice involvement, use of alcohol or other drugs, as well as issues of mental health.  The data that will be submitted by each SOR/TOR grantee will be based in large part on data that most of the programs are likely already routinely collecting.  This primarily includes data on client demographics, substance use and treatment history, services received, and client outcomes. Grant projects use informed consent forms as required and as viewed appropriate by their individual organizations.  They also use the appropriate forms for minor/adolescent participants requiring parental approval.  Client data are routinely collected and subject to the Federal Regulations on Human Subject Protection (45 CFR Part 46).  Alcohol and drug abuse client records in federally supported programs are also protected by 42 CFR Part 2.  The informed consent forms usually contain the following elements: 



· Explanation of the purpose of the program or research.

· Expected duration of the subject’s participation.

· Description of the procedures to be followed.

· Identification of any procedures that are experimental.

· Description of any reasonably foreseeable risks or discomforts to the subject. 

· Disclosure of appropriate alternative procedures or courses of treatment.

· Statement describing the extent, if any, to which confidentiality of records identifying the subject will be maintained.

· Contact names & phone numbers for participants to ask questions about program, participant rights, and injury.



A.12	Estimates of Annualized Hour Burden



Table 1 shows the estimated annualized burden hours for the respondents’ time to participate in each data collection activity.  The estimated number of clients participating in this data collection is based on the number of clients served by the State Targeted Response grant program in fiscal year 2018.  Across the instruments, the total burden is estimated to be 401,788 hours.  The total cost burden is estimated to be $8,992,018.



















Table 1.  Estimate of Annualized Hour Burden for SOR/TOR Grantees



		SAMHSA Data Collection

		Number of Respondents

		Responses per Respondent

		Total Number of Responses

		Burden Hours per Response

		Total Burden Hours

		Hourly Wage[footnoteRef:1] [1:  The hourly wage estimate is $20.64 based on the Occupational Employment and Wages, March 2016 Mean Hourly Wage Rate for 21-1011 Substance Abuse and Behavioral Disorder Counselors  = $20.64/hr. as of March, 2016.  (http://www.bls.gov/oes/current/oes211011.htm  (Accessed on July 28, 2016).
] 


		Total Wage Cost



		

		

		

		

		

		

		

		



		Grantee-Level Instrument

		359

		4

		1,436

		.17

		244

		$22.38

		$5,463



		Client-Level Instrument: Baseline Interview

		165,000

		1

		165,000

		.78

		128,700

		$22.38

		$2,880,306



		Client-Level Instrument: Follow-up Interview[footnoteRef:2] [2:  It is estimated that 80% of baseline clients will complete the 3 month and 6 month interview.
] 


		132,000

		2

		264,000

		.78

		205,920

		$22.38

		$4,608,490



		Client-Level Instrument: Discharge Interview[footnoteRef:3] [3:  It is estimated that 52% of baseline clients will complete this interview.] 


		85,800

		1

		85,800

		.78

		66,924

		$22.38

		$1,497,759



		CSAT Total

		165,359

		

		516,236

		

		401,788

		

		$8,992,018







Notes: 

 The hourly wage estimate is $22.38 based on the Occupational Employment and Wages, May 2017 Mean Hourly Wage Rate for 21-1018 Substance Abuse, Behavioral Disorder, and Mental Health Counselors as of September 2018 (https://www.bls.gov/oes/current/oes211018.htm) (Accessed on September 14, 2018).

2 It is estimated that 80% of baseline clients will complete the three month and six month follow-up interviews.

3 It is estimated that 52% of baseline clients will complete this interview.



[bookmark: _Toc391970700]A.13	Estimates of Annualized Respondent Capital and Maintenance Costs



There are neither capital nor startup costs, nor are there any operations or maintenance costs.

A.14	Estimates of Annualized Cost to the Federal Government



SAMHSA has planned and allocated resources for the management, processing, and use of the collected information in a manner that will enhance its utility to the federal government, as well as award recipients.  The SPARS contract modification to cover the task order expansion of the current data collection system accommodating this data collection is approximately $500,000.  It is estimated that one full-time equivalent federal staff will be involved for 15% of their time, at an estimated annualized cost of $15,000 to the government.  The total estimated average cost to the government for year one is $515,000, and $15,000 for year two.



The annualized cost to the government is $265,000.



[bookmark: _Toc391970702]A.15	Change in Burden



This is a new data collection. 



A.16	Time Schedule, Publication and Analysis Plan



Data for the annual GPRA plan/report are needed by SAMHSA by September of each year.  The discretionary services program data are readily available through the SPARS web-based system.  The annual GPRA report must be submitted to the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (the Department) and to OMB by September and is included in the President's annual budget request which is released to the public February 1st.  Data may be refined and added to the final Presidential budget request after the Department submits its initial GPRA report.  



Client outcome data will be collected through the SPARS web site.  Data will be used to report to Congress regarding the GPRA as specified in the SAMHSA Annual Justifications of Budget Estimates.  Program data will also be collected in SPARS. 



SAMHSA and each of its Centers use the data for annual reporting required by GPRA on the previously stated items, comparing baseline with discharge and follow-up data.  The GPRA dataset will consist of each element coded into the reporting categories as seen in Attachment 1.  These data are at the client record level.  The SAMHSA GPRA client outcome data will be aggregated at the following levels: Grantee, and Activity.  The analysis will be organized around SAMHSA's GPRA measures. The program data set will consist of each element coded into the reporting categories as seen in Attachment 2. 



Baseline level analysis involves using frequency distributions and measures of central tendency to describe the populations across the GPRA clients and by various demographic groups (e.g., gender, race, ethnicity, diagnosis, age, and level of education).  The client will be followed longitudinally, with the GPRA client outcome items re-administered again at discharge, three months and six months after baseline.  The follow-up data also will be described using frequency distributions and measures of central tendency.  Change will be addressed by comparing the discharge and follow-up measurements with baseline data for each client.  The percent of clients showing the target changes will be calculated on each of the GPRA client outcome measures that are categorical. For continuous items, mean differences will be calculated.  



Occasionally, the results will be examined for subpopulations of interest within individual activities (e.g., by age or by gender).  Program level data will also be analyzed using frequency distributions and measures of central tendency as relevant. 



[bookmark: _Toc391970704]A.17	Display of Expiration Date



The OMB expiration date will be displayed. 



A.18	Exceptions to Certification Statement



This collection of information involves no exceptions to the Certification for Paperwork Reduction Act Submissions.  
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[bookmark: _Toc471198151][bookmark: _Toc329674960]STATE OPIOID RESPONSE (SOR) AND TRIBAL OPIOID RESPONSE (TOR) PROGRAM DATA COLLECTION AND PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT 

SUPPORTING STATEMENT



B. 	Collections of Information Employing Statistical Methods

B.1	Potential Respondent Universe and Respondent Selection Method

[bookmark: _Toc290021779][bookmark: _Toc471198152]B.1.1	Respondent Universe



Fifty (50) states, seven (7) jurisdictions, and 302 tribal entities are the award recipients that will be included in this data collection.  Progress reporting from all award recipients is necessary, and based on aggregated data and used to monitor progress as well as assess effectiveness and best practices. 



[bookmark: _Toc471198153]B.1.2	Sampling Methods



The sampling plan is a census of all SOR/TOR award recipients.  There is a need for a census of information from all grantees to monitor progress and provide feedback on planned activities and performance in a timely manner.  Government project officers need access to periodic information for discussions with grantees about progress and achievement of program goals, as well as to report progress of the SOR/TOR program overall.



[bookmark: _Toc471198154]B.2	Information Collection Procedures

Information collection procedures will vary by program.  For most providers, some information will be extracted from previously established databases.  Intake/baseline information is obtained by intake workers and/or counselors.  For clients still in treatment three and six months after intake, the information will be obtained in the same way.  In instances where clients are no longer in direct contact with the service provider, staff from the program will locate the clients and conduct the follow-up interviews.



Some programs collect their client information using paper-and-pencil methods.  This project will not interfere with ongoing program operations.  Programs will submit their data electronically via a web-based data entry system, the SAMHSA’s Performance Accountability and Reporting System (SPARS), using a unique, encrypted client identifier for each client.  This unique client identifier will be used to match client data across each data collection time point (baseline, follow-up, and discharge).  Information data collection procedures will be the responsibility of individual grantees and may vary by type of program.  

Client-level data collection

Some grantees may wish to collect client-level information using paper and pencil methods.  SAMHSA will provide downloadable paper versions of the data collection instrument to facilitate this process.  These grantees will then submit their data electronically via a web-based data entry process.  The data for clients with both baseline and periodic reassessment data are matched using the SPARS ID.  Grantees will be clearly instructed not to use identifying information (i.e., social security number or initials) as the client identifier. 

Required data collection points are:

BASELINE:  For clients who have not previously been served by program, or who are returning to services following a discharge from the program, baseline data will be collected.  For clients already enrolled in the program and continuing to receive services, data should be submitted by the grantee within 30 days of initiating data collection.  The timing of any subsequent data collection point(s) will be anchored to the baseline point the grantee indicates in the administrative record.  

THREE AND SIX MONTH FOLLOW-UP:  SAMHSA will requires client-level data collection three and six months after baseline/intake.  Ongoing periodic status review is viewed as consistent with good clinical practice.  

DISCHARGE:  Grantees must provide information on the type of discharge on all clients who are discharged.  When the discharge is a planned event, the client will also be asked the questions on the client-level data collection instrument.  The one exception to this requirement is when a client had responded to these same questions within the past 30 days as part of the six-month follow-up.  

Each grantee may have its own plan for data collection, processing, data cleaning, control, and retention.  Each plan should describe how uniform data collection will be ensured, the time frame for conducting the data collection over the course of the project, and how participant protection will be assured.  These plans undergo peer review to ensure the adequacy and appropriateness of the study design and methods.  The precise manner in which data will be collected and used depends on the specific grant program. 



[bookmark: _Toc471198155][bookmark: _Toc471198156]B.3	Methods to Maximize Response Rates



At the time of intake, information is typically obtained from clients to assist with locating them later.  This includes information on current residence and contact information for one or two other individuals who are likely to know where they are if they have re-located.  In addition, some providers are adept at using other community resources to assist with locating clients.  Clients are typically quite cooperative with provider staff because of the relationship established during treatment.  Since all participating grant programs propose a census at initial intake, considerable options also exist for non-respondent analysis and associated adjustments to the data such as weighting.



Follow-up has been a challenge for some grantees, given the remote locations that they serve and the challenge of locating clients three and six months after intake.  For grantees that have not been aware of the strategies they can employ to begin the follow-up process at intake, how to maintain contact with clients, and the importance of good locator forms, several strategies have been implemented to assist the grantees with follow-up.  First, follow-up training will be offered to assist grantees in learning about and conducting follow-up at their sites.  This program is offered to all grantees and after the grantees are trained through the grantee orientation process.  A second strategy provides the grantees with data status reports on how close they are to meeting their follow-up goals.  These reports are available from the web-based system to the grantees and Government Project Officers (GPOs) for the grants they are responsible.  A third strategy is the automatic, system-generated notice of when follow-up interviews are due for each client/participant. 

[bookmark: _Toc471198157]B.4	Test of Procedures



Most of the items on the existing data collection instrument used in this information collection have come from a tool that has been used extensively in the substance abuse field and has already been tested for validity and reliability (the Addiction Severity Index). Demographic and service questions have been added to the instrument.  



[bookmark: _Toc471198158]B.5	Statistical Consultants



Lt Dantrell Simmons, DrPH

Center for Substance Abuse Treatment

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration





[bookmark: _GoBack]


LIST OF ATTACHMENTS



Attachment A – State Opioid Response/Tribal Opioid Response (SOR/TOR) Client-Level Data Collection Tool



Attachment B – State Opioid Response/Tribal Opioid Response (SOR/TOR) Program Instrument
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
To: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT) <Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov>
Cc: Jacobus-Kantor, Laura (SAMHSA/CBHSQ) <Laura.Jacobus-Kantor@samhsa.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: SAMHSA Internal Request for More Information on the Proposed Project and to Obtain a Copy of the Information Collection Plans for the SOR and TOR Grant Initiatives
 
 
 
Hi Spencer,
Attached are copies of the information plans and the instruments.  Please let me know if you need anything else.
Thanks,
Summer
 
_____________________________________________
From: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT) 
Sent: Tuesday, October 9, 2018 10:07 AM
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI) <Summer.King@samhsa.hhs.gov>
Subject: SAMHSA Internal Request for More Information on the Proposed Project and to Obtain a Copy of the Information Collection Plans for the SOR and TOR Grant Initiatives
 
 
Dear Summer:

Please provide me with a copy of the information collection plans and copies of the instruments as described below in the FRN released last week:

In compliance with Section 3506(c)(2)(A) of the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 concerning opportunity for public comment on proposed collections of information,
the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA) will publish periodic summaries of proposed projects. To request more information on the
proposed project or to obtain a copy of the information collection plans, call the SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer on (240) 276-1243.

Comments are invited on: (a) Whether the proposed collections of information are necessary for the proper performance of the functions of the agency, including
whether the information shall have practical utility; (b) the accuracy of the agency's estimate of the burden of the proposed collection of information; (c) ways to
enhance the quality, utility, and clarity of the information to be collected; and (d) ways to minimize the burden of the collection of information on respondents, including
through the use of automated collection techniques or other forms of information technology.

Proposed Project: State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR)
Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW
The Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration's (SAMHSA) Center for Substance Abuse Treatment (CSAT) is requesting approval from the Office
of Management and Budget (OMB) for data collection activities associated with the State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) discretionary
grant programs. Approval of this information collection will allow SAMHSA to continue to meet the Government Performance and Results Modernization Act of 2010
(GPRMA) reporting requirements that quantify the effects and accomplishments of its discretionary grant programs which are consistent with OMB guidance.
Information collected through this request will be used to monitor performance throughout the grant period.

There will be up to 359 award recipients (states, territories, and tribal entities) in these grant programs. Grantee-level data will include information related to naloxone
purchases and distribution. This grantee-level information will be collected quarterly.

All funded states/territories and tribal entities will also be required to collect and report client-level data on individuals who are receiving opioid treatment services to
ensure program goals and objectives are being met. Client-level data will include information such as: Demographic information, services planned/received, mental
health/substance use disorder diagnoses, medical status, employment status, substance use, legal status, and psychiatric status/symptoms. Client-level data will be
collected at intake/baseline, three months post intake, six months post intake, and at discharge.

CSAT anticipates that the time required to collect and report the grantee-level data is approximately 10 minutes per response, and the time required to collect and
report the client-level data is approximately 47 minutes per response. CSAT's estimate of the burden associated with the client-level instrument includes an adjustment
for data elements that are currently being collected by entities that are likely to be funded by the SOR/TOR grant programs. Start Printed Page 50117

Table 1—Estimate of Annualized Hour Burden for SOR/TOR Grantees

SAMHSA data Collection Number of
respondents

Responses per
respondent

Total number of
responses

Burden hours per
response Total burden Hours

Grantee-Level Instrument 359 4 1,436 .17 244
Client Level Instrument: Baseline Interview 165,000 1 165,000 .78 128,700
Client-Level Instrument: Follow-up
Interview 1 132,000 2 264,000 .78 205,920

Client-Level Instrument: Discharge
Interview 2 85,800 1 85,800 .78 66,924

CSAT Total 165,359 516,236 401,788

Notes:
1 It is estimated that 80% of baseline clients will complete the three month and six month follow-up interviews.
2 It is estimated that 52% of baseline clients will complete this interview.

Send comments to Summer King, SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer, 5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57-B, Rockville, Maryland 20857, OR email a copy to
summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov. Written comments should be received by December 3, 2018.
Start Signature
Summer King,

Statistician.
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End Signature End Preamble
[FR Doc. 2018-21576 Filed 10-3-18; 8:45 am]
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
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From: Nora Murphy
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Loretta Dixon
Subject: Minnesota Dakota Consortium and Lower Sioux Indian Community Feedback on the Proposed Project: State

Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) Program Data Collection and Performance
Measurement—NEW

Date: Friday, November 30, 2018 4:50:28 PM

Hello Ms. King, 

Below please find comment on the TOR collection data requirements from the Lower Sioux and the
MN Dakota Consortium, a TOR grantee. 

Consortium members (including Dr. Rosemary White Shield, psychologist Dr. Hawkins, and a
community LADC) express great concern about the SPARS/CSAT-GPRA tool. One of the concerns is
that its use may cause harm and re-trigger many of our tribal members and lead to increased, not
decreased, opioid use. Furthermore, the tool is divergent to the Kinship System Circle Model (KSCM).
KSCM is the model that our Consortium is piloting through the TOR project. Therefore, the four
tribes, led by Lower Sioux, have sent a formal request to SAMSHA for exemption from using the
proposed GPRA tool. A copy of our formal request signed by the leaders of all four tribes is available
upon request. 

Sincerely, Nora Murphy
 
Nora Murphy
Tribal Planner & Grant Writer
Lower Sioux Indian Community
Phone: (507) 697-8638
Email: nora.murphy@lowersioux.com
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December 1, 2018 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern:  
 
Missouri Opioid STR/SOR leadership and treatment providers have reviewed and discussed the potential impact of 
the proposed data collection and outcomes measurement tool and our concerns are outlined below.  
 
With resources limited and costs associated with a new treatment model being difficult to project, the Department of 
Mental Health (DMH) spent Opioid STR direct treatment dollars six months ahead of schedule as we implement the 
Medication First Model, a chronic disease/medical model, in Missouri. Due to increased costs associated with this 
model and in an effort to make this model financially viable we are looking to fund administrative positions at our 
treatment locations to support their efforts. With the added requirement of the proposed data collection tool we 
would also need to reimburse our providers for the added work and time.  
 
Our projected fiscal impact of this added requirement: 
Our projected consumer target is 2,662.  Assuming intake GPRAs are collected on each individual and an 80% 
follow-up rate throughout our projected cost on services is $527,990. If intake GPRAs were collected on each 
individual and maintain a 50% follow-up rate throughout our projected cost is $379,907. This does not take into 
account any administrative time, personnel costs, or additional costs associated with follow-up tracking activities. 
Previous GPRA follow-up tracking and locating efforts have included phone calls, letters, emails, and even home-
visits. These additional costs on added services are difficult to project, but minimum calculations estimate a fiscal 
impact between $132,780 - $265,561 in added services and an approximate administrative burden of $500,000 on 
our Opioid SOR treatment provider system. Department staff conducted mock interviews with the proposed tool and 
found it more time intensive than the GPRA tool used with two STR providers as part of an independent evaluation 
with Mathematica.  Without factoring in the administrative cost to our providers, conservative estimates place fiscal 
burden at $512,687 and perhaps more realistic projected cost of $793,551. 
 
Additionally, Missouri’s Medication First model dictates that our treatment providers collect and report relevant 
information related to medication utilization for STR/SOR clients and this has placed an added un-billable 
administrative burden, which would increase with the proposed tool. The Department of Mental health eliminated or 
edited most all intake requirements to allow for someone in active withdrawal to be seen by a physician almost 
immediately, and the proposed SOR data collection tool will add a significant barrier to the intake process utilizing 
the Medication First Model.  It is noted the beginning of the proposed tool is from the Addiction Severity Index 
(ASI), one such component eliminated from the immediate intake process. Having to collect information upon 
intake which is not minimally needed to be seen by a doctor was top priority for our Medication First Model and 
adding this requirement will deeply impact the time associated with an intake and the number of individuals that 
may access treatment on a given day as our treatment locations are limited by staff availability and staff time.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Tim Rudder, LMSW, State Opioid Coordinator 
Missouri Department of Mental Health 
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GOVERNOR 
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From: Gavin, Tamara
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT)
Subject: SOR Data reporting feedback
Date: Monday, December 3, 2018 10:06:53 PM

Please accept the following feedback specific to SOR reporting information that was sent for state
feedback.
 
During the webinar on Friday, 11/30/2018, it was clarified that grantees will not be able to contract

out with 3rd party vendors to assist in SPARS data collection and entry. This is allowed in other
SAMHSA discretionary grants and, as such, Nebraska has established processes and contractual
relationships that make this a very efficient process. News that this will not be an allowable activity
and that grantees must be the point of SPARS data entry creates significant barriers—and will likely
create substantial delays in ability to conduct data entry—as systems will need to be updated in
order to allow for this. If any reconsideration could be made to this restriction, it would be greatly
appreciated.
 
Additionally, it was clarified that the client-level data tools that are awaiting OMB approval have not
been released for review; therefore, we ask if there will be an opportunity to review and provide
feedback on the client-level tool that will be used?
 
Tamara Gavin | Deputy Director Of Behavioral Health Services
BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

Nebraska Department of Health and Human Services
OFFICE: 402-471-7732

DHHS.ne.gov  |  Facebook  |  Twitter  |  LinkedIn
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From: shauntay McCollough
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Subject: SOR Program Data Collection
Date: Tuesday, October 23, 2018 12:32:59 PM

I hope and pray that this is not something that will be implemented here in Missouri.  Our facility
along with others are doing a greater job than just a year ago with the tools that we have now and
adding additional data request will only cause the loss of consumer participation along with loss of
billing due to a non reimbursable additional questionnaire.  I understand the need for the data but,
this seems to be more about numbers and data instead of the actual service to the consumer. 
Thank you for your time and I hope the response’s from myself and others will make a direct impact
on the decisions being made.
 
 
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
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SUBMITTED VIA EMAIL: summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov  

 

December 3, 2018 

 

Summer King  

SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer 

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration 

5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57-B 

Rockville, Maryland 20857 

 

RE:   Agency Information Collection Activities: State Opioid Response (SOR) 

and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) Program Data Collection and Performance 

Measurements 

 

Dear Officer King: 

On behalf of the Northwest Portland Area Indian Health Board (NPAIHB), I 

submit the following comments on the State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal 

Opioid Response (TOR) Program Data Collection and Performance 

Measurements, in response to the Substance Abuse Mental Health Services 

Administration (SAMHSA) agency information collection request, dated October 

4, 2018.  Established in 1972, the NPAIHB is a tribal organization formed under 

the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act (ISDEAA), P.L. 93-

638, representing the 43 federally-recognized Indian Tribes in Idaho, Oregon, and 

Washington on health care issues. In the Portland Area, 75% of the total IHS 

funding is compacted or contracted and includes 6 federally operated service units, 

17 Title I Tribes, 25 Title V Tribes, 3 urban facilities, and 3 treatment centers. 

NPAIHB operates several important health programs that support our member 

tribes, including the Northwest Tribal Epidemiology Center,1 and works closely 

with the Portland Area Indian Health Service (IHS).  NPAIHB appreciates the 

opportunity to provide comments on the accuracy of SAMHSA’s estimate of the 

burden of the proposed collection of information on SOR and TOR grantees.  

Background 

American Indian/Alaska Native (AI/AN) communities experience disparities in 

many health outcomes2 including overdose deaths3. In 2015, AI/ANs had the 

                                                 
1  A "tribal organization" is recognized under the Indian Self-Determination Education Assistance Act (P.l. 93-

638; 25 U.5.C. § 450b(1)) as follows: "[T]he recognized governing body of any Indian tribe; any legally 

established organization of Indians which is controlled, sanctioned, or chartered by such governing body or 

which is democratically elected by the adult members of the Indian community to be served by such 

organization and which includes the maximum participation of Indians in all phases of its activities." 

2 Indian Health Service. Indian Health Disparities. In. https://www.ihs.gov/newsroom/factsheets/disparities/; 

2017. 
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highest drug overdose death rates and the largest percentage increase in the number of deaths over 

time4. The opioid pain reliever-related overdose death rate for AI/ANs was 22.1 per 100,000 

population in 20155. In 2010, the opioid overdose death rate among AI/AN women was 7.3 per 

100,000 population, compared with a rate of 5.7 among white women and 4.2 among all U.S. 

women6.  

In addition, national trends documenting this disparity appear to be consistent regionally, by IHS 

Areas and states, where AI/AN-specific data are available. In the Portland IHS Area (Idaho, 

Oregon, and Washington) a race-corrected analysis found the age-adjusted drug overdose death 

rate for AI/ANs for opioid, prescription drug, and all drug overdoses to be twice that of non-

Hispanic whites (NHW)7. Limited access to specialized health care services contributes to and 

exacerbates disparities in nonfatal and fatal opioid overdose among AI/ANs. Tribal communities 

are often located far from urban facilities where various specialized health services for opioid 

addiction treatment are available. In 2014, there were only eight tribal health facilities with 

Medication-assisted treatment (MAT)/Office-based Opioid Agonist Treatment (OBOT) services, 

and six tribal programs with MAT/OBOT policies and procedures8.  

The SAMHSA TOR grant program aim is to address the opioid crisis in tribal communities by 

increasing access to culturally appropriate and evidence-based treatment, including MAT using 

one of the three Food and Drug Administration (FDA)-approved medications for the treatment of 

opioid use disorder (OUD).  The intent is to reduce unmet treatment need and opioid overdose-

related deaths through the provision of prevention, treatment and/or recovery activities for OUD.   

Overall, 35 of the 43 Tribes in the Idaho, Oregon and Washington received SAMHSA TOR 

funding. NPAIHB was awarded SAMHSA TOR funding for a consortium of 22 Tribes in Idaho 

(2), Oregon (6) and Washington (14) including Burns Paiute, Chehalis, Confederated Tribes of 

Coos, Lower Umpqua and Siuslaw Indians (CTCLUSI), Confederated Tribes of Umatilla, 

Coquille, Cow Creek Band of Umpqua, Hoh, Kalispel, Klamath, Kootenai, Lower Elwha Klallam, 

NW Band of Shoshone, Nooksack, Quinault, Samish, Shoalwater Bay, Skokomish, Spokane, 

Stillaguamish, Suquamish, Swinomish, Upper Skagit.  

The NPAIHB TOR Consortium is working to address the opioid crisis in tribal communities by 

increasing capacity to address the complex factors associated with a comprehensive opioid 

response, including: access to culturally appropriate prevention, treatment and recovery activities 

with the intent of reducing unmet treatment need and opioid-related deaths, as well as a focus on 

                                                                                                                                                                
3 Mack KA, Jones CM, Ballesteros MF. Illicit Drug Use, Illicit Drug Use Disorders, and Drug Overdose Deaths in Metropolitan and 

Nonmetropolitan Areas - United States. MMWR Surveill Summ 2017;66(No. SS-19):1-12. DOI: 

http://dx.doi.org/10.15585/mmwr.ss6619a1<https://www.cdc.gov/Other/disclaimer.html  
4 Id. 

5 Id. 

6 Warner M, Chen LH, Makuc DM, Anderson RN, Miniño AM. Drug poisoning deaths in the United States, 1980--2008. 

Hyattsville, MD: National Center for Health Statistics; 2011. 
7 Sujata Joshi, NPAIHB Biostatistician, personal communication; 2017. 

8 Indian Health Service. Division of Behavioral Health Fact Sheet. In: Services OoCaP, editor. 

https://www.ihs.gov/asap/includes/themes/newihstheme/display_objects/documents/matfactsheet_0814.pdf; 2014. 
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using cultural and community-based services as strengths for prevention. TOR funding is also 

strengthening NPAIHB’s ability to carry out core public health functions, address tribal health 

priorities, and progress towards key Healthy People 2020 and 2030 objectives related to public 

health infrastructure, social determinants of health, and substance use prevention. Our proposed 

activities are strengthening our partnerships with Northwest Tribes, SAMHSA, IHS, and the states 

of Idaho, Oregon, and Washington.  

The NPAIHB TOR Consortium is reinforcing many of the Tribal Behavioral Health Agenda 

(TBHA) priority areas and strategies, including but not limited to: (1) Programming that Meets 

Community Needs (PR1.4: Treat mental and substance use disorders as chronic conditions that 

require support and services across the spectrum – from prevention for individuals at all levels of 

risk through recovery), (2) Community Mobilization and Engagement (PR2.1: Formulate and 

implement long-term, communitywide engagement and mobilization strategies that emphasize 

community ownership of their issues and solutions), and (3) Funding Mechanisms (BH2.4: 

Develop flexibility that allow tribes with multiple federal grants to lower administrative costs, 

increase integration of funded programs, and enhance collaborative reporting)9.  

General Comments and Recommendations 

The SAMHSA Center for Substance Abuse Treatment (CSAT) is requesting approval from the 

Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for data collection activities associated with the SOR 

and TOR discretionary grant programs. Approval of this information collection will allow 

SAMHSA to continue to meet the Government Performance and Results Modernization Act of 

2010 (GPRA) reporting requirements that quantify the effects and accomplishments of its 

discretionary grant programs, which are consistent with OMB guidance. Information collected 

through the approved data collection process will be used to monitor performance throughout the 

grant period.  

There are 359 award recipients (states, territories, and tribal entities) in these grant programs. 

Grantee-level data will include information related to Naloxone purchases and distribution. This 

grantee-level information will be collected quarterly.  Not all TOR grantees will be purchasing 

Naloxone as part of this grant. NPAIHB recommends allowing TOR grantees to opt out of 

reporting this information if Naloxone distribution is not in their work plan. 

According to SAMHSA, all funded states/territories and tribal entities will also be required to 

collect and report client-level data on individuals who are receiving opioid treatment services to 

ensure program goals and objectives are being met. Client-level data will include information such 

as: demographic information, services planned/received, mental health/substance use disorder 

diagnoses, medical status, employment status, substance use, legal status, and psychiatric 

status/symptoms. Client-level data will be collected at intake/ baseline, three months post intake, 

six months post intake, and at discharge.  
                                                 

9 SAMHSA. (2016a). The National Tribal Behavioral Health Agenda. Rockville MD: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services 

Administration, Department of Health and Human Services.  
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CSAT anticipates that the time required to collect and report the grantee-level data is 

approximately 10 minutes per response, and the time required to collect and report the client- level 

data is approximately 47 minutes per response. CSAT’s estimate of the burden associated with the 

client-level instrument includes an adjustment for data elements that are currently being collected 

by entities that are likely to be funded by the SOR/TOR grant programs. On-the-ground tribal 

evaluators and NPAIHB member tribes have estimated the burden of client-level data collection to 

be closer to 4 hours per person due to difficulty in locating individuals (lack of phone or permanent 

address). Provider-level burden to complete these surveys is unrealistic and will take away from 

direct medical care services in an already over-burdened medical system.  

Additionally, our TOR grantees in the Northwest are small tribal clinics with limited staff capacity 

to collect this additional information. We are grateful for the funding amounts provided in the 

TOR and SOR opportunities, but there was no specific funding added for tribes to include an FTE 

dedicated to the proposed data collection and reporting requirements.  Also, not all TOR Grantees 

will be developing a MAT program with these grant funds. NPAIHB is concerned that the creation 

of a completely new set of measures that leads to additional requirements will deter tribes from 

providing MAT treatment services or applying for future SAMHSA TOR grant opportunities.  

SAMHSA must reduce the administrative burden and costs of data and reporting requirements on 

tribes to allow more resources to be directed to patient care. Data collection and reporting 

requirements should be voluntary for tribes or must be aligned with other data reporting that tribes 

are already performing. The measures should not be separate from what is already being done 

because of the administrative burden put on tribal grantees. SAMHSA must work with tribal 

programs to reduce the burden on tribal programs. 

 

Therefore, NPAIHB requests that SAMHSA honor the government-to-government relationship 

with tribes for TOR (and all opioid funding – including MAT-PDOA) as to data collection and 

reporting. This would require that SAMHSA establish a data collection and reporting structure 

similar to IHS as set forth under Tribal Self-Governance Amendments of 2000 (P.L. 106-260), 42 

CFR Part 36, et seq., which states the following:  

42 CFR §137.203: May a Self-Governance Tribe participate in a voluntary national 

uniform data collection effort with the IHS? Yes, in order to advance Indian health 

advocacy efforts, each Self-Governance Tribe will be encouraged to participate, at its 

option, in national IHS data reporting activities such as Government Performance Results 

Act, epidemiologic and surveillance reporting.  

In order to uphold tribal sovereignty and self-determination, SAMHSA should be consistent with 

IHS data collection and reporting language applicable to Self-Governance Tribes.  Under 42 CFR 

§ 137.203, tribes are encouraged to participate, at their option, in IHS data reporting activities such 

as GPRA and SAMHSA should similarly encourage tribes to participate rather than mandate 

participation.     

42 CFR § 137.204: How will this voluntary national uniform data set be developed? IHS 

will work with representatives of Self-Governance Tribes, in coordination with the Tribal 

Self Governance Advisory Committee (TSGAC), to develop a mutually-defined annual 
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voluntary uniform subset of data that is consistent with Congressional intent, minimizes 

reporting burdens, and responds to the needs of the Self Governance Tribe.  

 

NPAIHB also recommends, in alignment with 42 CFR § 137.203, that SAMHSA work with tribal 

representatives to develop a mutually-defined annual voluntary uniform subset of data that is 

consistent with Congressional intent, minimizes reporting burdens, and responds to the needs of 

the tribes. 

Specific Comments 

(B) Accuracy of the Agency’s Estimate of the Burden of the Proposed Collection of Information. 

CSAT anticipates that the time required to collect and report the grantee-level data is 

approximately 10 minutes per response, and the time required to collect and report the client-level 

data is approximately 47 minutes per response. CSAT’s estimate of the burden associated with the 

client-level instrument includes an adjustment for data elements that are currently being collected 

by entities that are likely to be funded by the SOR/TOR grant programs.  

On-the-ground evaluators and NPAIHB member tribes have estimated the burden of client-level 

data collection not to be 10 minutes per person but closer to 4 hours per person due to difficulty in 

locating individuals (lack of phone or permanent address). Provider-level burden to complete these 

surveys is unrealistic and will take away from medical care in an already over-burdened medical 

system. Also, not all TOR grantees will but developing a MAT program with these grant funds so 

there must be consideration that not all TOR grantees will be submitting this information. 

Conclusion 

We thank you for this opportunity to provide comments and recommendations on the GPRA 

reporting requirements for TOR and SOR grantees, and we look forward to further engagement 

with SAMHSA to meet critical opioid overdose challenges in Northwest tribal communities. If you 

have questions or would like more information about our consortium or our recommendations 

discussed above, please contact Laura Platero, Government Affairs/Policy Director and Jessica 

Leston, Clinical Programs Director at (907) 224- 3888 or by email to jleston@npaihb.org.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 
Andy C. Joseph, Jr. 

NPAIHB Chairperson 

Colville Tribal Council Member  
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From: Skiles, Jodi
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Thierry, Kim (SAMHSA); DiDomenico, Ellen
Subject: SOR Collection/Proposed Collection
Date: Friday, November 9, 2018 4:18:45 PM
Attachments: image004.png

image009.png
Importance: High

Good Afternoon Summer:
Please see comments and questions submitted per instructions for document number 2018-21576, Proposed
collection for SOR. 
 
 

Record Management
Site ID: what does this correspond to? Will we need to provide the list of provider agencies in the SOR
network and SPARS will assign an ID for each location where services may be provided?
Date of Admission: Is this something that is asked at Baseline and then prepopulated at other interview types,
or do we expect the user to fill this out at each interview type?
Was the interview conducted? = No: would all of the sections of the instrument be skipped or only selected
ones? What are the expectations for data collection when the interview is not conducted
Interview type: is the first interview called an Intake or a Baseline interview? We see mentions of intake
throughout this document and others.

 
Services Planned

Under the Case Management Services, question 3b. is listed as "Employment Couching", this should likely be
"coaching" and seems to be a typo.
The numbering under Treatment Services should likely start at 1. for Medication-assisted treatment (instead
of 8) in order to be consistent with the other sections on that page.
Should this section only be asked at Baseline?

 
Behavioral Health Diagnoses

Are we expected to collect Primary, Secondary and Tertiary diagnoses, or is it a single select?
Are there any rules related to the section of the diagnoses that we should be aware of?
Is this section asked at each interview type?

 
Demographics

Is this section asked at each interview type? If yes, would some fields be prepopulated from baseline as they
would not likely change (i.e DOB, sex, ethnicity, race,…)

 
Employment/Support Status

Question E20. The help text mentions "if the patient has been incarcerated or detained in the past 30 days"
but we are not sure what that references and if a business rule needs to be implemented based on the
answer to question L26 in the Legal Section which comes later in the tool? This may only be instruction text
and not a business rule to implement, we just would like clarification.
Questions E12-E17: do we need to provide a Declined and Don't know option for EACH question or are
Declined or Don't know for the entire section. It seems like all other questions have their own Declined/Don’t
know so we wanted some clarification on this one.

mailto:joskiles@pa.gov
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mailto:edidomenic@pa.gov
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Substance Use

The entry under Prescription Opioids for "OxyContin" is misspelled as "OxycContin"
 

Family/Social Relationships
There is no number for the question “In the past 30 days, where have you been living most of the time?”  
Questions F18 to F26 do not have the mention of Yes, No, Declined, Don’t know. Should we assume these
are the valid response options? See below these questions are expecting Yes or No in ASI Lite:

 
Psychiatric Status

Questions P4 to P11 do not have the mention of Yes, No, Declined, Don’t know. Should we assume these
are the valid responses? See below



 
Modified Colorado Symptom Index

What do the numbers 1 to 9 represent? Is a scoring expected for this tool (if yes, then what is the calculation?
why is Don’t know a 9 for example?)?

 
Services Provided:

Why do we have the option of “No” for each service? In GPRA if a service was not provided the user would
enter a 0. Do we have to support 0 and No options? Or if the answer is not “No” then it has to be a positive
number? Is the user supposed to either enter a number or select “No” for each service?
We noticed that Recovery Support and Peer Recovery Support services are not listed here but are part of the
Planned Services section. Is this intentional?
At which interview type is this section asked? Each Reassessment and Discharge?

 
Overall:

What fields are required? The paper tool does not designate what fields are required. Should we assume
everything or nothing is required? Please provide guidance.
Are there any other rules not listed on the paper form that we should be aware of?
Is this tool to be conducted on any client receiving services with SOR funding? Does it include Prevention,
Treatment and Recovery services?
Most importantly, what is the timing for the new tool?



Is it the tool to use at the beginning of services in Jan 2019?
Should we assume the GPRA for Jan 2019 client level data collection? Then what would be the
transition plan to the new tool?

 
 

From: Skiles, Jodi 
Sent: Wednesday, November 07, 2018 9:31 AM
To: Stonesifer, Brian <c-briaston@pa.gov>; Newell, Jennifer <jennewell@pa.gov>
Subject: FW: SOR
Importance: High
 
fyi
 

From: Thierry, Kim (SAMHSA) <Kim.Thierry@SAMHSA.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 3:40 PM
To: Skiles, Jodi <joskiles@pa.gov>
Cc: Somerville, Gerlinda (SAMHSA/CSAT) <Gerlinda.Somerville@samhsa.hhs.gov>; DiDomenico, Ellen
<edidomenic@pa.gov>
Subject: RE: SOR
Importance: High
 
Hi Jodi. Attached are proposed SOR information plans and reporting instruments that are referenced in the recent
posting of the Federal Register bulletin. (attached)
Comments are requested by 3 Dec. and information on where to send those comments is referenced in the Federal
Register Notice.
I hope this information is useful.
Kim T-E
 
Kim Thierry English, M.ED, NCAC II, MAC
Public Health Advisor
Health Systems Branch
Division of Services Improvement
SAMHSA's Center for Substance Abuse Treatment
5600 Fishers Lane
13E70-E
Rockville, Md. 20857
Ph. 240.276.2907
Fax-240.276.1690
e-mail kim.thierry@samhsa.hhs.gov
AWS (off duty),Fridays
 
This email may contain confidential and/or privileged information.  If you are not the intended recipient (or have received
this email in error) please notify the sender immediately and destroy this email.  Any unauthorized copying, disclosure or
distribution of the material in this email is strictly forbidden.
 

From: Skiles, Jodi <joskiles@pa.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 2:52 PM
To: Thierry, Kim (SAMHSA) <Kim.Thierry@SAMHSA.hhs.gov>
Cc: Somerville, Gerlinda (SAMHSA/CSAT) <Gerlinda.Somerville@samhsa.hhs.gov>; DiDomenico, Ellen
<edidomenic@pa.gov>
Subject: RE: SOR
 
Kim:
Just an FYI.  We were on a call with some other states regarding our data system and potential enhancements and
some of them were saying that they heard that it may be the same GRPA that we collected for STR?  Not sure if there

mailto:c-briaston@pa.gov
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mailto:Kim.Thierry@SAMHSA.hhs.gov
mailto:joskiles@pa.gov
mailto:Gerlinda.Somerville@samhsa.hhs.gov
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mailto:kim.thierry@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:joskiles@pa.gov
mailto:Kim.Thierry@SAMHSA.hhs.gov
mailto:Gerlinda.Somerville@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:edidomenic@pa.gov


is any fact to that, but thought that if we thought that might be the route that we could at least begin serving
individuals from this funding stream. 
Thank you for understanding!!
Jodi
 

From: Thierry, Kim (SAMHSA) <Kim.Thierry@SAMHSA.hhs.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 12:28 PM
To: Skiles, Jodi <joskiles@pa.gov>
Cc: Somerville, Gerlinda (SAMHSA/CSAT) <Gerlinda.Somerville@samhsa.hhs.gov>
Subject: RE: SOR
 
Hi Jodi. I apologize., but I do not have any updates. I will re-forward your previous inquiry to  CSAT Leadership and
request a response.
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
Sent: Wednesday, October 31, 2018 10:09 AM
To: Thierry, Kim (SAMHSA) <Kim.Thierry@SAMHSA.hhs.gov>
Subject: SOR
 
Good Morning Kim!
Hope that you are well!  I wanted to follow up with you on data and expectations.  We have projects ready to go, and
are hoping to understand the requirements, and if we can get started. 
Any insight would be helpful.
Thanks so much Kim.
 
Jodi Skiles | Director
Bureau of Treatment, Prevention and Intervention
Department of Drug and Alcohol Programs
One Penn Center, 5th Floor
2601 N 3rd Street, Harrisburg, PA 17110
Phone: 717.736.7454 |Mobile 717.503.6326 |Fax: 717.787.6285
www.ddap.pa.gov
 

Follow us:   
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From: Cori Putz
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Subject: SOR/TOR potential reporting requirements
Date: Monday, October 22, 2018 3:27:48 PM

Good Afternoon;
 
There is no doubt that we value outcomes and want to know that our applied interventions are
having a positive impact in the lives of those we serve.  However, over the past 18 months, Missouri
DMH, in conjunction with Providers, has done an incredible job of minimizing/removing barriers to
assist those most in need to access services in a timely manner & remain engaged in treatment.  This
accomplishment is primarily the result of the removal of stringent requirements for specified
services in order to be admitted and/or to remain enrolled in services.
 
We have made great strides in delivering only those services that the individual believes he/she will
benefit from.  The introduction of a mandated service brought about by these reporting
requirements at the said intervals (admission, 3 months, 6 months, and discharge) will place undue
expectations on those that we serve and is in direct conflict with the service model that we have
worked so very hard to create. 
 
This instrument is all too familiar to those of us in Missouri given that it is the Addiction Severity
Index (ASI) with several extra pages of questions on each end of it.  Asking an individual at time of
admission, who is usually in active withdrawal, to be alert and sit with us patiently while we
complete a questionnaire that takes about 45 minutes, is not reasonable nor is it a client-centered
practice which is exactly why Missouri, not so long ago, extended our assessment completion time
frame.  As a side note, there are still many agencies currently utilizing the ASI for assessments in
Missouri within a multitude of electronic medical records, this will be duplicative for both the client
and the clinician.
 
Facilitating this instrument at each said interval also has the potential to divert approximately $1
million away from direct service that will benefit the client for every 1,000 individuals served through
these funds in Missouri.  This number accounts for the direct service hours expected to be
associated with facilitation of this service since Providers will need to be reimbursed for facilitating
this tool at each said interval, including admission.   This does not take into account the additional
necessary staff time that will need to be dedicated to locating or contacting dis-engaged clients and
clients who have very low frequency/intensity of service in order to meet the 80% threshold of
completion.
 
Reducing the number of fields to “critical information only” coupled with less frequent intervals of
completion may be helpful in making this more palatable for those we serve OR we can utilize the
GPRA at Admission, 6 months, and Discharge.
 
Sincerely,
cori
 
Corinna Putz

mailto:cputz@pfh.org
mailto:Summer.King@samhsa.hhs.gov


Exec VP Substance Use Disorders
Preferred Family Healthcare
 

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and
intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are
addressed. If you have received this email in error, please notify the
system manager. This message contains confidential information and is
intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named
addressee, you should not disseminate, distribute or copy this email.
Please notify the sender immediately by email if you have received this
email by mistake and delete this email from your system. If you are not
the intended recipient, you are notified that disclosing, copying,
distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this
information is strictly prohibited.



From: Wolfgang, Tiffany
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Baltzer, Breinne; Rachel Oelmann; Bankhead, Jamal (SAMHSA)
Subject: FW: State Opioid Response 60-Day FRN for Data Collection Tool
Date: Monday, December 3, 2018 4:53:11 PM
Attachments: SOR TOR 60-Day FRN.pdf

Ms. King,
Please accept the below comments as part of the public comment period related to SOR/TOR
attached notice. Per the direction, South Dakota would like to submit the below as cited in the
attached document:
Comments are invited on:
(a) Whether the proposed collections of information are necessary for the proper performance of
the functions of the agency, including whether the information shall have practical utility;
The instruments as designed do not appear to collect much information regarding actual opioid use,
but rather focus on potential co-occurring behavioral health diagnoses, medical status on issues not
related to substance abuse or treatment, employment status, household cash flow sources,
incarceration/law enforcement history, pension payments, etc.  What and how will this information
be used for in terms of programmatic enhancement or improvement at the federal level in
combating the opioid crisis?  Some of the information collected may be useful at the state level,
however the current tool is intrusive and will result in clients not retaining in much needed
treatment and recovery services. South Dakota would not find the proposed data to be useful nor
necessary for proper performance nor to have practical utility.
 
(b) the accuracy of the agency’s estimate of the burden of the proposed collection of information;
 The GPRA Baseline and Follow-up/Discharge Instrument is considerably longer and more intense
than the state's assumptions upon creating a cost proposal to support administrative and data
collection efforts in SOR. In comparison, the baseline assessment GPRA tool presently used on the
state's SBIRT grant is limited to six (6) questions upon screening, an additional question series about
past-30 day use of alcohol or illegal substances upon delivery of a service, and brief questions upon
discharge as well as one follow-up interval. Should the drafted instruments move forward and be
required for use in SOR, the state will need to do significant re-planning with existing MAT providers
to ensure the data elements can be collected in a way that does not significantly impact clinic work-
flow. If this process is placed on the contracted entities to conduct with their patients (best case
scenario to ensure data is captured), it is burdensome to the point the state fears entities may opt to
not contract for MAT expansion/enhancement services, either pursuing on their own or more likely
not pursuing at all.
 
The practical application of asking a patient seeking treatment or peer recovery supports for OUD
the breadth of these questions presents a host of concerns, not the least of which will undoubtedly
be turning off patients from actually proceeding with the treatment or supports they were originally
seeking.  The estimated burden for collecting this information is noted as 30 minutes in the cover
sheet; ironically, this is the same level of burden associated with the previously mentioned GPRA
client outcomes tool used in the state SBIRT grant program which contains fewer questions and less
sub-questions/skip logic. The ability to ask and attain answers to this complexity and number of
questions upon intake into services is unreasonable and is anticipated to be off-putting to patients.
 

mailto:Tiffany.Wolfgang@state.sd.us
mailto:Summer.King@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:Breinne.Baltzer@state.sd.us
mailto:rachel@sageprojectconsultants.com
mailto:Jamal.Bankhead@samhsa.hhs.gov



50116 Federal Register / Vol. 83, No. 193 / Thursday, October 4, 2018 / Notices 


Time: 10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. 
Agenda: To review and evaluate grant 


applications. 
Place: National Institutes of Health, 6701 


Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, MD 20892 
(Virtual Meeting). 


Contact Person: Marc Boulay, Ph.D., 
Scientific Review Officer, Center for 
Scientific Review, National Institutes of 
Health, 6701 Rockledge Drive, Room 3110, 
MSC 7808, Bethesda, MD 20892, (301) 300– 
6541, boulaymg@csr.nih.gov. 


Name of Committee: Center for Scientific 
Review Special Emphasis Panel; Member 
Conflict: Immune System Plasticity in Dental, 
Oral, and Craniofacial Diseases. 


Date: October 30, 2018. 
Time: 1:00 p.m. to 2:00 p.m. 
Agenda: To review and evaluate grant 


applications. 
Place: National Institutes of Health, 6701 


Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, MD 20892 
(Virtual Meeting). 


Contact Person: Rajiv Kumar, Ph.D., Chief, 
MOSS IRG, Center for Scientific Review, 
National Institutes of Health, 6701 Rockledge 
Drive, Room 4216, MSC 7802, Bethesda, MD 
20892, 301–435–1212, kumarra@csr.nih.gov. 


Name of Committee: Center for Scientific 
Review Special Emphasis Panel; Immune 
System Plasticity in Dental, Oral, and 
Craniofacial Diseases. 


Date: October 30, 2018. 
Time: 2:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 
Agenda: To review and evaluate grant 


applications. 
Place: National Institutes of Health, 6701 


Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, MD 20892 
(Virtual Meeting). 


Contact Person: Yi-Hsin Liu, Ph.D., 
Scientific Review Officer, Center for 
Scientific Review, National Institutes of 
Health, 6701 Rockledge Drive, Room 4214, 
MSC 7814, Bethesda, MD 20892, 301–435– 
1781, liuyh@csr.nih.gov. 


Name of Committee: Center for Scientific 
Review Special Emphasis Panel; PAR Panel: 
Linking Provider Recommendation to 
Adolescent HPV Uptake. 


Date: October 30, 2018. 
Time: 12:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m. 
Agenda: To review and evaluate grant 


applications. 
Place: National Institutes of Health, 6701 


Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, MD 20892 
(Telephone Conference Call). 


Contact Person: Tasmeen Weik, DRPH, 
MPH, Scientific Review Officer, Center for 
Scientific Review, National Institutes of 
Health, 6701 Rockledge Drive, Room 3141, 
Bethesda, MD 20892, 301–827–6480, weikts@
mail.nih.gov. 


Name of Committee: Center for Scientific 
Review Special Emphasis Panel; SBIB 
Clinical Pediatric and Fetal Applications. 


Date: October 31, 2018. 
Time: 11:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. 
Agenda: To review and evaluate grant 


applications. 


Place: National Institutes of Health, 6701 
Rockledge Drive, Bethesda, MD 20892 
(Telephone Conference Call). 


Contact Person: Donald Scott Wright, 
Ph.D., Scientific Review Officer, Center for 
Scientific Review, National Institutes of 
Health, 6701 Rockledge Drive, Room 5108, 
MSC 7854, Bethesda, MD 20892, (301) 435– 
8363, wrightds@csr.nih.gov. 
(Catalogue of Federal Domestic Assistance 
Program Nos. 93.306, Comparative Medicine; 
93.333, Clinical Research, 93.306, 93.333, 
93.337, 93.393–93.396, 93.837–93.844, 
93.846–93.878, 93.892, 93.893, National 
Institutes of Health, HHS) 


Dated: September 28, 2018. 
Natasha M. Copeland, 
Program Analyst, Office of Federal Advisory 
Committee Policy. 
[FR Doc. 2018–21573 Filed 10–3–18; 8:45 am] 


BILLING CODE 4140–01–P 


DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND 
HUMAN SERVICES 


Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration 


Agency Information Collection 
Activities: Proposed Collection; 
Comment Request 


In compliance with Section 
3506(c)(2)(A) of the Paperwork 
Reduction Act of 1995 concerning 
opportunity for public comment on 
proposed collections of information, the 
Substance Abuse and Mental Health 
Services Administration (SAMHSA) 
will publish periodic summaries of 
proposed projects. To request more 
information on the proposed project or 
to obtain a copy of the information 
collection plans, call the SAMHSA 
Reports Clearance Officer on (240) 276– 
1243. 


Comments are invited on: (a) Whether 
the proposed collections of information 
are necessary for the proper 
performance of the functions of the 
agency, including whether the 
information shall have practical utility; 
(b) the accuracy of the agency’s estimate 
of the burden of the proposed collection 
of information; (c) ways to enhance the 
quality, utility, and clarity of the 
information to be collected; and (d) 
ways to minimize the burden of the 
collection of information on 
respondents, including through the use 
of automated collection techniques or 
other forms of information technology. 


Proposed Project: State Opioid 
Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid 
Response (TOR) Program Data 
Collection and Performance 
Measurement—NEW 


The Substance Abuse and Mental 
Health Services Administration’s 
(SAMHSA) Center for Substance Abuse 
Treatment (CSAT) is requesting 
approval from the Office of Management 
and Budget (OMB) for data collection 
activities associated with the State 
Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal 
Opioid Response (TOR) discretionary 
grant programs. Approval of this 
information collection will allow 
SAMHSA to continue to meet the 
Government Performance and Results 
Modernization Act of 2010 (GPRMA) 
reporting requirements that quantify the 
effects and accomplishments of its 
discretionary grant programs which are 
consistent with OMB guidance. 
Information collected through this 
request will be used to monitor 
performance throughout the grant 
period. 


There will be up to 359 award 
recipients (states, territories, and tribal 
entities) in these grant programs. 
Grantee-level data will include 
information related to naloxone 
purchases and distribution. This 
grantee-level information will be 
collected quarterly. 


All funded states/territories and tribal 
entities will also be required to collect 
and report client-level data on 
individuals who are receiving opioid 
treatment services to ensure program 
goals and objectives are being met. 
Client-level data will include 
information such as: Demographic 
information, services planned/received, 
mental health/substance use disorder 
diagnoses, medical status, employment 
status, substance use, legal status, and 
psychiatric status/symptoms. Client- 
level data will be collected at intake/ 
baseline, three months post intake, six 
months post intake, and at discharge. 


CSAT anticipates that the time 
required to collect and report the 
grantee-level data is approximately 10 
minutes per response, and the time 
required to collect and report the client- 
level data is approximately 47 minutes 
per response. CSAT’s estimate of the 
burden associated with the client-level 
instrument includes an adjustment for 
data elements that are currently being 
collected by entities that are likely to be 
funded by the SOR/TOR grant programs. 
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TABLE 1—ESTIMATE OF ANNUALIZED HOUR BURDEN FOR SOR/TOR GRANTEES 


SAMHSA data 
Collection 


Number of 
respondents 


Responses 
per 


respondent 


Total number 
of 


responses 


Burden hours 
per 


response 


Total burden 
Hours 


Grantee-Level Instrument .................................................... 359 4 1,436 .17 244 
Client Level Instrument: Baseline Interview ........................ 165,000 1 165,000 .78 128,700 
Client-Level Instrument: Follow-up Interview 1 .................... 132,000 2 264,000 .78 205,920 
Client-Level Instrument: Discharge Interview 2 .................... 85,800 1 85,800 .78 66,924 


CSAT Total ................................................................... 165,359 ........................ 516,236 ........................ 401,788 


Notes: 
1 It is estimated that 80% of baseline clients will complete the three month and six month follow-up interviews. 
2 It is estimated that 52% of baseline clients will complete this interview. 


Send comments to Summer King, 
SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer, 
5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57–B, 
Rockville, Maryland 20857, OR email a 
copy to summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov. 
Written comments should be received 
by December 3, 2018. 


Summer King, 
Statistician. 
[FR Doc. 2018–21576 Filed 10–3–18; 8:45 am] 


BILLING CODE 4162–20–P 


DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 


Bureau of Land Management 


[18X.LLAK941000 L14100000.ET0000; AA– 
61299, F–16304, AA–64307, F–85667, AA– 
61301] 


Public Land Order No. 7874; Partial 
Revocation of Public Land Orders No. 
5179, 5180, 5181, 5184, and 5188, 
Alaska 


AGENCY: Bureau of Land Management, 
Interior. 
ACTION: Public Land Order. 


SUMMARY: This Order partially revokes 
five Public Land Orders (PLO) insofar as 
they affect approximately 229,715 acres 
of public lands. The lands were reserved 
for study and classification as 
appropriate by the Department of the 
Interior (DOI). The purposes for which 
these lands were withdrawn no longer 
exist as described in the analysis and 
decisions made through the Bay 
Resource Management Plan (RMP) and 
associated Environmental Impact 
Statement. Of the lands described 
within the Orders being revoked, 
approximately 83.30 acres have been 
conveyed out of Federal ownership and 
the revocation of the Order on these 
lands is a record-clearing action only. 
DATES: This Public Land Order takes 
effect on October 4, 2018. 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: 
David V. Mushovic, Bureau of Land 
Management (BLM) Alaska State Office, 


222 West Seventh Avenue, Mailstop 
#13, Anchorage, AK 99513–7504, 907– 
271–4682, or dmushovi@blm.gov. 
People who use a telecommunications 
device for the deaf (TDD) may call the 
Federal Relay Service (FRS) at 1–800– 
877–8339 to contact the above 
individual during normal business 
hours. The FRS is available 24 hours a 
day, 7 days a week, to leave a message 
or question with the above individual. 
You will receive a reply during normal 
business hours. 
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This 
Order follows the recommendations 
made in the BLM’s 2008 Bay RMP 
which serves as the detailed statement 
required under the National 
Environmental Policy Act, Section 
102(2)(C). PLO No. 5179 withdrew lands 
in aid of legislation concerning addition 
to or creation of units of the National 
Park, National Forest, Wildlife Refuge, 
and Wild and Scenic Rivers systems, 
and to allow for classification of the 
lands. Any additions to or creation of 
new units of National Parks, National 
Forests, Wildlife Refuges, or Wild and 
Scenic Rivers from the land withdrawn 
by Public Land Order No. 5179 were 
met by the Alaska National Interest 
Lands Conservation Act (ANILCA). The 
classification of the lands withdrawn by 
PLO No. 5179 has been satisfied by the 
analysis conducted during the 
development of the BLM’s 2008 Bay 
RMP. PLO No. 5180 withdrew lands to 
allow for classification and for the 
protection of the public interest in these 
lands. The classification and protection 
of the public interest in the lands 
withdrawn by PLO No. 5180 has been 
satisfied by the analysis conducted 
during the development of the BLM’s 
2008 Bay RMP. PLO No. 5181 withdrew 
lands to allow for classification and 
study as possible additions to the 
National Wildlife Refuge System. The 
purposes of PLO No. 5181 were satisfied 
by both the ANILCA and the analysis 
conducted during the development of 
the BLM’s 2008 Bay RMP. PLO No. 5184 
withdrew lands to allow for 


classification or reclassification of some 
of areas withdrawn by Section 11 of the 
Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act 
(ANCSA). These purposes were satisfied 
by the analysis conducted during the 
development of the BLM’s 2008 Bay 
RMP. PLO No. 5188 withdrew lands to 
allow for classification and protection of 
the public interest in the lands in former 
reservations for use and benefit of 
Alaska Natives. These purposes were 
satisfied by the analysis conducted 
during the development of the BLM’s 
2008 Bay RMP. In addition, PLO No. 
5418, effective March 1974, amends 
PLO No. 5180 to add all unreserved 
public lands in Alaska, or those which 
may become unreserved unless 
specified by order at that time. Upon 
revocation, the lands in this Order will 
not be subject to the terms and 
conditions of PLO No. 5418, which 
amended PLO No. 5180, but will 
continue to be subject to the terms and 
conditions of any other withdrawal, 
segregation of record, and other 
applicable law. Some lands covered by 
the revocation of the above listed 
withdrawals have been top filed by the 
State of Alaska per the Alaska Statehood 
Act. Upon revocation of the above listed 
withdrawals, the top filings will convert 
to selections. Lands validly selected or 
conveyed to the State of Alaska are not 
subject to Sec. 810 of the ANLICA as 
they no longer fit the definition of 
public lands. The Sec. 810 analysis for 
the approved Bay RMP found no 
significant restriction on subsistence 
uses. 


Order 
By virtue of the authority vested in 


the Secretary of the Interior by Section 
204 of the Federal Land Policy and 
Management Act of 1976, 43 U.S.C. 
1714, and Section 22(h)(4) of the Alaska 
Native Claims Settlement Act of 1971, 
43 U.S.C. 1621(h)(4), it is ordered as 
follows: 


1. Subject to valid existing rights, 
Public Land Orders Nos. 5179 (37 FR 
5579 (1972)); 5180 (37 FR 5583 (1972)); 
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The types of questions asked (e.g. legal status, including arrest/charge records, # of days in the past
month the patient has been engaged in illegal activities for profit, experience and extent of family
problems) may be off-putting to patients, not necessarily garner truthful responses, and may be a
barrier to them seeking support/care/treatment.
 
The cost allocation to South Dakota for data enhancements (capped at 2% of the total award per
year, or $80,000) along with the timeline required for deployment (not formally defined but
anticipated to be ASAP, at the latest upon approval of the data collection tools from OMB) do not at
all align with needing to revamp an existing data system as previously mentioned or create a new
data system to capture these outcomes for a two-year grant period.
 
(c) ways to enhance the quality, utility, and clarity of the information to be collected; and
The state originally envisioned leveraging its existing statewide treatment data collection system
(STARS) to capture the required client-level outcomes data for SOR.  This system is used by
accredited substance abuse providers in South Dakota, so they are familiar with its functionality and
have access to it for the report of state-funded treatment outcomes data. Upon review of the
proposed baseline instruments, very few questions overlap between the proposed instruments and
what is presently reported in STARS, and thus significant enhancements to STARS and/or creation of
an entirely new system will be required to achieve the desired outcome and comply with the federal
requirements set forth. 
 
(d)ways to minimize the burden of the collection of information on respondents, including through
the use of automated collection techniques or other forms of information technology.
A critical control point in the SBIRT process has been to ensure screening and data collection tools
are integrated into the electronic medical record; if not integrated, the successful collection and
retention of that information is subject to staff time/availability and training to do so.  Given the
rapid deployment of a data collection solution for SOR grantees (essentially now) required by
SAMHSA, the fact that adoption of electronic medical records is not consistent across SD treatment
agencies, and the fact that clinics serving as a MAT prescriber in this case do not consistently use the
same EMR platform, significant technological hurdles will need to be overcome to ensure that the
data can be captured in a way that is not paper-based, burdensome to the clinic/treatment agency,
and accurate and timely in its collection. Partnership with the State's HIE is possible, but not in the
timeline required. Consideration should be given to data currently collected for TEDS and then
assessing what additional questions are needed to capture effectiveness/impact for OUD patients is
our recommendation.
 
 
Tiffany Wolfgang
Director, Division of Behavioral Health
Department of Social Services
3900 W Technology Circle, Suite 1
Sioux Falls, SD 57106
(605) 367-5236
 
DSS- Strong Families- South Dakota’s Foundation and our Future



Confidentiality Notice
This message is being sent by or on behalf of the South Dakota Department of Social Servies. It is intended exclusively for the individual or
entity to which it is addressed. This communication may contain information that is proprietary, attorney-client privledged, confidential,
or otherwise legally exempt from disclosure. If you are not the named addressee, you are not authorized to read, print, retain, copy, or
disseminate this message or any part of it. If you have received this message in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone
at (605) 367-5236 or by reply transmission by e-mail, and delete all copies of the message.
 
Non-Discrimination
The Department of Social Services does not exclude, deny benefits to, or otherwise discreiminate against any person on the basis of
actual or perceived race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, gender identify, secual orientation or disability in admission or access to,
or treatment or employement in its programs, activities, or servies. For more information about this policy or to file a Discremination
Complaint you may contact: Discremination Coordinator, Director of DSS Division of Legal Services, 700 Governor’s Drive, Pierre SD
57501, 605-773-3305.

 



From: Clif Johnson CRAADC
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Subject: GPRA feedback SOR grant
Date: Friday, October 19, 2018 11:57:03 AM

Please consider our feedback, we are currently doing the GPRA for the STR grant:
 

a. Whether the proposed collections of information are necessary for the
proper performance of the functions of the agency, including whether the
information shall have practical utility;  The collection of the data currently is
separate from the “function” of performance of our agency. We currently provide
the GPRA for the STR grant, we do not get consistent and timely data back to
allow the information to “provide practical utility”, this may be due to the period
of time data has been collected to allow for a large enough data pool.
 

b. The accuracy of the agency's estimate of the burden of the proposed
collection of information; The new GPRA tool for the SOR is much longer,
causing a corresponding increase in the time our staff must expend completing
the instrument.  The addition of a 3 month follow up to be completed adds
additional time for support staff to track due dates, and schedule a time to
complete the instrument. We currently, expend considerable resources spent
just scheduling and tracking the six- month follow up.
 
 

c. Ways to enhance the quality, utility, and clarity of the information to be
collected; The pressure to get an 80% completion rate may affect the accuracy
of the information collected.  We are expending resources to collect the data,
but are not receiving feedback timely enough to be as efficient in recognizing
deficit and strength areas.  More frequent reports would help the agency identify
trends for action planning.  A stipend to incentivize  the patient to complete the
follow up tools would help in increasing participation.  

 
d. Ways to minimize the burden of the collection of information on

respondents, including through the use of automated collection
techniques or other forms of information technology. Remove that 3 month
collection point for sure. Reduce the number of questions and pages to the
document. The sheer length of it would cause any person to not want to “self-
complete” it as an option.  Development of a web-based system that allows
individuals to complete the instruments at the required times from their home, or
smart phone.

 
 

 

mailto:cjohnson@semobh.org
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

________________________________
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:  This e-mail communication and any attachments may contain
confidential and privileged information for the use of the designated recipients named above.  The
designated recipients are prohibited from disclosing or forwarding this information to any other
party without prior written authorization by this sender and are required to destroy the information
after its stated need has been fulfilled.  If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified
that you have received this communication in error and that any review, disclosure, dissemination,
distribution, or copying of it or its contents, is prohibited by federal and/or state law.  If you have
received this communication in error, please notify me immediately upon receipt by telephone at
573-756-5749, and destroy all copies of this communication and any attachments immediately.
 



From: Andrea Buford
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT)
Subject: URGENT - Please respond (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW
Date: Tuesday, November 27, 2018 3:35:24 PM

Hello, we would have to agree with the responses of many of our colleagues.  A reporting
requirement of this magnitude and frequency would put a huge strain on providers and
support staff and create the need to consider how to capture reimbursement for time spent
collecting information.  The number of times this information is to be gathered is likely to
be a deterrent for clients who are in recovery and who have adjusted to the Medication
First Model.  The very nature of the questions and stringent reporting requirements would
set our processes back and could blur the concept and practice of service first.  The
information requested is duplicative and would be better obtained via an automated system
where information could be extracted from existing data fields and query enabled features
within agency EHRs.   
 
Regards,
 
Andrea Buford MSW, LCSW | Addiction and Telehealth Director, Behavioral
Health
Swope Health Services - Imani House | 3950 E. 51st Street, Kansas City, MO 64130
Office: 816-599-5659 | FAX: 816-599-5936
Email: abuford@swopehealth.org | Web: www.swopehealth.org
 
CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This transmission, including attachments, is intended for the
person or entity to which it is addressed. It may contain confidential and/or privileged
information and may be subject to protection under applicable laws, including the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA). If you are not the intended recipient of
this e-mail, you are prohibited from sharing, copying, or otherwise using or disclosing its
contents. If you received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately by reply e-
mail and permanently delete this e-mail and any attachments without reading, forwarding or
saving them. Thank you.

mailto:ABuford@swopehealth.org
mailto:Summer.King@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:abuford@swopehealth.org
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State of Tennessee Comments 
 
Proposed Project: State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) Program Data 
Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW 
 
 

-        Record Management 

o   Site ID: what does this correspond to? Will we need to provide the list of provider agencies 

in the SOR network and SPARS will assign an ID for each location where services may 
be provided? 

o   Date of Admission: Is this something that is asked at Baseline and then pre-populated at 

other interview types, or do we expect the user to fill this out at each interview type? 

o   Was the interview conducted? = No: would all of the sections of the instrument be skipped 

or only selected ones? What are the expectations for data collection when the interview is 
not conducted? 
 

-        Services Planned 
o   Under the Case Management Services, question 3b. is listed as "Employment Couching", 

this should likely be "coaching" and seems to be a typo. 

o   The numbering under Treatment Services should likely start at 1. for Medication-assisted 

treatment (instead of 8) in order to be consistent with the other sections on that page. 

o   Should this section only be asked at Baseline? 

 
-        Behavioral Health Diagnoses 

o   Are we expected to collect Primary, Secondary and Tertiary diagnoses, or only one? 

o   Are there any rules related to the section of the diagnoses that we should be aware of? 

o   Is this section asked at each interview type? 

 
-        Demographics 

o   Is this section asked at each interview type? If yes, would some fields be pre-populated 

from baseline as they would not likely change (i.e DOB, sex, ethnicity, race,…) 
 

-        Employment/Support Status 
o Questions E12-E17: do we need to provide a Declined and Don't know option for each 

question or are Declined or Don't know for the entire section?  
 

-        Substance Use 

o   The entry under Prescription Opioids for "OxyContin" is misspelled as "OxycContin" 

 
-        Family/Social Relationships 

o   There is no number for the question “In the past 30 days, where have you been living most 

of the time?”   
o   Questions F18 to F26 do not have the mention of Yes, No, Declined, Don’t know. Should 

we assume these are the valid response options?  
 

-        Psychiatric Status 

o   Questions P4 to P11 do not have the mention of Yes, No, Declined, Don’t know. Should 

we assume these are the valid responses?  
 

-        Modified Colorado Symptom Index 

o   What do the numbers 1 to 9 represent? Is a scoring expected for this tool (if yes, then what 

is the calculation? Why is Don’t know a 9 for example?) 



 
 

-        Services Provided: 

o   We noticed that Recovery Support and Peer Recovery Support services are not listed here 

but are part of the Planned Services section. Is this intentional? 

o   At which interview type is this section asked? Each Reassessment and Discharge? 

 
-        Overall:  

o   What fields are required? The paper tool does not designate what fields are required. 

Should we assume everything or nothing is required? Please provide guidance.  

o   Are there any other rules not listed on the paper form that we should be aware of? 

o   Is this tool to be conducted on any client receiving services with SOR funding? Does it 

include Prevention, Treatment and Recovery services? 

 



From: Janice Storey
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Subject: FW: URGENT - Please respond (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement—NEW
Date: Thursday, October 18, 2018 5:05:20 PM
Attachments: image001.png
Importance: High

Summer I wanted to submit some feedback on the attachments above:
Completing the GPRA for SOR program would be very labor intensive to collect and document the data.  If the expected compliance is 80% it would be difficult to achieve.  It also adds
an additional reporting time at the 3 month period. 
The process we have now with “Medication First” allows the client to see the physician sooner rather than later and avoids having the client go through a more lengthy assessment that
contains most of the same data as the Integrated Assessment we use now. Although I can see why data is important for supporting programs, I think that the consumer impact to this
also needs to be taken into consideration.
Thanks for your consideration. 
 
 
 

Janice Storey, LCSW
Clinical Director
Tri-County Mental Health Services, Inc.
3100 NE 83rd Street, Suite 1001
Kansas City, MO  64119
816.877.0444 (direct line)
816.468.6635 (fax)
 

Building a Resilient Tri-County
 
This email and any files transmitted with it are private and confidential and are solely for the use of the addresses.  It may contain material which is legally privileged.  If you are not the
addressee, or the person responsible for delivering to the addressee, be advised that you have received this email in error and that any use of it is strictly prohibited.  If you have received this
email in error, please notify us immediately either by replying to it or by calling:  Tri-County Mental Health Services at 816.468.0400.
 
 
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

mailto:janices@tri-countymhs.org
mailto:Summer.King@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:Laura.Jacobus-Kantor@samhsa.hhs.gov






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
 
<< OLE Object: Picture (Device Independent Bitmap) >>
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From: John Pruett
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Subject: FW: SOR Data Collection
Date: Friday, October 19, 2018 11:47:58 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Sending again kicked back
 

From: John Pruett [mailto:jpruett@turningpointrc.org] 
Sent: Friday, October 19, 2018 10:44 AM
To: 'summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov.' <summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov.>
Subject: SOR Data Collection
 
Ms. King,
 
In reviewing the documents I feel they are excessive and will put an extra burden on our agency.
 
Whether large or small, this will create problems for agencies due to the excessive amount of data
and the time needed to retrieve and record the data.  Not all agencies can devote as much time to
this process as would be required to still meet all the other requirements needed both
administratively and clinically for other functions.
 
John Pruett LCSW
Clinical Director
 

 
146 Communications Drive
Hannibal, Missouri 63401
 
Phone:    (573) 248-1196
Fax:        (573) 231-0982
Email:     jpruett@turningpointrc.org
Website:  www.turningpointrc.org
___________________________________________
CONFIDENTIALITY STATEMENT: The information contained in this e-mail message is intended only for the designated recipients
named above. The documents accompanying this transmission may contain information that is protected under the HIPAA
confidentiality act. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have received this
document in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution or copying of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have
received this e-mail in error, please notify us via e-mail or call (573) 248-1196 and delete the original message. Thank you for your
cooperation

 
 

mailto:jpruett@turningpointrc.org
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From: Catie Franklin
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: "Jennifer Wilson"; "John Pruett"
Subject: URGENT - Please respond (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement-NEW
Date: Monday, October 22, 2018 12:12:20 PM

Good morning.  I am the Program Director for the STR program we have here at Turning Point
Recovery Centers in Hannibal, MO and I interact with STR consumers on a daily basis.  I am writing in
response to the Data Collection email that was sent out last week.  My concern is that it appears to
be a very long and time consuming process and that at this time, it would take away from the main
focus of individualized consumer care and become more about completing paperwork, specifically
with the 80% required completion.  Thank you for your time.     
 
Catie Whitaker, BS CRADC/SQP/PD
CSTAR GP Program Director
Turning Point Recovery Centers
146 Communications Drive
Hannibal, MO 63401
(573) 248-1196
 

mailto:cfranklin@turningpointrc.org
mailto:Summer.King@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:jwilson@turningpointrc.org
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From: Porter, Rebecca
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Clark, Spencer (SAMHSA/CSAT/DPT)
Subject: RE: Proposed Project: State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR) Program Data Collection

and Performance Measurement—NEW
Date: Wednesday, November 28, 2018 8:40:16 AM
Attachments: Broad cross program outcome tool 6.1.18.docx

ED Data Intake Form 8.10.18.pdf
Employment Services Reporting Requirements.docx

Good Morning Summer,
 
I am writing from Vermont in response to the Federal request for comments on the proposed SOR
data collection tools and performance measurement plan. Attached please find the data collection
tools referenced in my comments that Vermont is currently using. WE have started multiple
initiatives with STR funding that will be continued with SOR funding, which is why we have so many
pieces in place already.
 

RESPONSE
 
Vermont Is a Medicaid expansion state with a robust system of healthcare including services for
Opioid Use Disorders (OUD). Vermont has an innovative and effective statewide hub and spoke model
of Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT) programs. The existing MAT programs and other OUD
treatment services are Vermont Medicaid and Block Grant funded services and will remain funded in
that way so Vermont is not utilizing SOR funding to pay specifically for MAT treatment.  Instead, the
Vermont SOR funds are used for activities and programming which augment supports for individuals
with OUD engaging in MAT services and for reducing barriers for individuals with OUD to access MAT
and evidence-based, non-clinical recovery support services. For instance, Vermont SOR funding will be
used to pay for Employment Consultants to work with people in varying stages of engagement in
treatment and recovery in existing treatment clinics and recovery centers. As the services we are
funding through SOR are not treatment and are provided by non-clinicians, it would be inappropriate
for these service providers to ask the full range of clinical questions included in the GPRA tool because
these providers, for example, the Employment Consultants, lack the clinical expertise required and to
do such is outside their scope of work. Vermont is concerned about the privacy of individuals
receiving these services should the GPRA data tool be utilized and that data collected.  Therefore,
instead of utilizing the proposed tools, Vermont advocates that utilizing the tools Vermont is currently
using for the Recovery support related services would lead to the most effective and appropriate data
collection for SOR reporting.
 
For Employment Consultants, this tool is the Employment Services Reporting Requirements. This tool
includes the 10 questions that comprise the Brief Assessment of Recovery Capital Tool (BARC-10) and
has and will continue to provide Vermont with the data necessary and appropriate to capture the
work funded through SOR and to make data-driven decisions around adjustments to continuously
improve the programming funded by SOR . See attached tool for more details.
 
For Peer Recovery Coach activities under this grant, an ED data intake form (see attached) and a
broad cross-program outcome tool (see attached) is being used that includes the BARC-10 questions

mailto:Rebecca.Porter@vermont.gov
mailto:Summer.King@samhsa.hhs.gov
mailto:Spencer.Clark@samhsa.hhs.gov

[bookmark: _GoBack]Thank you for taking part in this survey.  It should take no longer than 15 minutes of your time.  We are asking you to complete this for the past 30 days.  Please think back over the past month and respond to each question the best you are able.  It may be helpful to have a calendar showing the past month when responding.  Remember that your individual responses are confidential and not shared with anyone beyond our evaluation team at the Vermont Recovery Network. Should you have any questions, please contact Jody at (802) 999-1676.



		Please circle your level of agreement with each of the following statements for the past month: Strongly disagree, Disagree, Somewhat disagree, Somewhat agree, Agree, or Strongly agree. 



		

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Somewhat disagree

		Somewhat agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree



		1. In general I am happy with my life

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6



		2. I am making good progress on my recovery journey

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6



		3. I am proud of the community I live in and feel a part of it

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6



		4. I get lots of support from friends

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6



		5. I have enough energy to complete the tasks I set for myself

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6



		6. I regard my life as fulfilling without the need for using drugs or alcohol

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6



		7. I take full responsibility for my actions

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6



		8. My living space has helped to drive my recovery journey

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6



		9. There are more important things to me in life than using substances

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6



		10. I am happy dealing with a range of professional people

		1

		2

		3

		4

		5

		6







We ask that you think about your life in the last two weeks. Please read each question, assess your feelings, and circle the response on the scale for each question that gives the best answer for you.



		11. How would you rate your quality of life?

		Very Dissatisfied

		Dissatisfied

		Neither Satisfied nor Dissatisfied

		Satisfied

		Very Satisfied



		12. How satisfied are you with your health?

		Very Dissatisfied

		Dissatisfied

		Neither Satisfied nor Dissatisfied

		Satisfied

		Very Satisfied













Please indicate if and how often you have used the following services and supports in the past month.

		Recovery Center Use

		

		

		Number of Times in Past 30 Days



		13. Attended a peer recovery meeting (AA, NA, SMART Recovery, MAT support group, All Recovery, etc.) hosted/sponsored by a Recovery Center?

		Yes

		No

		



		14. Met with a Recovery Coach or Pathway Guide or other Recovery Center staff one-on-one?

		Yes

		No

		



		15. Attended some other event at your Recovery Center (e.g. educational workshop, social event, etc.)?

		Yes

		No

		



		16. Spent unstructured time at your Recovery Center?

		Yes

		No

		



		Use of other services:

		

		

		Number of Times in Past 30 Days



		17. Outpatient counseling? (Also, if met with a counselor for therapy as part of your MAT program, include here)

		Yes

		No

		



		18. Residential substance use or inpatient mental health treatment?

		Yes

		No

		



		19. Attended a detox program?

		Yes

		No

		



		20. Medication Assisted Treatment appointments where you received your prescribed dose or take homes of methadone or Suboxone? (dosing appointments)  

		Yes

		No

		



		21. Taken prescribed medications in support of your mental health and recovery including Methadone, Suboxone/Buprenorphine, Vivitrol, antidepressants, or antianxiety medications, or others?

		Yes

		No

		NA – I have not been prescribed medications in past 30 days.



		22. For the use of services above (items 17 to 21), did your local recovery center, recovery coach or pathway guide help connect you with these services?

		Yes

		No



		23. For the use of services above (items 17 to 21), did your local recovery center, recovery coach or pathway guide help you stay engaged in these services?

		Yes

		No







24. In the past 30 days, how many times have you experienced the following?				  	   Note: please use numbers only

		A. Had contact with the police?  

		



		B. Been arrested?

		



		D. Spent days on probation?

		



		D1. If you are currently on probation, in the past 30 days, did you meet all of your probation requirements (no violations)?

		Yes

		No



		E. Spent days in jail/prison?

		







25. What drug(s) would you identify as your drug of misuse (e.g. the one that has contributed to you seeking recovery)? (select all that apply)

		|_|  Alcohol

		|_|  Benzodiazepines (e.g. Xanax, Valium, Ativan, Librium)



		|_|  Marijuana/Cannabis 

		|_|  Methamphetamines/Amphetamines (includes Adderall, Ritalin, or other stimulant prescription drugs)



		|_|  Opiates (e.g. heroin, Suboxone, Percocet, morphine, fentanyl)

		|_|  Barbituates (e.g. phenobarbital, Nembutal)



		|_|  Cocaine/crack cocaine

		|_|  Inhalants



		|_|  Hallucinogens (e.g. PCP, LSD, Ecstasy, Ayahusca, salvia)

		|_|  Other: ___________________________________







		During the past 30 days, how often have you:

		



		26. Drank any alcohol?

		Not once

		Once a Month

		2-3 times a Month

		Once a Week

		More than Once a Week

		Daily



		27. Had 5 or more drinks on one occasion?

		Not once

		Once a Month

		2-3 times a Month

		Once a Week

		More than Once a Week

		Daily



		28. Used marijuana or cannabis?

		Not once

		Once a Month

		2-3 times a Month

		Once a Week

		More than Once a Week

		Daily



		29. Used prescription drugs without a prescription or more than directed?

		Not once

		Once a Month

		2-3 times a Month

		Once a Week

		More than Once a Week

		Daily



		b. If you misused prescription drugs, what prescription drug(s)?

		



		30. Used heroin?

		Not once

		Once a Month

		2-3 times a Month

		Once a Week

		More than Once a Week

		Daily



		31. Used cocaine/crack cocaine?

		Not once

		Once a Month

		2-3 times a Month

		Once a Week

		More than Once a Week

		Daily



		32. Used any other illegal drugs?  

		Yes

		No

		



		If you used other illegal drugs, please list what drugs you used and how often you used them in the past month?



		1. Name of Drug:

		Not once

		Once a Month

		2-3 times a Month

		Once a Week

		More than Once a Week

		Daily



		2. Name of Drug:

		Not once

		Once a Month

		2-3 times a Month

		Once a Week

		More than Once a Week

		Daily



		3. Name of Drug:

		Not once

		Once a Month

		2-3 times a Month

		Once a Week

		More than Once a Week

		Daily







Smoking Cessation Referral Questions:

31. Do you use tobacco?    Y    N

32. Are you 18 years or older, and interested in smoking cessation resources?   Y    N

33. Referred to Vermont Quit Network free counseling?    Y    N

34. Since coming to the Recovery Center have you decreased or stopped smoking?    Y    N    Not applicable





		In the past 30 days, not due to your use of alcohol or drugs, how many days have you:

		Number of Times in Past 30 Days (0 to 30)



		33. 

		Experienced serious depression

		



		34. 

		Experienced serious anxiety or tension

		



		35. 

		Experienced trouble understanding, concentrating, or remembering

		



		36. 

		Attempted suicide

		



		In the past 30 days,

		



		37. 

		Had any problems getting to and from places in the past 30 days? (circle one)

		No

		Yes



		38. 

		Had any problems getting childcare when you needed it in the past 30 days? (circle one)

		No

		Yes







39. 


40. In the past 30 days, where have you been living most of the time? (Circle one)





1	Own/rent apartment, room, or house

2	Someone else’s apartment, room, or house (includes couch surfing or staying with friends)

3	Transitional housing

4	Halfway house

5	Residential treatment

6	Dorm/college

7	Institution (hospital, jail/prison, nursing home)

8	Shelter/street/outdoors/car (includes hotel) 

9	Other:____________________





41. Employment status in the last 30 days: (Circle the one that best describes your situation)





1	Employed full time (35+ hours a week)

2	Employed part time

3	Unemployed (looking for work)

4	Unemployed (not looking for work)

5	Student	

6	Retired

7	Disabled and unable to work

8	Incarcerated

9	Homemaker







42. What is the highest level of education you have finished, whether or not you received a degree? (Circle one)







1  _______ grade		     

2     12th grade/HS diploma/GED		         	 

3    Some college

4    Bachelor’s degree

5    Voc/Tech diploma

6    Master’s degree

7    Beyond MA degree








Last Modified by VRN (SCarchidi) 8/10/18  Emergency Dept. Intake Form 


Recovery Coaches in the Emergency Department:  Pilot Intake Form 
Required Information Collection 


Hospital (circle one):    CVMC    SVMC    UVMMC Recovery Coach Name: 


Date and Time Recovery Coach Called 
 


Date:        /        /2018 
Time:        :          AM / PM 


Date and Time of ED Visit Date Visit Started:        /        /2018 
Date Visit Ended:         /        /2018 
Time Visit Started:        :          AM / PM 
Time Visit Ended:          :          AM / PM 


Reason for ED Visit 
(check one, or specify Other) 


Alcohol   ___ Barbiturates ___ Benzodiazepines ___ Cocaine ___ 
Hallucinogens ___ Inhalants ___ Marijuana / Cannabis ___ 
Methamphetamines ___ Opiates ___ 
Other___________________________ 


Patient Name / Date of Birth First Name___________________________ 
Last Name___________________________ 
Date of Birth (DOB)         /      /  


Patient Address Address 1 _________________________________________ 
Address 2___________________________ 
City ____________________ State ____ Zip Code ___________ 


Patient Contact Information Home Phone (       )         -                   Cell  Phone (       )         - 
Email Address:                                       


                                                                           Gender Female ___ Male ___ Non-binary ___ 


  Is patient pregnant at time of visit? (check one)   Yes ___ No ___ Unknown ___ Not Collected ___ 


  Race (place a check mark next to the selection) 
 


Alaska Native ___ American Indian ___ Asian ___ Native 
Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander ___  
Black or African American ___  White ___ Other single race ___ 
Unknown ___ Not Collected ___ 


Ethnicity Race (place a check mark next to the 
selection) 


 


Puerto Rican ___ Mexican ___ Cuban ___ Other specific Hispanic 
___ Not of Hispanic Origin ___ Hispanic ___ Unknown ___ Not 
Collected ___ 


If patient is currently receiving Substance Use 
Disorder / Mental Health treatment, check all 


that apply, or specify “Other” or  
“Not Applicable”   


Detox___ IOP (Intensive Outpatient Program)___ MAT 
(Medication Assisted Treatment)___ Psychiatrist___ 
Counseling___ Primary Care Physician___ Outpatient___  
Telephone Recovery Support___ 
Other_______________________________Not Applicable ___ 


                  Did patient agree to a referral? 
**MUST insert referral source**   


Yes___ No___  
If Yes, to whom?___________________________ 


              Did patient find this visit helpful? Yes ___ No ___ 


Does Patient want to continue services with a 
Recovery Coach following ED discharge? 


Yes ___ No ___ 







Last Modified by VRN (SCarchidi) 8/10/18  Emergency Dept. Intake Form 


Supplemental Information Collection 


    Number of overdoses in past 12 months  Number ___ 
Housing (check one) Homeless ___Couchsurfing ___ Rent / Own ___ 


Halfway House ___ Recovery House ___  
Other __________________________________ 


Preferred Language English ___ Spanish___ Other _______________   
Is patient employed?   Yes ___ No ___ 


Veteran?  Yes ___ No ___ 
Insured?   Yes ___ No ___ 


Insurance Company Blue Cross / Blue Shield ___ Medicaid ___  
Medicare ___ Private Insurance / Self Pay ___ Contract 
Corrections ___ Contract Private ___  
Contract SRS (DCF) ___ Contract School ___  
Other ______________________________ 


Narcan administered to patient? Yes ___ No ___   
If Yes, where was it administered?_________________ 


Narcan training provided to patient?   Yes___ No ___ 
Were you recently released from a residential or hospital 


inpatient program?   
Yes ___ No ___ 
Residential or hospital inpatient release date:      /        /   


Incarcerated in last 30 days?   Yes___ No___ 
Recently released from jail / prison?   Yes ___ No ___  


Jail / prison release date:      /       / 
Current Support System  


Family referrals requested? Yes ___ No___ 
 
EMERGENCY CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
First Name: ______________________  Last Name  ___________________________ 
Phone:  (      )        - 
Relationship:  Spouse ___ Significant Other / Partner ___ Parent ___ Sibling ___ Friend ___ Neighbor ___ 
Colleague ___ Other ____________________ 
 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 


Form Completed By:  ________________________________________________________________________ 


               Recovery Coach Name             Signature                 Date 


Form Input into Five CRM By:_________________________________________________________________ 


    Supervisor Name                     Signature                                                Date 


**Once this form is complete and information is entered into Five CRM please secure form in a locked filing 
cabinet until a VRN audit has been complete, at which time this form will be shredded.  


  






Participant ID: To be created by Employment Consultants upon initial screen; used as an anonymous, unique identifier to track individuals over the course of pilot participation. Participant IDs will be five (5) digits in length and assigned as follows:

· Chittenden County – 1XXXX (ex – 10001)

· Washington County – 2XXXX (ex – 20001)

· Caledonia County – 3XXXX (ex – 30001)

· Orleans County – 4XXXX (ex – 40001)

· Franklin County – 5XXXX (ex – 50001)

Federal Reporting Requirements:

1. Age (years): 

2. Gender: 

☐ Male		☐ Female

3. If female, are you currently pregnant? 

☐ Yes		☐ No

4. [bookmark: _GoBack]Race/Ethnicity (check all that apply): 

☐ White / Caucasian 				☐ Asian 

☐ Black / African American 			☐ Native American or Alaskan Native

☐ Native Hawaiian				☐ Other(s): ________________________

5. Are you Hispanic/Latino? 	☐ Yes	     ☐ No



Employment Pilot Reporting Requirements: 

1. How long have you been in recovery?

☐ Less than one year

☐ One to five years

☐ More than 5 years



2. What is your current housing status?

☐ Rent – apartment, condo, single family home, etc

☐ Own – apartment, condo, single family home, etc

☐ Transitional home / halfway home / group home

☐ Staying in a shelter / “couch surfing” with friends/family

☐ Homeless / living on the street



3. What is the highest grade-level you completed?

☐ 8th grade or less (did not attend high school)	☐ Associate’s Degree (2-year degree)

☐ Some high school, no diploma or GED		☐ Bachelor’s Degree (4-year degree) 

☐ High School diploma or GED			☐ Graduate/Professional degree 

☐ Other (explain):  _____________________________________________________



4. What is your current employment status (select any/all that apply)? 

☐ Employed full time (at least 30 hours/week)		☐ Student

☐ Employed part time (less than 30 hours/week)		☐ Retired/disabled

☐ Homemaker						☐ Unemployed

☐ Other (explain):  _____________________________________________________



5. Have you ever been employed for wages?

☐ Yes		☐ No



6. Have you been, or are you currently, involved with the criminal justice system?

☐ Yes, I have been incarcerated in the past

☐ Yes, I have been on probation or parole in the past

☐ Yes, I am currently on probation or parole

☐ No



BARC-10 (Brief Assessment of Recovery Capital)

1. There are more important things to me in life than using substances

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree







2. In general, I am happy with my life

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree







3. I have enough energy to complete the tasks I set for myself

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree







4. I am proud of the community I live in and feel a part of it

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree







5. I get lots of support from friends

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree







6. I regard my life as challenging and fulfilling without the need for using drugs or alcohol

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree







7. My living space has helped to drive my recovery journey

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree







8. I take full responsibility for my actions

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree







9. I am happy dealing with a range of professional people

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree







10. I am making good progress on my recovery journey

		Strongly Disagree

		Disagree

		Slightly Disagree

		Slightly Agree

		Agree

		Strongly Agree









Employment Services Program Reporting Requirements  





as well as quality of life ratings questions about the past two weeks and questions about the last
thirty days in relation to the individual’s:

Recovery Center use;
Engagement in substance use treatment services;
Interaction with police/arrest/incarceration/probation;
Substance use – amount/frequency/types of substances used;
Smoking cessation referral questions;
Mental health symptoms including suicide attempts;
Transportation;
Childcare;
Housing;
Employment; and
Education

 
Vermont will also be using SOR funding to purchase and distribute naloxone and feels the proposed
SOR/ TOR Program Instrument will match nicely with Vermont’s Naloxone-related SOR-funded
activities.
 
Best Regards,
Rebecca

 
 



From: Mayfield, Jim (DSHS/RDA)
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Speaker, Lyz (DSHS/RDA)
Subject: State Opioid Response (SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement
Date: Friday, November 30, 2018 8:56:54 PM

Summer King
SAMHSA
Reports Clearance Officer
5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57-B
Rockville, Maryland 20857
Via email: summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov

 
Dear Ms. King:
 
I am filing these comments in regards to the proposed protocols for the State Opioid Response
(SOR) Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement, document citation 83 FR
50116, document number 2018-21576.
 
First, I’d like to address something I learned on the November 30, 2018 SAMHSA Webinar.
Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) No. TI-18-015 did not specify requirements for
uploading data required for SAMHSA’s Performance Accountability and Reporting System
(SPARS). Based on my experience with other grants and a phone conversation months ago
with Deepa, our SOR data collection plan assumed that our sub grantees would have access to
SPARS and use that application to enter data directly. We were told today that only grantees
will have access to SPARS. This represents a considerable addition to an already burdensome
data collection environment. The solutions—an alternative web interface or batch up-load
processes—will require a considerable amount effort and time for grantees and their
contractors to stand up. At a minimum a substantial grace period will be necessary even if an
acceptable solution is found.
 
Please consider the following additional comments:
 
(a)    Whether the proposed collections of information are necessary for the proper

performance of the functions of the agency, including whether the information shall have
practical utility.
 

It is unclear how these lengthy instruments are necessary for the proper performance
of your agency or to the performance of grantees. Because data are only collected for
individuals receiving services, it is not possible to use these data to make casual
inferences about program effectiveness; even worse, simple pre-post comparisons of
outcomes—a common “analysis” using these data—are particularly misleading without
the context of an adequate comparison group.
 
While some information is useful from a program monitoring standpoint—e.g.
enrollment and discharge dates, discharge reason, treatment and services, past-30-day
substance use, basic socio-economic information, and demographics—there is little
value in systematically collecting all measures in the proposed instruments. In the
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context of SOR, there is little value to many of these measures, for example: life-time
hospitalizations, non-SUD related medical problems, the distinction between years of
technical or other education, the detailed questions about employment and income,
the very detailed questions about criminal involvement, etc. If there is a research
justification for these questions, they should be asked in the context of a specific
project, not as a general, systematic reporting requirement for a project of this scale.

 
(b)   ‘Accuracy of the agency’s estimate of the burden of the proposed collection of

information;
 

The .78 hours per response is a reasonable estimate of the baseline interview, but it is
a considerable underestimate of the follow-up and (non-administrative) discharge
surveys. These surveys require time for scheduling, notifications, tracking down clients,
repeated attempts to contact clients, etc. The populations receiving services under
SOR will be more transient than patients in other interventions, which will compound
these tracking and scheduling issues. This burden estimate needs considerable
revision. 

 
(c)    Ways to enhance the quality, utility, and clarity of the information to be collected; and

 
A considerably shorter and project-focused instrument would significantly improve
data quality and completeness. Also, it is unclear what kind of documentation or
training are available for these new instruments. I cannot ask providers to field these
instruments without sufficient documentation or training.

(d) Ways to minimize the burden of the collection of information on respondents, including
through the use of automated collection techniques or other forms of information technology.

 
While a technical solution seems attractive, the burden of data collection is primarily a
matter of human factors: time, training, staff turnover, quality of interviewer, patient
participation, the treatment environment and workflow, and invasiveness of the
questions, etc. While improvements in the data entry application would certainly be
helpful, these human factors and the length of the instruments are the greater
challenges. Even in data collection efforts that incorporated GPRA surveys in tablet
applications, most providers conduct surveys on paper and enter data later. That said,
if sub grantees are not allowed to access the SPARS system, then an alternative web-
based data entry system that supports batch uploads to SPARS would be very valuable.
 
Given the scale of the SOR grant, the administrative costs associated with the
proposed data collection poses a substantial burden. I recommend the following:
 

1.      Ensure there is adequate training and documentation for the new instruments,
including Q-by-Qs, train-the-trainer, and appropriate training support for sub-
grantees.
 

2.      Use a significantly shorter survey focusing on the measures most relevant to
SOR.
 

3.      Eliminate the 3- or the 6-month follow-up survey.
 

4.      Require only “administrative” discharges.



 
5.      Permit sampling instead of requiring surveys for every participant.

 
6.      Create survey modules that can be used to customize the survey based on the

intervention: e.g. a low-barrier clinic established in an urban jail setting would
focus on criminal justice outcomes, while a nurse care manager model in rural
medical clinics could focus on employment, health and child welfare outcomes.

 
7.      Develop a web-based interface for sub grantees to enter data and support

batch uploads to SPARS. States should not have to develop this capacity
independently.

 
8.      Identity management is going to be very challenging in SOR environment. For

example, a non-profit agency in Spokane providing recovery support services
and tracking clients on a spread sheet, will not know if a new client received
treatment at a SOR-funded jail in Seattle the month before. This identity
management challenge must be confronted if SAMHSA expects grantees to
assign unique IDs to all SOR-funded clients.

 

Thank you for taking the time to consider my comments.
 
Sincerely,
Jim Mayfield
 
JIM MAYFIELD  /  SENIOR RESEARCH SCIENTIST  /  Research and Data Analysis Division
Facilities, Finance & Analytics
Washington State Department of Social and Health Services
(Office) 360-902-0764  /  (Cell) 360-534-0316  / jim.mayfield@dshs.wa.gov

Transforming Lives
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From: Michelle Jenson
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Brenda Ahlemann (bahlemann@utah.gov)
Subject: Federal Register--SOR Program Data Collection and Performance Measurement
Date: Wednesday, October 17, 2018 5:42:19 PM
Attachments: image002.png

Ms. King,
 
I would like to take this opportunity to respond to the Federal Register publication related to SOR
program data collection.  We were invited to comment regarding, “Whether the proposed
collections of information are necessary for the proper performance of the functions of the agency,
including whether the information shall have practical utility.”  My response to that is that the
proposed utilization of GPRA data collection for this program has absolutely zero practical utility and
instead creates HUGE barriers to actual clients receiving services from the program.  Clients just
want to get help!  They don’t want to have to answer dozens of questions just to get in the door. 
Especially for clients looking for MAT assistance (which is what this program is focusing on), at
“intake” they are not in a good state of mind or physically able to sit there for that long to answer all
of these questions.  Our organization has participated in at least 2 other federal grants from SAMHSA
that required the use of the GPRA; in neither of those programs did we as a service provider or the
clients ever find any utility with the information. 
 
Furthermore, I believe that the estimate of 47 minutes per response for client-level data is
significantly underestimated.  First of all, a population seeking MAT resources is usually actively using
or may be going through withdrawals.  This will significantly slow down the interview process and
may even require that the data be collected in multiple visits.  Secondly, this estimate does not
include the provider time that must be spent in tracking down the clients for any follow-up
administrations.  In one of our programs, we estimated that we spent on average a total of 2 hours
of staff time for tracking down clients per follow-up.
 
We sincerely hope that you will take into consideration the barrier to care that this level of data
collection creates for the individuals trying to access care.  We know that government want to be
accountable, and we already collect TEDS data on all of these individuals, but we should not be
sacrificing client access to services to meet that accountability requirement.
 
Sincerely,
 
Michelle Jenson
 

Michelle Jenson | Director of Compliance and Quality
237 26th Street, Ogden UT 84401
Phone    801-778-6888
Fax         801-625-3847
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Summer King 

SAMHSA Reports Clearance Officer 

5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57-B 

Rockville, MD 20857 

Summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov  

 
Ms. King, 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the SAMHSA data reporting proposal for the State Opioid 

Response (SOR) Grant. In the following document and attachment A, please find my feedback on the 

proposed SOR Grant data collection requirements. High level comments can be found below. Attached 

you will also find more specific comments regarding the proposed GPRA client-level data collection tool. 

The specific GPRA client level tool comments were produced by the University of Wisconsin Population 

Health Institute, our state agency that has done GPRA Reporting for the MAT PDOA grants. Their 

expertise has helped us more fully understand the proposed burden for the new reporting outlined in the 

current SAMHSA proposal for the SOR Grant. 

 

 

High-Level Data Collection Comments: 

 

1. Data Collection for Outcomes Management. Wisconsin does not dispute the need for 

appropriate outcome indicator data collection. Wisconsin has found that assuring an appropriate 

level of accountability using specific outcomes indicators that are seen as valuable by funders, 

clients and providers can add a critical component to achieving success. We found that in MAT 

PDOA grant the level of evaluation of outcome indicators allowed us to have a feedback loop to 

our providers which spurred progress towards more effective and efficient programs.  

2. Data Collection Allocation (2%). As noted above, Wisconsin sees considerable value in data 

collection and evaluation. However, we believe that two percent of the total grant is a very small 

amount for the scope of data that is being required for the SOR Grant. In comparison, for the 

MAT- PDOA grant, where a GPRA was required at three data points: at intake, 6 months and 

discharge, that grant allowed us to use 16% of the total award for data collection and performance 

management. Even with that percentage, it was difficult to attain an 80% follow-up rate. When 

we have asked about using additional funding for these duties in SOR which now includes four 

GPRA data points (intake, 3 months, 6 months and discharge), it was pointed out we could also 

use the 5% that states can use for state related grant oversight. However, the administration of 

contracts, the requirement that we fund a State Opioid Initiatives Director, and the fiscal 

management required of such a large grant, also must be recognized and paid for within that 5% 

for state operations. As a result, that truly only leaves 2% for data collection activities which will 

not fund the true cost of the data collection burden outlined in the SAMHSA proposed SOR Data 

Collection proposal. 

3. Additional Data Burden Not Recognized in SAMHSA Documents. The SAMHSA Supporting 

Document, “State Opioid Response (SOR) and Tribal Opioid Response (TOR), Program Data 

Collection and Performance Measurement, A.3” document states, “The SOR/TOR data collection 

will not interfere with ongoing program operations that facilitate information collection at each 

site as state/territories and tribal entity are already using collecting and reporting program data as 

a component of other SAMHSA grants.” Wisconsin does not agree with this statement. The new 

GPRA data elements are not collected for our existing Substance Abuse Prevention Treatment 
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Block Grant funding. The proposed GPRA was substantially changed from that used for the MAT 

PDOA grant which also allowed additional resources to be used for data collection and evaluation 

activities. 

4. Time to complete the GPRA. For the MAT-PDOA grant, we estimated a time of about 45 

minutes per interview, as well as 20 minutes for data entry. In your estimation only 47 minutes 

was given for both the interview and the data entry. This would increase the total burden hours 

from 401,788 to 555,984, which again is a very large amount of hours for 2% data collection 

allocation. As an example, if we served 1,000 people and all were provided all four interviews 

that would total 80 minutes per person for just the data entry, or 80,000 total hours for 1,000 

people served. If we estimate an hourly rate of $30/hr. for data entry with fringe costs, that would 

total $2.4 million out of the Wisconsin allocation of $11.9 Million for SOR or 20% of the grant 

costs. That is ten times what is being proposed at 2% for data entry alone. 

5. Client Services to be Tracked. Guidance is needed on how to record client services in the 

proposed GPRA system. For example, what if a client is assessed using SOR grant funding, the 

GPRA is completed and they begin treatment using SOR funding. Then the client transitions onto 

partial insurance funded treatment services but SOR is continued for those services insurance will 

not cover such as case management, and recovery support. Would the GPRA continue to record 

the non-funded Substance Use Disorder treatment services? 

6. System Implementation. As noted in item 3 above, the proposed GPRA for SOR is a new 

instrument. An existing electronic instrument does not exist. In the first year of the State Targeted 

Response to the Opioid Crisis Grant, we served 900 people. With the additional SOR funding, we 

believe the number will be considerably higher. Time will be needed to give providers sufficient 

time to implement the GPRA in their local EHRs and clinical processes. A site-based electronic 

data collection system would reduce the data reporting burden. It is difficult to see how states will 

be able to implement this within the first grant year. 

 

Thank you for your consideration of my feedback. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Joyce Allen 
Director, Bureau of Prevention Treatment and Recovery, 

Division of Care and Treatment Services, 

WI Department of Health Services 

1 W. Wilson St., Room 850 

Madison, WI  53707 

Joyce.Allen@wisconsin.gov 

608-266-1351 

 

 

cc:  Spencer Clark 
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From: Morrison, Beth J
To: King, Summer (SAMHSA/OPPI)
Cc: Thierry, Kim (SAMHSA)
Subject: State Opioid Response (SOR) program data collection and performance measurement - state comments - WV
Date: Tuesday, December 4, 2018 8:10:11 AM

Summer King
SAMHSA
Reports Clearance Officer
5600 Fishers Lane, Room 15E57-B
Rockville, Maryland 20857
Via email: summer.king@samhsa.hhs.gov
 
 
Dear Ms. King:
 
The West Virginia Bureau for Behavioral Health is filing this comment in regards to the
proposed client level protocol for the State Opioid Response (SOR) Program Data
Collection and
Performance Measurement, document citation 83 FR 50116, document number 2018-21576,
as referenced in Funding Opportunity Announcement (FOA) No. TI-18-015. 

 
As with any data tool it is important that there be a balance between the amount of data
collected and the burden on the participant.  As you increase the burden, you decrease the
accuracy of the data as patients get fatigued and often do not answer questions truthfully or
refuse to answer.  This tool is 32 pages long for the baseline.  It is the opinion of the clinical
and data team from WV’s State Targeted Response (STR) funded MAT initiative that it is far
too long.
 
Specific recommendations include:
 
Medical Status section:
Eliminate questions: M1 and M1b.
People are not going to remember how many times they have been hospitalized so this
information is not going to be accurate.
Eliminate question M8
 
Employment/support status section:
E1 – I think phrasing the question this way compared to how is was in the GPRA will get less
accurate results.  People will be unclear, do I count per-school, kindergarten, what if they did
not go to either of those?  They also will not accurately recall months.
E5 – do you have an automobile available is not a good was to phrase the question.  Most
people who borrow a vehicle sometimes have it available and sometimes do not and it is
inconsistent.  Do you own an automobile would be a better question. Or does someone in your
household own an automobile.
E11 – how much money have you earned from the follow sources – this level of detail is
burdensome
E19 and E20 should be combined and E21 eliminated.
 
Substance Use chart:
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It is very important to capture misuse of prescription medications or “street use”,  As in the
individual is using a prescription medication but it is not prescribed to them.  It is not clear
how it would be differentiated is the person is being prescribed a medication (say
benzodiazepines or opioids)  or using medications not prescribed to them.
 
The additional questions D26, D28, D27, D29 are burdensome and will not yield meaningful
data.
 
Legal status:
L18, L19, L20 should be added to the options listed in the chart regarding “how many times
have you been arrested and charged with the following”
L27 – people WILL NOT answer this question generally and it is not a good question to ask at
an initial baseline before you have earned an individual’s trust.
L28 and L29 – remove.  People’s opinion about their legal situation or substance abuse
severity at baseline is not an important data point to collect at the cost of making this
assessment so long.
 
Family Social/relationships:
F30, F31 – redundant and should be removed.  This will be captured in the chart about serious
problems getting along with people
 
If the modified Colorado Symptom Index is being administered then the previous symptom
chart can be eliminated, as they are redundant:
P4, P5, P6, P7, P8, P9, P10
 
SOR/TOR specific questions:

1. This is repetitive as incarceration in the past 30 days have already been asked about
 
Any effort to reduce the length of this tool would be of benefit.   If you have questions or
need additional information, please contact me via email at Beth.J.Morrison@wv.gov.
 
Kind regards,
 
Beth Morrison, Program Director
Programs Section
Bureau for Behavioral Health 
350 Capitol Street, Room 350
Charleston, West Virginia 25301
Ph:  304-356-4976
Cell:  304-550-8450
Email:  Beth.J.Morrison@wv.gov 
Website | Facebook | Twitter | YouTube
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